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Financial Highlights

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Millions of
U.S. dollars,
Millions of yen, Percentage of except per share
except per share information previous year information
2006 2005 2006/2005 2006
NEt SaIES ..., ¥8,894,329  ¥8,713,636 102.1% $76,020
Income before INCoOMe taxes .v.covivvvvviveieiiinennn. ¥ 371,312 ¥ 246,913 150.4% $ 3,174
NETINCOME i) ¥ 154,410 ¥ 58,481 264.0% $ 1,320
Net income per share:
BaSIC i ¥ 69.48 ¥ 25.49 272.6% $ 0.59
Diluted oo, 69.48 25.49 272.6 0.59
Cash dividends per share ..........oooocviviiiiniennn. 17.50 15.25 114.8 0.15
Total assets (at year-end) ..o, ¥7,964,640  ¥8,056,881 98.9%  $68,074
Stockholders’ equity (at year-end) ..o, 3,787,621 3,544,252 106.9 32,373
Capital investment ..o, ¥ 345,819 ¥ 374,253 92.4% $ 2,956
R&D expenditures .....oooooviiiiiiii e, 564,781 615,524 91.8 4,827
Total employees (at year-end) .......ovvvvvviviinninn, 334,402 334,752 99.9% 334,402

Net Sales Income (Loss) before Income Taxes Net Income (Loss)
Billions of yen Biltions of yen Billions of yen
10,000 400 150
8,000 N ) 100
S LT
2,000 T e
2000 | B BT T BT
- -500
2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 % 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Notes: 1. See Note 1 (n) to the consolidated financial statements in respect to the calculation of net income per share amounts.
2. Cash dividends per share reflect those paid during each fiscal year.
3. U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥117=U.S.$1, the approximate rate on the Tokyc Foreign Exchange
Market on March 31, 20086.
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To Our Stakeholders

Matsushita is deeply concerned about the inconvenience caused to a great many
people by defects in certain FF (Forced Flue)-type kerosene fan heaters which were
manufactured and sold in Japan between 1985 and 1992. In addition to company-wide
recall efforts, product inspections and repairs of affected models, Matsushita, through
the Corporate FF Customer Support & Management Division, is adopting a variety of
emergency countermeasures in cooperation with all relevant parties to ensure this
unfortunate incident is not repeated. Going forward, Matsushita will coordinate a
comprehensive review of product safety standards and continue to make every effort

to maintain the confidence of stakeholders.

As the midpoeint of the three-year management plan Leap Ahead 21, the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2006 (fiscal 2006) was a pivotal year in establishing a foundation to
achieve the Company’s goals. Matsushita aggressively launched and promoted a wide
range of competitive products, including plasma TVs, and selectively invested in growth
fields with the aim of enhancing strategic businesses. Matsushita also reinforced its
management structure by reducing materials costs and implementing comprehensive
cost reduction activities on a company-wide basis. Through these activities, the
Company achieved an increase in sales and earnings in fiscal 2006, despite a severe

business environment.

The current business environment remains uncertain, with volatile conditions expected
to continue in the consumer electrenics industry in fiscal 2007, Guided by its new
management, Matsushita will bolster proprietary technologies as the basis for developing
competitive products, focus management resources intc strategic businesses,

consistently strengthen management structures and further promote global business

*1 For information about operating profit, see Note 4 on page 44.
*2 CCM is an indicator created by Matsushita to evaluate return on capital. A positive CCM indicates that the return on invested capital mests the
minimum return expected by capital markets.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006




Kunio Nakamura Chairman Fumio Ohtsubo President

expansion to achieve the targets of the Leap Ahead 21 plan, Such targets include an
operating profit™ to sales ratio of 5% or more and a positive Capital Cost Management
(CCM™) index, on a consolidated basis. Furthermore, to achieve global excellence in
2010, Matsushita will continue efforts to realize its corporate twin vision of realizing a
ubiquitous networking society and coexistence with the global environment. Moreover,
we place a high priority on accountability for the benefit of our shareholders, investors,
customers and all other stakeholders, and will continue efforts to further increase corpo-

rate value.

Thank you for your continued support.

June 2006
Kunio Nakamura Fumio Ohtsubo
Chairman President
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Message from the President

Fiscal 2006
Review:
Leap Ahead 21
Second-year
Results

Fiscal 2006
Results

In fiscal 2008, the electronics industry continued to face a severe business environment, due mainly
to rising raw materials costs, in addition tc price declines for digital audiovisual (AV) equipment and
other products, caused by intensified global competition.

Despite such challenges, consolidated net sales totaled ¥8,894.3 billion (U.S. $76.02 billion), up
2% from fiscal 2005. This was in large part a result of increased sales of plasma TVs, digital cameras
and other digital AV equipment in Japan and overseas.

Consclidated operating profit increased 34% to ¥414.3 billion ($3.54 billion). This improvement
was due mainly to increased sales, materials cost reduction efforts and the positive effects of busi-
ness and organizational restructuring. The operating profit to sales ratio was 4.7%, also an improve-
ment from the previous fiscal year. Income before income taxes grew 50%, to ¥371.3 billion ($3.17
billion), while net income surged 164% to ¥154.4 billion ($1.32 billion).

Although business results have not yet returned to a satisfactory level in terms of profitability, we
believe the Company has made steady progress toward achieving its target of an operating profit to
sales ratio of 5% or more and a positive CCM index by the end of fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2006 was crucial to achieving the goals of the Leap Ahead 21 plan and securing sustainable
growth. Accelerating growth strategies while reinforcing management structures in each business
domain company, Matsushita made progress in four major areas.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006




Fiscal 2007

First, we successfully launched a wide range of competitive new products. These included a new ‘
series of V-products to capture leading shares in high-volume markets and make a significant contri-
bution to overall business results. As consumer demand trends rapidly shifted from analog to digital,
plasma TVs, for which global demand is rapidly expanding, and digital cameras recorded significant |
sales gains compared to the previous year. In home appliances, the introduction of innovative prod-
ucts, such as industry-first air conditioners that require no cleaning or filter change for 10 years,
enjoyed steady sales gains in Japan, making a significant contribution to overall business results.

Second, we were successful in augmenting core businesses. Focusing on digital AV products, we
implemented simultaneous global product introductions and unified marketing to maximize sales and
profitability, while expanding market shares in strategic product areas such as flat-panel TVs and digi-
tal cameras. In addition, Matsushita strategically focused investments into cutting-edge system LSIs
and other semiconductors that serve as key components in digital AV products, and plasma display
panels (PDPs), for which global demand is expected to increase significantly. In September 2005,
operations commenced at a third PDP plant in Amagasaki, Japan. A month later, Matsushita began
mass production of system LSIs from 300mm wafers at its plant in Uozu, Japan.

Another achievement was increased sales through collaboration with Matsushita Electric Works,
Ltd. (MEW). Matsushita leveraged the strengths of both companies to achieve sales increases in
Collaboration V-products including bathroom systems, modular kitchens and air purifiers. At the
same time, domestic sales of air conditioners and related products rose substantially through the
effective use of MEW sales channels for electrical supplies and building materials.

Finally, we implemented various measures to reinforce management structures. Such measures
included selection and concentration of management resources, restructuring at various locations
and other reforms within each business domain company. Furthermore, Matsushita carried out
sweeping cost reduction initiatives to lower fixed costs and contribute to increased profitability,
despite a severe business environment characterized by rapid price declines.

In fiscal 2007, challenging conditions are expected o prevail in global economies due to a variety of
factors including rising crude oil and other raw materials prices and risks associated with currency
exchange rates caused by growing concerns over trade and budget deficits in the United States.
Given these conditions, substantial growth is unlikely for the consumer electronics industry as a
whole. Furthermore, competition in high-growth markets is expected to intensify as consumer prefer-
ences rapidly shift from analog to digital AV products. In this, the final year of the Leap Ahead 21
plan, Matsushita will achieve its goals through workplace-oriented initiatives that accelerate growth
strategies and further reinforce management structures. The Company will also augment product
quality assurance efforts throughout the Group to maintain the trust of our customers. Specific initia-
tives for fiscal 2007 are outlined below:

Growth Strategies

(1) Increased Market Share through V-products

V-products, created through innovative technologies, will continue to be the centerpiece of
Matsushita’s growth strategy. In fiscal 2007, Matsushita will launch V-products in 82 product cate-
gories, with a combined sales target of ¥1.8 trillion. Furthermore, we will expand marketing and
advertising to highlight the innovative and unique features of V-products and achieve leading market
shares. Meanwhile, simultaneous giobal product introductions will be expanded to cover a wider
range of products in more geographic regions. Specific targets for V-products in fiscal 2007 include
plasma TV sales of four million units, or a 40% share of the global market, and digital camera sales of
eight million units, which would represent a global market share of 10%.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006 | 5
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(2) Strengthening Overseas Businesses

Overseas operaticns are expected to serve as a “growth engine” for the entire Matsushita Group.
Matsushita will therefore further strengthen ties between manufacturing companies in various regions
and business domain companies in Japan. We will also identify strategic products and sales channels
for each region and country, and effectively allocate management resources in order to boost sales.
In addition to markets in Europe and the United States, Matsushita views the growing BRICs*
markets as a key to success overseas. Aggregate consumer demand in BRICs markets currently rivals
that of Japan, and by 2010 is expected to be comparable to demand levels in the United States and
Europe. Specific initiatives in the rapidly growing Chinese market include (1) the aggressive launch of
V-products, (2) development of products tallored to the Chinese market through local planning and
design, (3) marketing activities that focus on volume retailers through augmented sales networks,
and (4) development of local management and necessary support infrastructures.

* BRICs stands for Brazil, Russia, India and China.

(3) Strategic Investment

Going forward, Matsushita will continue to focus investments into strategic businesses including cut-
ting-edge system LSIs and other semiconductors as well as plasma TVs. Notable among these, are
flat-panel TVs, demand for which is expected to grow considerably, contributing to increased sales
and earnings. Specifically global demand for PDPs, one of the main components in plasma TVs, is
expected to reach 10 million units in fiscal 2007 and 25 million units in fiscal 2011.

Aiming to capture a 40% share of the global PDP market, Matsushita’s third domestic plant will
reach full capacity in fiscal 2007, boosting total annual capacity to 5.5 milion units. By further investing a
total of ¥180 billion to build the world's largest PDP plant, which is scheduled to commence operations
in July 2007, Matsushita will have an annual capacity exceeding 11.5 million units in fiscal 2009.

(4) Utilizing Matsushita’s Strengths in Semiconductors
One of Matsushita’s strengths lies in its cutting-edge system LSIs and other semiconductors that
serve as key components in digital equipment. Matsushita brings competitive products to market
quickly by working closely with finished products divisions to promptly develop semiconductors with
unigue functions. Furthermore, Matsushita will continue to develop increasingly integrated
semiconductors, resulting in more cost competitive products.

In fiscal 2007, Matsushita will accelerate installation of the Integrated Platform across differing
product categories to combine software and hardware resources, shorten dasign and development
phases, and create a succession of attractive digital products.

(5) Further Boosting Sales through Business Collaboration with MEW
Through collaboration with MEW, Matsushita aims to achieve a sales increase of more than ¥100 bil-
lion over the two-year period ending March 31, 2007. Specific initiatives include the combining of dif-

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006
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Management

ferentiated technologies, such as those in components and devices, in addition to mutual utilization
of sales channels. The two companies will also expand businesses in China and other overseas
markets, while implementing cooperative marketing activities.

Further Reinforcing of Management Structures

(1) Halving Plant Inventories

The Next Cell Production Project was launched in March 2005 to enhance cost-competitiveness
through continuous improvements, shorter lead times and a reduction of plant inventories to near-
zero levels, As a result, a structure was put in place to guantify production processes at each plant,
resulting in inventory reductions across the board.

In fiscal 2007, Matsushita will implement additional measures to secure further reductions in plant
inventories. In specific terms, the Company will promote Production, Sales and Inventory (PSI) and
supply chain management (SCM) to reduce inventories of finished products and shorten delivery times.
In order to reduce in-process inventory, we will also utilize Just In Time (JIT) production methods.

(2) Management Innovation through IT

Matsushita has invested heavily in IT infrastructures over the past five years. In fiscal 2008, the effec-
tive benefits exceeded the cumulative total invested. In addition to cost and inventory reductions,
constructing a corporate IT architecture has played a significant role by shortening development and
production lead times. In fiscal 2007, Matsushita will thus make comprehensive use of [T with the aim
of enhancing management speed.

(8) Second Corporate Cost Busters Project

The Second Corporate Cost Busters Project aims to lower costs in every aspect of management on a
company-wide basis. In fiscal 2008, cost savings amounted to approximately ¥70 billion, exceeding
the original target of ¥60 billion. The cost reduction target for this project in fiscal 2007 is an additional
¥60 billion, whereby Matsushita aims to offset the negative impact of increases in crude oil and other
raw materials prices.

Maintaining Customer Confidence

Regarding the recall of certain FF-type kerosene fan heaters in fiscal 2008, Matsushita is resolved to
continue company-wide efforts until all products affected by the recall have been accounted for. We
are also committed to preventing any future recurrences, and therefore established the Corporate FF
Customer Support & Management Division in May 2006 to coordinate recall efforts through various
public awareness campaigns.

The Company is also reviewing general safety criteria for its entire product lineup. In April 2008,
the Product Safety Administration Center was set up under the Corporate Quality Administration
Division, while a new department was established at each business domain company to handle safety
and service of products used over an extended period. In addition, efforts are being made to notify
customers when a maintenance check is due, to equip products with motion-activated shutoff
functions and to introduce new product-tracking systems.

Matsushita has implemented shareholder-criented management as part of the Leap Ahead 21 plan. To
this end, the Company is striving to enhance corporate value and proactively return profits to share-
holders. In this way, Matsushita emphasizes a management focus on shareholder interests. In line with
the strategies outlined in the Leap Ahead 21 plan, the Company decided in fiscal 2005 to proactively
return profits to shareholders taking into consideration consolidated business performance. Specifically,
the Company provides shareholder return in the form of cash dividends and share repurchases, with

Matsushita Electric Industral Co., Ltd. 2006
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Toward 2010

due consideration to consoclidated net profit and cash flows. With respect to dividends, Matsushita will
pursue steady and continuous growth of return to shareholders, while at the same time taking into
consideration various factors including mid-term business performance, capital expenditure requirements
and the Company’s financial condition. As for share repurchases, by using surplus cash flows to acquire
its own shares, the Company aims to achieve reductions in the total number of outstanding shares, in
an effort to raise shareholder value on a per-share basis. In principle, repurchased shares are held as
treasury stock to a maximum of 10% of the total number of outstanding shares. In addition, strategic
use of treasury stock for such purposes as M&A will further enhance shareholcler value.

Under the basic philosophy that shareholders should make final decisions regarding large-scale
purchases of Matsushita shares, prospective purchasers should provide sufficient information to
Matsushita’s Board of Directors, who will assess, examine, negotiate, form an opinion and seek
alternatives as established in the Company’s fiscal 2006 policy regarding large-scale purchases of
Matsushita shares (ESV* Plan).

Matsushita plans to increase total dividends per share for fiscal 2007 to ¥30 per share, compared
with ¥20 per share in fiscal 2008. From May 2005 to the end of March 20086, the Company executed
share repurchases from the market totaling approximately ¥83 billion, and plans to repurchase a
maximum of 50 million shares, up to ¥100 billion, from May 2006 to March 31, 2007. The ESV Plan
will alsc continue through fiscal 2007,

*ESV stands for Enhancement of Shareholder Value.

Matsushita is focused on further growth with a successful leap toward global excellence by 2010.
Critical to this endeavor is the development of numerous mainstay businesses. Accordingly, we will
promote growth in flat-panel TVs, automotive electronics, semiconductors and other products that
provide solutions for comfortable living through business collaboration with MEW. To realize this
growth, we will utilize proprietary technologies to create products that are both innovative and
competitive. As we combine our strengths as a manufacturing-oriented company, Matsushita will
undertake results-driven R&D through the selection and concentration of product development projects
and by focusing investment into programs that provide new value. Maximizing the Group's compre-
hensive strengths, Matsushita will increase emphasis on its vertically integrated business model that
encompasses everything from components and devices to finished products. The Company is also
promoting the development of technologies that can be applied across varicus product categories.
Working toward the creation of new businesses a decade from now, we have formulated a clear
vision toward achieving global excellence. To this end, we will continue to develop the core technologies
necessary to realize our goal.

Matsushita has designated Panasonic as its globally unified brand under the slogan “Panasonic ideas

for life.” This slogan represents the Company’s commitment to providing ideas that enrich the lives of

people around the world—ideas exemplifying “ease of use and convenience,” "peace of mind, security
and brand loyalty” and “inspiration.” Waorking alongside our customers the world over, we will strive to
improve corporate value, always making a contribution and playing a more prominent role in society.

"o

We appreciate your continued support as we embrace the challenges ahead.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006




Through advances in digital equipment and
information communications technologies, a
ubiguitous networking society, enabling con-
venient access to digital networks anytime
and anywhere, is quickly becoming a reality.
Essential to realizing such a society is the
introduction of digital networks into the

home. Focusing on key concepts such as

“ease-of-use and convenience,” “peace of

Ma'sushita’s Plasma TV Business:
Growing with the Progress of
a Ubiquitous Networking Society

mind, securitiﬁzand loyalty,” and
“inspiration,” M hita provides solutions

for camfortable living to customers ail over
the world by actively carrying out R&D and

business expansion.

Matsushita therefore places top priority on

realizing the full potential of plasma TVs,

lm_-._sf

L l«,z,h ‘ which are the core product in the Company's
R " b ad e

home networks business.

S
it
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TVs Driving Advances in Home Networks

The Role of TVs in the Ubiquitous Networking Society

Since its beginning, the TV has remained a centerpiece in the home
and the flagship of Matsushita’s product lineup. However, as a
result of digitization and new networking technologies, the TV is
undergoing drastic changes. First, digital broadcasting is rapidly
progressing on a global scale, facilitating enhanced content in
higher picture quality. Matsushita sees this trend as an opportunity
for pecple around the world to discover the true appeal of enjoying
high-resolution images on large-screen plasma TVs.

Furthermore, through interactive programming, Internet connec-
tivity and other networking functions, the TV will act as an informa-
tion window in the home. Anticipating this trend toward the inte-
gration of broadcasting and communications, Matsushita devel-
oped the T navi*" Internet-based information service for digital TVs
(OTVs). By simply connecting T navi-compatible TVs or tuners to a
broadband line, some 150 services and programs, including news,
weather and stock prices, can be accessed. Providing ease-of-use
and security, these convenient information network services also

Home security

= T
Home network (=%~ =
cameras |

comﬁoﬁ & :"»iarsur?ry .

Multipﬁrpose
distribution
paneiboard

L Ar mndiﬂw&s_i;,_

Y

§ DVD recorders ‘
V1deo content dlsh%nﬁm

TV-centered Network
Matsushita offers new ideas through
TV-centered network services and a broad
range of networkabie products.

include online shopping, e-mail, picture exchange and online photo
albums. Taking advantage of the DTV's central location in the
home, Matsushita provides a wide range of content and services
that are suited to large screens and are easy to use for the whole
family.

Plasma TVs are also central to Matsushita’s “3D” value chain
strategy, which encompasses the SD Memory Card, DVD and DTV
businesses. Matsushita creates new value for customers by inter-
linking products in these categories through networks. For example,
using the SD Memory Card as a bridge media, pictures and video
taken with digital cameras or SD camcorders can be easily viewed
on TV screens.

Matsushita will further expand on this concept by creating an
“HD*2 3D value chain” for further enjoyment of high-definition content.
*1 T navi: Matsushita's DTV Internet services launched in Japan during 2003

*2 HD (High Definition) refers to the trend toward higher resclution (higher picture
quality) in TVs and other fields.

; f5y Facsin Content
=1 ‘ services

“T ravi
services

Home prmters 4

cameras
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Unique Technologies for High Picture Quality

@ New Real Black Creation @ 16-Bit Digital Signal Processing

A combination of real black reproduction technology to better Contrast has been further enhanced with Matsushita's cutting-edge system LSls.
accentuate images and 4,000:1 contrast (maximum 10,000:1) Through maximum 186-bit digital processing, contrast has been improved by
allows users to enjoy sharper pictures (Spring 2006 models). approximately 50% (compared with Matsushita’s prior vear models), allowing finer

expression and a crisp, realistic picture (Spring 2006 models).

Conventional picture New real black creation Conventional signal processing

16-bit digital signal processing

;

4
I3 w .
'-Q/ ! 4 Detailed gradation
in each scene

Deep blacks for significant
enhancement of picture gquality

’ Qverall contrast improved approximately 50%
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Plasma TVs: Leading the Large-screen Flat Panel TV Market

Plasma TV Business: A Pillar for growth

As the leader in the rapidly expanding global market for large-
screen flat-panel TVs, plasma TVs are also driving Matsushita’s
growth as a strategic business. In the ubiquitous networking
society, DTVs are expected to perform a wide varisty of functions.
By leveraging unique technologies and significant know-how in
manufacturing and sales, Matsushita will introduce appealing new
products to the market in a timely manner and at affordable prices
in order to meet ever-diversified customer needs.

Matsushita Leads the Large-screen TV Market through

a Vertically Integrated Business Model

Amid intensified global market competition, characterized by prod-
uct price declines and shortening product life cycles, manufacturers
have sought to introduce competitive products, accelerate R&D and
realize cost savings. From PDPs to system LSls, Matsushita devel-
ops and manufactures all key devices for plasma TVs in-house
through unique technologies. Through this vertically integrated busi-
ness model that encompasses everything from components and
devices 1o finished products, Matsushita is differentiating its prod-
ucts and bolsterting its cost competitiveness, resulting in superior
products.

The key to unrivaled picture quality in Matsushita’s plasma TVs
lies with the Company’s three integrated technologies: signal pro-
cessing technologies for digital images, display processing tech-
nologies to optimize iImages according to panel characteristics and
panel-related technologies for reproducing high-quality images.
Matsushita’s display processing engineers are familiar with PDP
technology and work closely with other development-related

departments to achieve technological advances in such areas as
brightness and color reproduction. The Company’s engineers also
share a long-term development roadmap, fostering synergy to
further enhance key technologies.

By combining such know-how, accumulated over 50 years, with
the latest digital technologies, Matsushita is able to develop large-
screen PDPs with remarkable picture quality.

Demand for increasingly large TVs with high picture quality is
expected to rise as digital HD broadcasting services are introduced
around the world and Blu-ray Discs for HD recording become more
widespread. Because PDPs are based on a self-light-emitting tech-
nology, there is no need for a backlight. It is this technology that
facilitates high contrast for rich color reproduction, and exceptional
image processing speed, suited to movies and sports. Moreover,
image quality remains consistent even when viewed from an angle,
an essential feature for large-screen TVs, Together, these features
make PDPs the most suitable display device for large-screen TVs.,
In November 2005, Matsushita launched the world’s first 65-inch
full HD plasma TV. Then, in January 2008, the Company announced
the development of the world’s largest full HD* plasma display
panel, at 103 inches, with mass production expected to begin during
2008. In addition to home theater demand, the market for industrial-
use multi-purpose plasma displays is expected to expand.

Leveraging the advantages of its vertically integrated business
model, Matsushita will continue to pursue unrivaled picture guality in
large-screen TVs.

*Full HD: 2.07 miltion pixels (1,920 horizontal X 1,080 vertical pixels)

Matsushita Electric Industrdal Co., Led. 2006 1 13



Panasol

ic AVC Networks

omparny America

—'mwm—]m___
¥ia
[ Comban __

@ No. 1 plant {Ibaraki)
@ No. 2 plant {Ibaraki)
@ No. 3 plant (Amagasaki)

40

approximatel

aisushigpraiections hased ubon data from research corporations ]

Global Plasma TV Demand Forecast

(miflions of units)

30
25 25.0
Other
20 China
15
Europe
10
North
5 America
{
0 | | Japan

2005 2006 2007 2008

(Estimated)

14 | Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006

2011 (Fiscal years}

Planned PDP Annual Production Capacity
(based on 42-inch panels)
{millions of units)

No. 4 domestic plant
{Amayasivd)

5

Nt 7 ferTieti v I

g |

No. 2 domestic plant

Tivarak}
0t T iEMBEHE HipRt fage SHargRar ARt l
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

2011 (Fiscal years)

Comparison of Mother Glass Size

42-inch 42-inch 42-inch 42-inch
x x x x
1 panel 3 panels 6 panels 8 panels
; !
‘ - -
1 [ }
t H
| - |
! P |
i Lo \
e Pk i H
i : W[ [ ' {
; P ‘ i
No. No. 2 No. 3 "
domestic  domestic domestic No. 4 domestic plant
plant plant plant {Production planned

10 stan in July 2007)




00&

-rasence

Production and Marketing Initiatives to Meet Expanding Global Demand for Plasma TVs

Expanded Production Capacity and Increased Productivity

! |‘ In the wake of the global shift

1 Ppp— to digital broadcasting,

: Matsushita expects worldwide
demand for plasma TVs to
explode from 5.7 million units in
fiscal 2006 to 10 million units in
fiscal 2007, and exceed 25 mil-
lion units in fiscal 2011.

In order to meet this rapidly
expanding demand, Matsushita
has decided to invest ¥180 billion to build the world’s largest PDP
manufacturing plant, with an annual capacity of 6 million units (based
on 42-inch panels). The factory will be the Company's fourth
domestic PDP plant, and is being constructed on land adjoining
Matsushita’s third domestic plant in Amagasaki, Japan. Construction
began in May 2008, with production scheduled to commence in July
2007. Matsushita will thus maintain one of the world’s largest PDP
manufacturing operations, with a combined annual capacity exceeding
11.5 million units in fiscal 2008.

In addition to bolstering production, Matsushita will also enhance
productivity through innovations in manufacturing technologies. One
example is Matsushita’s ability to cut multiple panels from a single
sheet of glass. When Matsushita began operating its first domestic
plant in June 2001, the Company manufactured one panel from one
sheet of glass. At its second domestic plant, however, the Company
produced three 42-inch panels from each sheet. At the third domes-
tic plant that began operating in September 2005, up to six panels
are produced from a single sheet of glass. Continuing advances in
manufacturing technologies will allow Matsushita to achieve eight
panels per sheet at the Company's fourth domestic plant.

{No. 3 domestic plant)

Image of the completed No. 4
domestic plant

Increasing Market Share through Simultaneous Global
Product Introductions
Product life cycles continue to shorten as information is delivered
to the world instantly over the Internet. Matsushita has therefore
begun strategically launching new products simultaneously in
markets all over the world. The Company aims to maximize sales
and earnings by rapidly achieving high market shares. In fiscal
2006, Matsushita boasted the No.1 global market share for plasma
TVs of 35% by implementing the first simultaneous product intro-
duction for the Company’s TV business in Japan, the United
States and Europe. For fiscal 2007, Matsushita has expanded the
scope of simultaneous global product introductions to include
China, Asia and the Middle East, aiming to increase its global
market share 10 40%.

Such simultaneous global product introductions give Matsushita
a competitive advantage in global markets, and are made possible
only through the Company’s vertically integrated business model.
This business model has led to many development breakthroughs,
including a signal processing “global platform” that is compatible
with differing broadcast standards in sach region and enhanced
development efficiency through simultaneous development of
processors, drivers and panels. In this way, Matsushita is able to
quickly meet the needs of customers worldwide.

Further Progress in Flat-screen TVs

Through all of the aforementioned initiatives, Matsushita has
succeeded in utilizing its comprehensive strengths to expand the
plasma TV business. Going forward, the Company will take full
advantage of its unique strengths to establish the flat-panel TV
business, particularly plasma TVs, as a growth leader both in
terms of sales and profitability. In addition, Matsushita will provide
innovative solutions, enabling easy access and use of a variety of
content in the ubiquitous networking era.

Matsushica Electric Industrial Co., Led. 2006
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Business Domain Companies and

At a Glance

Percentage of Fiscal 2006 Sales

AVC
NETWORKS

HOME

Group Companies (as of March 31, 2008)
Panasonic AVC Networks Company
Panasonic Communications Co., Ltd.
Panasonic Mobile Communications Co., Ltd.
Panasonic Automotive Systems Company
Panasonic System Solutions Company
Panasonic Shikoku Eiectronics Co., Ltd.

Main Products

Plasma, LCD and CRT TVs, DVD
recorders/players, VCRs, camcorders, digital
cameras, compact disc (CD), Mini Disc (MD)
and Secure Digital (SD) players, other personal
and home audio equipment, SD Memory
Cards and cother recordable media, optical
pickup and other electro-optic devices, PCs,
optical disc drives, copiers, printers, tele-
phones, mobile phones, facsimile equipment,
broadcast- and business-use AV equipment,
communications network-related equipment,
traffic-related systems, car AVC eguipment,
etc.

(Years ended March 31}

Sales
(Trillions of yen)

Business Domain Companies and
Group Companies (as of March 31, 2006)

Home Appliances Group
Matsushita Home Appliances Company
Matsushita Refrigeration Company
Healthcare Business Company
Lighting Company
Matsushita Ecology Systems Co., Lid.

Main Products

Refrigerators, room air conditioners, washing
machines, clothes dryers, vacuum cleaners,
electric irons, microwave ovens, rice cookers,
other cooking appliances, dish washer/dryers,
electric fans, air purifiers, electric and gas
heating equipment, electric and gas hot water
supply equipment, sanitary equipment, heaith-
care equipment, electric lamps, ventilation and
air-conditioning equipment, car air condition-
ers, compressors, vending machines, medical
equipment, gic.

Sales
(Trillions of yen)

Business Domain Companies and
Group Companies (as of March 31, 2006)

Semiconductor Company

Matsushita Battery Industrial Co., Ltd.
Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd.
Motor Company

Cthers

Main Products

Semiconductors, general components (capac-
itors, modules, circuit boards, power supply
and inductive products, circuit components,
electromechanical components, speakers,
etc.), electric motors, batteries, etc.

Sales
(Trillions of yen)

4

4

3 3
2 2
1 1
0 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 0 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 0 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Segment Profit (Loss) Segment Profit Segment Profit (Loss)
(Billions of yen) (%) (Billiens of yen) (%)  (Billions of yen) (%)
180 = Profit/sales ratio 12 180 = Profit/sales ratio 12 180 == Profit/sales ratio 12
120 g 120 / § 120 8
4 B 4 B0 4
0 0 0 0 0
60 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 4 80 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 4 100 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 7

Notes 1. Under the collaboration with MEW, the Company reorganized business and sales channels in such areas as electrical construction materials, building equipment and home appliances. Accordingly
sales results of fiscal 2005 for the Home Appliances and MEW and PanaHome categories have been reclassified to conform with fiscal 2006 sales resuits for those product categories.
2. Sales composition for each segment includes intersegment transactions.
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Business Domain Companies and
Group Companies (as of March 31, 2006)
Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd.

PanaHome Corporation

Main Products

Lighting fixtures, wiring devices, distribution
panelboards, personal-care products, health
enhancing products, water-related products,
modular kitchen systems, interior furnishing
materials, exterior finishing materials,
electronic and plastic materials, automation
controls, detached housing, rental apartment
housing, medical and nursing care facilities,
home remodeling, residential real estate, etc

Sales
(Trillions of yen)

JvC

Business Domain Combanies and
Group Companies (as of March 31, 2006)
Victor Company of Japan, Ltd.

Main Products

LCD, rear projection, plasma and CRT TVs,
VCRs, camcorders, DVD recorders/players,
CD/DVD/MD audio systems and other audio
equipment, car AV equipment, business-use
AV systems, motors and other components
for precision equipment, recordable media,
AV software for DVD, CD and video tapes,
AV furniture, etc.

Sales
(Trillions of yen)

Business Domain Companies and

OTHER

Group Companies (as of March 31, 2006)
Panasonic Factory Solutions Co., Ltd.
Matsushita Welding Systems Co., Ltd.
Others

Main Products

Electronic-components-mounting machines,
industrial robots, welding equipment, bicycles,
imported materials and components, etc.

Sales
(Trillions of yen)

4

4

4

I EEEN

|

0 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 0 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 0 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008
Segment Profit Segment Profit (Loss) Segment Profit (Loss)
(Billions of yen) (%) (Billions of yen) (%) (Billions of yen) (%)
180 == Profit/sales ratio 12 180 == Profit/sales ratio 12 180 == Profit/sales ratio 12
120 8 120 8 120 8
— e
60 4 80 4 60 4
4 0 0 ’ S 0 0 0
4 0 4 ’ 4
60 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 ) 6 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 i 60 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 i

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006

17



s and devices. In information and communications equipment, althoug

aiso carried out initiatives to strengthen its secunty systems business. I

overseas saies o1 mooile phones were down

For the future, Matsushita will levera

VIERA digital HD plasma TV featuring deeper
blacks, a high contrast ratio and a new PEAKS*
system for high picture quality

*The name PEAKS is used only in the Japanese market.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006

AVC Business

In fiscal 2006, consumer demand for products in Matsushita's AVC busi-
ness continued to shift from anealog to digital. During this period, sales
increases in digital AV products more than offset sales declines in analog
AV products. Within digital AV products, Matsushita's plasma TVs, for
which global demand is rapidly expanding, and digital cameras recorded
significant sales gains compared to last year.

As the centerpiece of Matsushita’s flat-panel TV lineup, VIERA plasma TVs
featuring high picture quality and unrivaled product performance maintained
the No.1 share in global markets. Matsushita also developed the world's
largest 103-inch full HD PDP, aiming to commercialize the product during
2006. To meet continually increasing global demand for PDPs, Matsushita
will expand production to full capacity at its third domestic plant in
Amagasaki, Japan in fiscal 2007, resulting in one of the world's largest PDP




Full lineup of LUMIX digital cameras including compact cam-
eras with built-in 28mm wide-angle lens and digital SLR cam-
eras with interchangeable lenses

The DIGA series of DVD recorders was expanded to include
these digital broadcast-ready models
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The world’s lightest notebook PCs with 14.1-inch LCD, built-
in DVD Super-Multi Drive, spill-resistant keyboards and
increased durability

(Left) SD Memory Card camcorder
(Right) SD Memory Card

manufacturing operations at 5.5 million units per year. Aiming for a
global market share of 40%, Matsushita will continue to strengthen
its leading position in the large-screen TV market.

In liquid crystal display (LCD} TVs, Matsushita will expand product
lineups in the VIERA series that feature IPS*1 technology for wider
viewing angles and unparalleled picture quality. The Company wili
focus particularly on products in the 26- to 32-inch range.

In fiscal 2008, the LUMIX series of digital cameras maintained one
of the top shares in the Japanese domestic market, with unique fea-
tures such as an Optical Image Stapilizer and advanced optical tech-
nology. Overseas sales of digital cameras also increased, particularly
in European markets. During the year, Matsushita introduced innova-
tive new products to global markets, such as the world's first 16:9
wide CCD model and an ultra-compact mode! with 28mm wide angle
lens. In fiscal 2007, Matsushita aims to achieve a global market share
of 10% by expanding product lineups and entering the digital SLR
camera market.

Matsushita expanded its DIGA series of DVD recorders with new
HD compatible models in the domestic market. The Company also
launched digital broadcast-ready models in Eurcpe ahead of com-
petitors. Furthermore, Matsushita enhanced user-friendliness by sig-
nificantly shortening times required to display program guides and
begin recording, as well as incorporating universal design concepts.
Such innovations helped Matsushita maintain its top global share
in DVD recorders. In fiscal 2007, the Company will accelerate the
development of HD compatible models, and continue to develop
user-friendly products based on universal design concepts.

Sales of the Company’s notebook PCs also increased as light-
weight, extended battery life and ruggedized design for mobile and
business applications were well-received in the market. In February
2008, Matsushita announced new models for the domestic market,
featuring the world’s longest battery running time and the lightest
model in its class. Matsushita will continue to provide high value-
added products in this category to remain an industry leader.

In digital video cameras, Matsushita will meet diversified consumer
needs by leveraging the strengths of its 3CCD and OIS technologies
to expand development of products compatible with DVD, SD
Memory Cards and other bridge media. In October 2005, Matsushita
introduced the world's smallest high-resolution SD Memory Card
camcorder. The Company also launched the first 3CCD DVD cam-
corder for global markets in February 2006. Matsushita will further
strengthen its lineups of HD compatible products to capture a greater
share in the global market.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006
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High sound quality D-Snap SD Audio players allow
users to record music without necessitating a PC

The HDD Mini Component System D-dock for high-speed
transfer of music to SD Memory Cards

The DP-C322/C262 color MFP, featuring
the world’s fastest start-up time (just 15
seconds) and significant energy savings

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006

In audio equipment, demand continues to grow for digital audio players
compatible with PCs. In April 2005, Matsushita sirnultanecusly unveiled the
D-snap Audio player, using the SD Memory Card as a bridge media, and the
world’s first mini-component stereo system featuring an SD card slot. This
represented a new way to enjoy music without the: use of a PC, and was well
received in the domestic market. In November 2005, the Company strength-
ened its product lineup with the launch of a D-dock mini-component stereo
system equipped with a hard disk drive. Matsushita will continue to launch
new products that link audic equipment through SD Memory Cards.

Consumer needs continue to increase for bridge media that link a wide
variety of products with AV recording and playback functions. This demand
led to increased sales of SD Memory Cards in fiscal 2008, particularly for
products such as flat-panel TVs, digital cameras and mobile phones. In fiscal
2007, Matsushita will launch a new 4GB SD High-Capacity (HC) Memory
Card™ to meet growing consumer needs related to the recording and stor-
age of HD video and high resolution photo images. For the future, Matsushita
will develop SDHC memory cards in increasing capacities to meet demand
for HD camcorders and other products that require high-speed, large-capaci-
ty and reliable storage media.

LLooking forward, Matsushita will strengthen its “3D" value chain strategy
consisting of DTVs, DVDs and SD Memory Cards, while reinforcing the
development of HD broadcast-ready products, Blu-ray Discs and other
HD compatible recording media. Furthermore, the Company will strengthen
its marketing activities and expand business fields, aiming to assure sustainable
growth and improved profitability.

"1 In-Plane-Switching mode system utilizes horizontally oriented liquid crystal molecules to provide for
wider viewing angles

"2 SDHC {SD High-Capacity) Memory Cards are based on the new SD Memory Card Specifications
(Version 2.00) which enable the development of SDHC Memcry Cards with capacities up to 32GB

Fixed-line Communications

In fixed-line communications, Matsushita is focusing business strategies
on home networks, encompassing in-home communications equipment,
TV door intercom systems and other products; office networks, including
communications equipment, digital color multifunction products (MFPs) and
other office products; and optical devices suppcrting these businesses.

in fiscal 2008, strong sales of telephones and facsimile machines led to an
increased global market share for these products, while a new TV door inter-
com system with wireless color monitor handsets, the first product of its type,
received market acclaim. In the U.S. market, Matsushita launched an HD-PLC*
maodule that enables high-speed data transmissicn over existing power lines
by simply plugging the module into an electrical outlet. In full-color digital
MFPs, Matsushita introduced new models boasting the world's fastest start-
up time (just 15 seconds), made possible through the Company’s unigue
induction-heating (IH) technology, which also contributes to significant energy
savings. In optical disc drives, Matsushita's slim products, including the
industry’s thinnest (9.5mm) DVD Super Multi Drive, maintained the No. 1
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The Company will pursue further growth in
these businesses by offering products supported
by advanced technologies such as broadband
and the next-generation IPv6 communications
standard.
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“HD-PLC: High Definition Power Line Communication

Image of the in-home network achieved through HD-PLC

The FOMA® P901iTV capable of
receiving terrestrial “one-segment”
digital broadcasts

The FOMA® P902i with Bluetooth®
technology for enjoying music

Mobile Communications

In mobile communications, Matsushita offers a wide range of products,
from mobile phones, where the Company maintains its position as one of
the leaders in the Japanese market, to base stations and other infrastruc-
ture equipment.

In fiscal 2006, Matsushita released a new 3G mobile phone “FOMA®*!
PO01iTV" in Japan that enables users to watch terrestrial digital broadcasting
with outstanding picture quality. Another popular product in the Japanese
market was an SD audio-compatible mobile phone “FOMA® P902i.” The new
model doubles as an SD audio player, which allows users to listen to music
without the use of any wires via the Bluetooth®*2 standard. Matsushita also
introduced new compact and lightweight mobile phones, as well as new
designer models.

Meanwhile, overseas mabile phone markets faced rapid price declines in
2.5G mobile phones, as demand continues to shift to 3G. In light of this
situation, Matsushita announced that it will phase out overseas 2.5G mobile
phone businesses, and subsequently restructure certain overseas locations,
including manufacturing operations in the Philippines and the Czech
Republic.

In the future, Matsushita will concentrate management resources on
development of post-3G, next-generation technologies, while establishing a
global mobile phone technology platform based on the Linux®*3 operating
system. Furthermore, the Company will promote global standardization of
core technologies relating to high-speed transmission of image and voice
data. In this way, Matsushita aims to improve R&D efficiency and strengthen
product competitiveness in global markets.

*1 FOMA is a registered trademark of NTT DoCoMo, Inc.

2 Bluetooth is a registered trademark of Bluetooth SIG, Inc.
*3 Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other countries.
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Automotive Electronics

Matsushita’'s automotive electronics business encompasses two
priority areas: automotive multimedia ecuipment, including car AV,
car navigation systems and cther equipment for Intelligent Transport
Systems (ITS) equipment, and components and devices that pro-
mote safety, environmental preservation and energy efficiency.

Taking the lead in the introduction of new products, Matsushita
enjoyed robust domestic sales of its Strada series of car navigation
systems with digital tuners that allow viewing of high-quality terres-
trial digital TV broadcasts. Overseas, the Company launched the
Strada series in China, a market characterized by its high-growth
potential. Driven by strong sales, particularly in North America,
Matsushita retained its leading global position in rear-seat entertain-
ment systems. Recelving high market acclaim for user-friendliness,
the Company also achieved the top position in Japan for its
Electronic Toll Collection (ETC) terminals with voice confirmation
functions. Moreover, the Company increased sales in a variety of

' . . o electrical devices including batteries for hybrid cars, which continue
e e net eceies o e of eTeskial Agi IORACasts. 1o enjoy increasedt dermand, car-mounted cameras and inteligent
picture quality keyless systems.

Leveraging the Group's broad-based advanced technologies,
Matsushita will continue to enhance comfort and convenience in the
car, while delivering products and systems that promote safety and
are environmentally friendly.

System Solutions

In the system solutions business, Matsushita conducts business in a variety of fields
including security systems, broadcasting systems and business solutions. The Company
draws on its advanced technolegies and R&D resources to deliver optimized solutions
for customers.

In fiscal 20086, Matsushita released a series of systems and products that provide total
building and area security solutions, utilizing an Integrated [P Network Platform* devel-
oped in close collaboration with MEW. Within this product range, the Company's
megapixel network camera received market acclaim for outstanding picture quality. With
Network security megapixel camera from the establishment of an Integrated IP Network Platform Center in October 2005,
the i-pro series realizing high-quality Matsushita is accelerating business development of comprehansive security businesses.
image surveillance over IP Networks L . . N

Other highlights include digital set-top boxes for cable TV, demand for which is increas-
ing thanks to the spread of terrestrial digital broadcasting in Japan. Other products,
including payment terminals for logistics industries and product tracking systems, also
contributed to increased sales,

Going forward, Matsushita will focus on three main areas in an effort to further
expand its system solutions business: Security for the ubiquitous networking society;
Cross-media to support the growing trend toward broadcasting and communications
integration; and Mobility, including IC card electronic settlement and other systemns that
support a wide range of businesses.

HDD equipped CATV digital set-top box

* This industry-first platform promotes increased functionality and efficiency by combining AV/information systems
for video security and access control with equipment systems.
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The world’s first tilted-drum washer/dryer to
feature a heat-pump drying system

Househoid Appliances

In household appliances, Matsushita’s main business areas include washing machines,
vacuum cleaners, dishwasher/dryers, microwave ovens, rice cockers, induction-heating
(IH) cooking equipment, sanitary equipment and electric heating equipment.

In fiscal 2006, Matsushita continued to enjoy favorable sales of tilted-drum
washer/dryers, while combination steamer/microwave ovens achieved high sales growth.

Regarding tilted-drum washer/dryers, Matsushita introduced the world's first model to
employ a heat-pump drying system that uses no heater or cooling water during the dry
cycle, thereby achieving significant energy- and water-savings. i

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006
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Combination steamer/microwave oven
equipped with a “Healthy Course” feature
that cuts fat and salt in half
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Washing machine production plant
in Hangzhou, China

‘-"( [ . LE J

This air conditioner requires no cleaning or filter
change for 10 years

This CO2 water heating system is an
industry leader in energy efficiency

Cordless carbon dioxide surgical dental laser
with rechargeable batteries for ease of use
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In response to increased awareness about personal health, Matsushita launched a
new steamer/microwave oven in June 2005 that combines steam, microwave and
conventional oven cooking functions to eliminate excess fat and salt from foods. This
product was a hit in the domestic market, contributing to increased market share. Then,
in Aprit 2006, Matsushita launched a new model that enables two-tiered adjustment of fat
and salt levels to meet various preferences and health requirerrents.

Matsushita also launched new products in IH cooking equipment that are compatible
with cooking ware of any metal type, while expanding the IH linsup with more affordable
and easy-to-use products featuring universal design.

For the future, Matsushita will continue to focus on high-growth products, including
IH cooking equipment and dishwasher/dryers. Overseas, Matsushita began preduction
of tilted-drum washer/dryers at its Hangzhou, China plant in August 2005, aiming to
increase production capacity in China and achieve further growth,

Refrigeration, Air Conditioning and Heating

Matsushita manufactures a wide range of consumer- and industry-use products includ-
ing air conditioners and refrigerators, water heating systems that use carbon dioxide as a
natural refrigerant, and vending machines. In addition, Matsushta is also intensifying
efforts in key devices such as compressors.

In fiscal 2006, sales of air conditioners, refrigerators and water heating systems
remained strong. Air conditioners sold especially well in comparison with the previous fis-
cal year. This was achieved through popular models equipped with automatic filter clean-
ing and dust removal functions, and collaborative efforts to utilize MEW sales channels.
As a result, Matsushita achieved the top share in the domestic market. The Company
further expanded its product lineup with the December 2005 release of a new model that
requires no cleaning or filtter change for 10 years.

In refrigerators, Matsushita introduced a popular new model with 50% more freezer
space, made possible through the use of a compact and lightweight compressor.

In CO2 water heating systems, the Company launched new products with improved
heat exchange ratios and floor heating functions. By strengthening product competitive-
ness and expanding product lineups, Matsushita maintained the top share in Japan.

Matsushita will focus on further enhancing added-value and strengthening cost-com-
petitiveness in key devices, such as compressors for air conditioners and refrigerators, in
order to maintain a leading global market share.

Healthcare Systems

Matsushita’s healthcare systems business focuses on daily health management, with
products ranging from blood glucose monitoring systems, ultrasonic diagnostic equip-
ment and laser devices, to in-home healthcare solutions.

During the year under review, responding to continually increasing demand for blood
glucose monitoring systems both in Japan and overseas markets, Matsushita maintained
the top share in domestic sales and expanded production of blood glucose monitoring
sensors to further increase overseas sales. Meanwhile, in medical laser systems,
Matsushita introduced the world’s first cordiess rechargeable carbon dioxide surgical
laser for dental use and expanded overseas businesses, resulting in increased overall
sales in medical laser devices.




The Pa-look Premier, extended-life fluorescent lamps

This air purifier uses ultra-fine ion particles gen-
erated by moisture in the air to inhibit unpleas-
ant odors and bacteria buildup in fabric fibers
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This home sauna employs a fine mist,
allowing users to read or watch TV

In the future, Matsushita will accelerate product development and continue to intro-
duce innovative new products, while reinforcing existing businesses. Furthermore,
recognizing the convergence of medical services and in-home healthcare, Matsushita will
contribute to the realization of ubiguitous healthcare by providing reliable and affordable
high-quality healthcare products at a reasonable cost.

Lighting

The lighting business consists of general lighting products, such as fluorescent and
incandescent lamps, optical devices for LCD backlights and electronic flash units for
cameras and related equipment.

In fiscal 2008, Matsushita significantly increased its market share in consumer-use
fluorescent lamps. This strong performance was underpinned by the new Pa-look
Premier fluorescent lamps with extended lifetime and spiral-shaped compact fluorescent
lamps. Fueled by an increase in new home construction, Matsushita also enjoyed sales
growth in mini krypton bulb incandescent lamps. These factors collectively contributed to
favorable sales in general lighting products. In optical devices, Matsushita outperformed
the industry in sales growth of LCD backlights.

Matsushita will continue to focus on the development of value-added products, while
emphasizing extended lifespan and energy efficiency. The Company also strives to devel-
op new products by integrating the business strategies of its lamp business with MEW’s
lighting fixture business. Through these efforts, the Company aims to further increase
sales and market share in consumer-use products. In addition, Matsushita will strengthen
its competitive position in the LCD backlight industry by further improving yield rates and
production capacity.

Environmental Systems

The environmental systems business consists of ventilating fans and air purifiers, as well
as an environmental engineering business for industrial wastewater treatment sclutions.

In fiscal 2006, overseas sales were particularly strong for ventilation systems, due
mainly to the introduction of new products in North America as well as increased sales in
the Middle East. In the domestic ventilating fan market, Matsushita achieved an industry
first with total production to date exceeding 100 million units in February 2008. At the
same time, the Company released a micro-mist sauna for the bathroom, attracting
significant market acclaim in Japan.

In October 2005, combining the Company’s black-box technologies with those of
MEW, Matsushita launched an ion-generating air purifier, which uses ultra-fine ion parti-
cles that penetrate deep into fabric fibers to inhibit bacteria buildup and eliminate
unpleasant odors.

Going forward, Matsushita will achieve advances in function, energy-efficiency and
compact design in ventilation and home environment systems. Matsushita will also utilize
its expertise in the environmental engineering business, where the Company will focus on
water, soil and air purification. To enhance cost competitiveness in global markets,
Matsushita will take advantage of extensive overseas operations, including its principal
factory in Guangdong, China,

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006
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The Integrated Platform, used in a broad
range of digital electronics, from mobile
phones to personal and home AV systems

Semiconductors

Placing particular emphasis on system LSls, Matsushita is expanding the semiconductor business in
five main areas: DTVs, optical disc-related products, mobile communications, image sensors and
automotive devices.

Semiconductor sales in fiscal 2006 were mostly unchanged from the previous fiscal year. Despite
strong sales for applications in flat-panel TVs and DVD drives for PCs, results were negatively
impacted by decreased demand for analog AV products, including CRT TVs and VCRs, and price
declines in digital AV products, such as DVD players.

From fiscal 2006, Matsushita expanded applications for digital products featuring an Integrated
Platform that combines software and hardware resources across differing product categories to
increase R&D efficiency and improve design quality. The first product to feature this Integrated
Platform was the SD camcorder launched in October 2005. This was followed in March 2006 by a
FOMA® mobile phone that enables users to view terrestrial digital TV broacdicasts. Going forward,
Matsushita will expand the use of this platform to applications for plasma TVs and DVD recorders.
Meanwhile, at its new plant in Uozu, Japan, Matsushita became the world's first company to

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006



The world’s largest mass-produced
300mm (left) and 200mm silicon wafers,
manufactured at the Uozu Plant

High-power, long-lasting Oxyride and
alkaline dry batteries

Lithium-ion batteries with high energy
output

~ P

@ Digital TV tuner

@ Film capacitor used in hybrid
automobiles

@ High-fidelity Sound Slim speakers for
flat-panel TVs

@ Chip tuner for mobile equipment

® Gyrosensors

Low noise, high efficiency brushless
motors equipped with a drive circuit, for
use with air conditioning equipment

commence mass production of 65-nanometer process system LSIs using 300mm wafers, thereby
achieving significant improvements in production efficiency.

For the future, Matsushita will further expand product applications featuring the Integrated
Platform. The Company will also increase production of 65-nanometer process system LSIs and
accelerate product development toward a 45-nanometer process, while focusing on the system LSI
business for Blu-ray Disc Drives.

Batteries

The battery business consists of primary batteries, including dry batteries, and rechargeable batteries,
such as lithium-ion batteries.

In fiscal 2006, Matsushita expanded global marketing initiatives for Oxyride, a dry battery that
provides increased power output and extended battery life. Oxyride batteries are now sold in 35
countries worldwide, attracting significant market acclaim, particularly for use in digital equipment. In
rechargeable batteries, the Company continued 1o focus management resources on lithium-ion
batteries. In this area, Matsushita is developing products that feature compact design and enhanced
overall performance, allowing extended use in such product applications as notebock PCs, mobile
phones and other mobile equipment. Matsushita also developed new lithium-ion batteries with higher
capacity and the industry’s highest energy density.

In the future, Matsushita will develop longer-lasting primary batteries including new Oxyride and
alkaline dry batteries. Through collaboration with Intel Corporation, the Company is developing next-
generation longer-lasting rechargeable lithium-ion batteries for notebook PCs. Furthermore,
Matsushita Is actively conducting R&D in future power source fields such as compact fuel cell battery
systems.

Electronic Devices

The electronic devices business covers a wide range of products in growth markets including digital
AV, information communications and automative electronics. Matsushita strives to develop high
value-added products in seven priority areas: capacitors, modules, printed circuit boards, power
supply and inductive products, circuit components, electromechanical components and speakers.
In fiscal 2008, Matsushita strengthened its lineup in these priority areas with products including
digital TV tuners that enable exceptional picture quality, high-fidelity speakers for flat-panel TVs,
weight sensors for protective airbags and multilayer printed circuit boards (ALIVH: Any Layer Inner
Via Hole} facilitating compact design. The Company also saw continued strong sales of circuit
components for AV equipment and electromechanical components such as automaobile switches.
Going forward, Matsushita will continue to introduce competitive V-products such as film capaci-
tors used in hybrid automobiles, chip tuners for mobile equipment and gyrosensors. The electronic
devices division will also strengthen its collaboration with the Company’s finished product and semi-
conductor divisions, aiming to create value-added products and further enhance profitability.

Electric Motors

In electric motors, Matsushita supplies products that meet growing market needs in terms of efficiency,
noise reduction, compact design and energy conservation. These motors are incorporated into vari-
ous products, including home appliances, AV equipment and industrial equipment.

Fiscal 2006 saw strong sales of power brushless motors for document production equipment,
and, in North America, fan motors for refrigerators. Matsushita also accelerated the implementation
of its value chain strategy to facilitate close cooperation with finished product divisions, supplying
motors for not only conventional products, but also new products such as tilted-drum washer/dryers
and DVD recorders, as well as commencing production of compressor motors in China.

For the future, Matsushita will develop brushless DC motors for home appliances, while launching
high value-added products such as FA servo motors. The Company will also develop core technolo-
gies and products in order to create efficient, extended life motors with minimum environmental
impact.
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MIEW AND PANAFRONMIE

MEW

Narrow-pitch connectors for mobile phones

The Eco-life Home is designed on the concepts
of health and comfort

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006

MEW manufactures, sells, installs and provides services related to a wide variety of
products. These include electrical construction materials, home appliances, bullding
products, electronic and plastic materials and automation controls.

In fiscal 2008, MEW, through collaboration with Matsushita, attracted market
acclaim with new Collaboration V-products in housing materials and equipment,
including bathroom systems, modular kitchens and modular furniture systems for
home theaters. In electrical construction materials, sales grew steadily in energy-
efficient lighting fixtures featuring audio feedback functions, along with household
fire-alarm devices. With growing consumer interest in health and beauty, MEW also
received significant market acclaim in its home appliances business for aesthetic
products and home fitness machines. Furthermore, MEW recorded increased sales
in various key areas such as electronics and plastics, including materials for high
heat resistance multilayer printed circuit boards, molding compounds for car-mounted
components and automation controls for applications in mobile phones and
automotive devices.

Toward the future, MEW will leverage technologies in home appliances, information
equipment, wiring products and building products to create innovative new applica-
tions. At the same time, MEW will offer total home solutions for comfortable living that
reflect customer needs related to energy efficiency, the environment, security and
healthcare, while further developing the home remodeling market through housing
materials and equipment operations. Overseas, MEW will accelerate strategies by
strengthening electronic and plastic materials, automation controls and lighting-related
devices, mainly in China and other Asian countries.

PanaHome

To provide living spaces that are friendly to both people and the environment,
PanaHome focuses product strategies on the “Eco-life Home” concept, which empha-
sizes safety, security, health, comfort and high energy efficiency. The Company is
developing its main businesses of detached housing, asset and property management
and home remodeling based on this "Eco-life” concept.

In fiscal 2006, PanaHome’s detached housing business introduced homes with
new photocatalyst technologies. These technologies were previously used on external
wall tiles, and are now applied to windows as well. PanaHome also began marketing
“Eco-life Home,” which is particularly suited to cold weather regions. In the asset and
property management business, PanaHome met the diversified needs of varied tenant
segments, established a structure for providing design recommendations for rental
homes, and augmented business proposals to landowners. PanaHome also promoted
consulting-style marketing in the home remodeling business, proposing living spaces
that incorporate entirely new concepts.

Looking ahead, PanaHome will further promote the “Eco-life” concept in concert
with efforts to create optimal living spaces through home maintenance and renovation
services, while contributing to local communities and society through various medical
and welfare businesses. PanaHome will thus secure sustainable growth by proposing
living environments in tune with customer lifestyles.



Everio series of HDD camcorders

High-speed modular mounter

JVC

Renowned for technologies that deliver high picture and sound quality, Victor
Company of Japan, Ltd. (JVC) is a leading company in both AV hardware and enter-
tainment software. JVC is committed to instilling in customers a lasting impression
through audio and visual quality.

Based on the Company's “Only One” products concept, JVC launched several new
products, highlighted by HD-ILA hybrid projection TVs* and new products in the Everic
series of compact HDD camcorders. Despite such efforts, business resulits in fiscal
2008 slipped below the level of the previous fiscal year, due mainly to stagnant sales
of DVD recorders and audio eguipment. Under these circumstances, with the aim of
securing growth and increased profitability, JVC accelerated structural reforms,
including dissolution of its in-house company system in favor of a product category
system, and the closure/integration of certain demestic and overseas locations.

For the future, JVC has identified five priority business areas: HD-ILA hybrid projec-
tion TVs, displays, camcorders, car electronics and network AV systems. Focusing on
these priority business areas, JVC wil develop unique products and boost sales by
reviewing product development processes and reinforcing marketing activities in
Japan and overseas.

* HD-ILA hybrid projection TV is the product name for JVC's D-ILA equipped rear projection TVs soid
overseas.

Factory Automation

In the factory automation (FA) business, Matsushita provides optimal solutions in elec-
tronic component mounting, semiconductor mounting and manufacturing processes.
Responding to the ever-diversified needs of its customers at the factory, Matsushita
provides innovative manufacturing processes in circuit manufacturing technology.

In fiscal 2008, Matsushita recorded steady sales growth in its electronic component
mounting business thanks to high-speed modular placement machines that boast the
industry’s highest productivity. In the semiconductor mounting business, LCD panel
bonders, high-speed die bonders and plasma cleaners achieved market acclaim for
precision and productivity. Furthermore, Matsushita developed the Integrated Process
Assembly Cell (IPAC), the industry’s first modular line that combines electronic
component and semiconductor mounting in one platform.

In the future, the Company aims to maintain its leading position in the global elec-
tronic component mounting field by focusing on general-purpose modular placement
machines. In addition, Matsushita will market the IPAG series to further accelerate
growth in the FA business.
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R&D and Intellectual Properties

To support the creation of a ubiquitous networking
society and coexistence with the global environment,
Matsushita is engaged in a broad range of R&D
activities, including nanotechnologies and other
advanced research; digital network software
technologies for AV equipment and next-generation
mobile communications; component and device
technologies such as plasma displays and media
drives for next-generation high-capacity Blu-ray Discs;
environmental technologies such as fuel cell co-
generation systems; and various manufacturing
technologies.

By coordinating business, technology and
intellectual property strategies, Matsushita seeks to
become a technology- and intellectual property-
criented company that enhances competitiveness
with unigue technologies.
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R&D Strategies

Matsushita recorded ¥564.8 billion in R&D expenditures in fiscal
2008. This investment was used to strengthen R&D in priority
areas including the Integrated Platform, full HD PDPs, household
fuel cell cogeneration systems, and High Definition Power Line
Communications (HD-PLC).

The Company is pushing ahead with its value chain strategy in
order to maximize synergy benefits across a wide range of busi-
ness domains, Components and devices are the key to adding
value to finished products, whereby R&D which produces high-
performance and differentiated compaonents and devices is essen-
tial. In this respect, Matsushita creates value-added products not
only through in-house production, but also through a sophisticated
network of cooperation between materials, components and
devices, and finished product divisions. In digital cameras, for
example, comprehensive integration of lens, image sensor and
system LS| technologies has resulted in the development of prod-
ucts with compact design and enhanced picture quality.




One of Matsushita’s main strengths is in its ability to manufac-
ture system LSIs, which are the determining factor in the com-
petitiveness of finished products. With the progress of product
convergence and networking in the digital networking era, com-
patibility is crucial. Matsushita therefore developed an Integrated
Platform that can be used in a variety of products, and will con-
tinue to utilize this platform to add value to finished products,
improve efficiency in software development and achieve
advances in design guality.

At the same time, the Company has drawn up a vision for the
next decade in order to guide the selection and concentration of
R&D projects. In addition, Matsushita will efficiently allocate R&D
resources through continuous investment in priority areas, while
actively leveraging R&D initiatives cutside of the Company through
collaboration with other companies and academic institutions.

In fiscal 2007, Matsushita will focus on priority R&D projects,
including broader application of the Integrated Platform across
product lines, high-resolution PDP development, Blu-ray Discs
that usher in a new era of digital picture quality through high-
speed and high-capacity technologies, fuel cell cogeneration
systems that contribute to environmental preservation, and
healthcare infrastructures and products to make healthcare at
home a reality. Matsushita will also pursue further R&D efficiency
and quality to meet all of the Company’s targets.

Intellectual Properties Strategy

Because the results of Matsushita’'s R&D initiatives are evaluated
in the form of intellectual property rights, they represent valuable
management assets that will generate earnings in the future. The
Company places a high priority on these intellectual property
rights, which help to secure and maintain Matsushita’s competi-
tive edge in a wide range of businesses. For this reason,
Matsushita is pursuing an intellectual properties strategy that will
consistently contribute to improved business results.

Through proactive patent applications on a global scale,
Matsushita maintained its top patent application position in
Japan in 2005, and also secured a leading position overseas.
The Company also effectively utilized its previously patented
assets in a variety of ways—either by protecting differentiated
technologies or using those of other companies in cross-licens-
ing agreements—in order to reinforce competitiveness.

Matsushita continues to actively pursue the global patenting of
designs and trademarks. Through the simultaneous launch of
VIERA flat-panel TVs, Matsushita successfully patented the design
in 25 countries, and the trademark in more than 50 countries.

In fiscal 2007, Matsushita will further intensify efforts to
enhance earnings by actively applying for patents, design and
trademark rights on a global basis, while also using intellectual
properties in a strategic manner,

Integrated Platform Incorporated into
Consumer Products for the First Time

Kunihiko Fujii
Group Manager, System Development Group 3,
Strategic Semiconductor Development Center

“The first products equipped with the
Integrated Platform were the SDR-S100 and
SDR-3300 SD Memory Card camcorders.
Since camcorders, digital cameras and other personal AV products
are nearly always battery-powered, a significant issue facing the
industry is how to control power consumption. The Integrated
Platform plays an essential role, solving this troublesome issue by
simuitaneously providing high-quality AV functions and low power
consumption. The Integrated Platform will also enable the common
use and reuse of software and hardware assets across product
segments. In SD Memory Card camcorders, for example, technolo-
gies for high picture quality accumulated in the development of
DIGA DVD recorders were adopted in the Integrated Platform. In the
future, products equipped with the Integrated Platform will be able
to easily reuse such technologies.”

Global Patents Held

Number of patents held in Japan Number of patents held overseas
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Basic Intellectual Properties Strategy
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Corporate Governance

Basic Concept of Corporate Governance

Matsushita employs a corporate auditors system in
which the Board of Directors, Corporate Auditors
and the Board of Corporate Auditors monitor and
audit management activities performed by
Directors. Matsushita has established the following
management system based on the implementation
of autonomous management in each business
domain and the Company’s corporate governance
system.

Corporate Governance Structure

The Board of Directors and Executive Officer System
Matsushita's Board of Directors is composed of 17 directors, two of
whom are Qutside Directors, as of June 28, 2008. In accordance with
the Company Law of Japan and relevant laws and ordinances (collec-
tively, the “Company Law”), the Board of Directors has ultimate
responsibilities for administration of the Company's affairs and moni-
toring of the execution of business by Directors. Under its basic phi-
losophy of contributing to society as a public entity, Matsushita has
long been committed to enhancing corporate governance, and was
one of the first Japanese companies to invite Qutside Directors to
serve on its Board of Directors.

In fiscal 2004, Matsushita implemented reforms to establish an opti-
mum management and governance structure tailored to the Group’s
business domain-based organizational structure. Under this structure,
Matsushita has empowered each of its business domain companies
through delegation of authority. At the same time, the Company
employs an Executive Officer System to provide for the execution of
business at various domestic and overseas Matsushita Group compa-
nigs. This system facilitates the development of optimum corporate
strategies that integrate the Group’s comprehensive strengths.

in addition, Matsushita realigned the role and structure of the Board
of Directors to ensure swift and strategic decision-making, as well as
the optimum monitoring of Groupwide matters. Specifically, the Board
of Directors concentrates on corporate strategies and the supervision
of business domain companies, while Exacutive Officers handie
responsibilities relating to day-to-day operations. Taking into consider-
ation the diversified scope of its business operations, Matsushita has
opted to maintain a system where Executive Officers, who are most
familiar with the specifics of thair respective operations, take an active
part in the Board of Directors. Furthermore, to clarify the responsibili-
ties of Directors and create a more dynamic organization, the
Company has limited the term of each Director to one year.

Corporate Auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors
Pursuant to the Company Law, Matsushita has established a Board
of Corporate Auditors, which monitors the status of corporate gover-
nance and keeps abreast of the day-to-day activities of management,
including the Board of Directors. Corporate Auditors participate in
shareholder meetings and Board of Directors meetings, and have

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd, 2006

legal authority to receive reports from Directors, employees and
accounting auditors. Full-time Senior Auditors also attend important
management meetings and conduct checks in order to ensure effec-
tive monitoring. To augment internal auditing functions in business
domain companies, Matsushita has assigned Full-time Auditors at
each internal divisional company to assist in audits by Corporate
Auditors. The Company aiso inaugurated regular Group Auditor
Meetings chaired by the Chairman of the Board of Corporate Auditors
of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. to enhance collaboration
between the Company’s Corporate Auditors, Full-time Auditors of
internal divisional companies and Corperate Auditors of the
Company’s subsidiaries. In addition, through timely reporting and
other cooperative activities with Corporate Auditors, the Internal Audit
Group makes continucus efforts to enhance the overall effectiveness
of audits.

Internal Control Systems

Compliance

In 1992, Matsushita formulated its Code of Conduct, a set of guide-
lines explaining the Company’s business philosophy in an easy-to-
understand manner. After a revision in 1998, the code was again
amended to the Code of Conduct of the Matsushita Group in January
2005, making it more applicable to global and Groupwide operations
from the standpoint of corporate social responsibility (CSR). The code
now applies to all Directors, Executive Officers and employees of the
Matsushita Group. Moreover, Directors and Executive Officers in
charge of ensuring observance of the code were appointed at each
Group company. In February 2004, the Company established a Code
of Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers. Matsushita also set up a
Global Corporate Business Ethics Hotline, enabling all employees to
receive advice on work-related and other matters, as well as guidance
on work-related laws and guestions about violations of corporate
ethics. In July 2005, the Company also established a system whereby
the Board of Corporate Auditors can directly receive concerns from
employees in regards to accounting or auditing irregularities.

In March 2008, the Company established a Corporate Compliance
Committee chaired by the President and composed of Directors,
Executive Officers and Corporate Auditors. Matsushita also compiled
an in-house handbook called the Corporate Compliance Guide, a
concise guidebook explaining relevant rules and regulations to
employees., Matsushita is thus making concerted efforts to increase
awareness about rules and regulations through the handbook and via
the Company intranet.

Risk Management

In additicn to centralized collection and analysis of information,
Matsushita maintains a management cycle that links risk management
activities with other business management initiatives. in April 2005,
Matsushita established the Global and Group (G&G) Risk Management
Committee, consisting of Directors and Executive Officers from various
departments of the Corporate Headquarters. Matsushita also estab-
lished similar functional committees at business domain companies
and subsidiaries to formulate appropriate countermeasures on a global
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and group basis. Specifically, all business domain companies and sub-
sidiaries of the Matsushita Group assess risks once a year, coinciding
with the creation of annual business plans. The G&G Risk
Management Committee then evaluates risks according to priority,
and directs each business domain company on appropriate counter-
measures. Matsushita will make comprehensive efforts in risk manage-
ment to recognize business risks through the above-mentioned
process and take countermeasures that protect the interests of all
stakeholders, while helping the Company achieve its business goals.

Information Security

With respect to information security, in January 2004, Matsushita
established the Corporate Information Security Division to effectively
manage and control confidential corporate and private individual infor-
mation and promote compliance across the Group’s global network.

internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Matsushita has documented its internal control system, designed to
ensure reliability in financial reporting, ranging from the control infra-
structure to actual internal control activities. In fiscal 2005, the
Company reinforced its internal controls by implementing self-checks
and self-assessment programs, in addition to regular internal auditing
at each business domain company. Matsushita has also appointed an
Internal Auditing Manager at each business domain company who
audits the compliance status and effectiveness of internal controls.
The Corporate Internal Auditing Group supervises these activities in
order to ensure the religbility of each company's financial reporting.

Information Disclosure Structure and Execution of
Accountability

To enhance transparency and ensure accountability, the Company
established the Disclosure Committes, consisting of general or
executive managers from departments that handle relevant information.
The Committee checks the propriety of statements and descriptions
in the Company's annual securities report submitted to the Japanesse
regulatory authorities and the annual reperts including Form 20-F,
while confirming the appropriateness and effectiveness of disclosure
controls and procedures.

Executive Officers
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Note: Certain Directors concurrently serve as Executive Officers.

Shareholder-oriented Management Initiatives

With the aim of maximizing shareholder value, on April 28, 2006, the
Board of Directors decided to continue the Company’s policy to
proactively provide retums to shareholders and implement a policy
toward large-scale purchases of its shares, in line with a policy of
shareholder-oriented management.

For fiscal 2007, ending March 31, 2007, the Company pians to
increase total dividends per share to ¥30, compared with ¥20 in fiscal
2006. Regarding share repurchases, the Company plans to repur-
chase its own shares up to 50 million shares for a maximum of ¥100
billion, to enhance shareholder value per share.

Under the basic philosophy that shareholders should make final
decisions regarding large-scale purchases of Matsushita shares, suffi-
cient information should be provided through the Board of Directors
to shareholders if a large-scale purchase is to be conducted. Under
the above-mentioned basic philosophy, the Board of Directors previ-
ously adopted a rule applicable to large-scale purchasers who intend
to acquire 20% or more of all voting rights of the Company. This rule
requires that (j) a large-scale purchaser provide sufficient information
to the Board of Directors before a large-scale purchase is to be con-
ducted and (i) after all required information is provided, the Board of
Directors should be allowed a sufficient period of time during which it
will assess, examine, negotiate, form an opinion and seek alternatives
for the sake of sharsholders. In the event of non-compliance with
such rules by a prospective large-scale purchaser, the Board of
Directors may take countermeasures to protect the interest of all
shareholders, by referring to advice from outside professionals, such
as lawyers and financial advisors, and fully respecting the opinions of
outside directors and corporate auditors.

The Company announced the details of this policy on April 28,
2006 as the policy toward large-scale purchases of Matsushita
shares (Enhancement of Shareholder Value [ESV] plan).

For more information, please visit the Company’s Web site:
http://panasonic.co jp/corp/news/official.data/data.dir/
en0B0428-6/en060428-6.html.
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Significant Differences in Corporate Governance Practices between Matsushita
and U.S. Companies Listed on the NYSE
Companies listed on the NYSE must comply with certain standards regarding corporate governance under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual. However, listed companies that are foreign private issuers, such as Matsushita, are permitted to follow home country practice
in lieu of certain provisions of Section 303A.

The following table shows the significant differences between the corporate governance practices followed by U.S. listed companies under
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed Company Manual and those followed by Matsushita.

Corporate Governance Practices
Foliowed by NYSE-listed U.S.
Companies

Corporate Governance Practices Followed by Matsushita

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have
a majority of directors meeting the
independence requirements under
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual.

The Company Law does not reguire Japanese joint stock corporations with corporate auditors
such as Matsushita to have any independent directors on its board of directors. The Company
Law has provisions for an “cutside director,” whose definition is similar to, but not the same as, an
independent director under the NYSE Listed Company Manual. An “outside director” is defined as
a director of the company who does not engage or has not engaged in the execution of business
of the company or its subsidiaries as a director of any of these corporations, and who does not
serve or has not served as an executive officer, manager or in any other capacity as an employee
of the company or its subsidiaries. A Japanese joint stock corporation with corporate auditors,
such as Matsushita, is nct obliged under the Company Law to have any outside directors on its
board of directors, and is reguired only to disclose whether each director is an outside director or
not and certain other matters concerning the outside director. Matsushita had two (2) outside
directors as of June 28, 2006.

The tasks of supervising the administration of the company’s affairs are assigned not only to the
board of directors but also to corporate auditors, as more fully described below.

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have
an audit committee with responsibili-
ties described under Section 303A of
the NYSE Listed Company Manual,
including those imposed by Rule 10A-
3 under the U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. The audit committee must
be composed entirely of independent
directors, and the audit committee
must have at least three members and
satisfy the requirements of Rule 10A-3
under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act
of 1934,

A Japanese joint stock corporation is not required to have any of audit, nominating and compensa-
tion committees, except for a “joint stock corporation with specified committees,” which is a corpo-
rate governance system that started in April 2003 and which may be adopted by Japanese joint
stock corporations meeting certain criteria.

Most Japanese joint stock corporations, including Matsushita, employ a corporate governance
system based on corporate auditors, where the tasks of supervising the administration of the
company's affairs are assigned not only to the board of directors but also to corporate auditors who
are appointed at a general meeting of shareholders, and who are separate and independent from
the board of directors. Each of the corporate auditors sitting on the board of corporate auditors
has a statutory duty to supervise the administration of the company’s affairs by directors.

Under the Company Law, at least half of Matsushita’s corporate auditors are required to be
“outside corporate auditors” who must meet additional independence requirements. An “outside
corporate auditor” is defined as a corporate auditor who does not serve or has not served as a
director, accounting counselor, executive officer, manager or in any other capacity as an employee
of the company or any of its subsidiaries prior to the appointment.

Under the Company Law, Matsushita is required to have at least three (3) Corporate Auditors.
Currently, Matsushita has five (5} corporate auditors, of which three (3) are outside corporate audi-
tors as of June 28, 2006. Each Corporate Auditor of Matsushita has a four-year term. In contrast,
the term of each Director of Matsushita is one year.

Corporate auditors are obliged to attend the meetings of the board of directors and express
their opinion at the meetings if necessary. A corporate auditor has a statutory duty to supervise
the administration of the company’s affairs by directors. The board of corporate auditors and each
corporate auditor are required to prepare respectively their audit report of Matsushita each fiscal
year. Copies of the audit reports are included in the appendix to the convocation notice of the
ordinary general meeting of shareholders.

A corporate auditor also has a statutory duty to examine the financial statements of Matsushita
and the board of corporate auditors receives auditors' reports from an accounting auditor (a certi-
fied public accountant or an accounting firm). The board of corporate auditors has the right to
request that Matsushita’s directors submit a proposal for dismissal of an accounting auditor to a
general meeting of shareholders. The board of corporate auditors also has the right to directly dis-
miss an accounting auditor under certain conditions. Matsushita's directors must obtain the con-
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Corporate Governance Practices
Followed by NYSE-listed U.S.
Companies

Corporate Governance Practices Followed by Matsushita

sent of its board of corporate auditors in order to submit a proposal for election, dismissal and/or
non-reelection of an accounting auditor to a general meeting of shareholders.

With respect to the requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934 relating to listed company audit committees, Matsushita relies on an exemption under that
rule which is available to foreign private issuers with a board of corporate auditors meeting
certain requirements.

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have
a nominating/corporate governance
committee with responsibilities
described under Section 303A of the
NYSE Listed Company Manual. The
nominating/corporate governance
committee must be composed entirely
of independent directors.

Under the Company Law, Matsushita's directors must be elected and/or dismissed at a general
meeting of shareholders. The board of directors nominates and submits a proposal for election
of directors to a general meeting of shareholders. The board of directors does not have the power
to fill vacancies thereon.

Matsushita’s corporate auditors must also be elected and/or dismissed at a general meeting of
shareholders. Matsushita’s directors must obtain the consent of the board of corporate auditors in
order to submit a proposal for election and/or dismissal of a corporate auditor to a general meeting
of shareholders. Each of the corporate auditors has the right to state his/her opinion concerning the
election, dismissal and/or resignation of any corporate auditor, including himself/herself, at a general
meeting of shareholders. The Board of corporate auditors is also empowered to adopt a resolution
requesting that Matsushita’s directors submit a proposal for election of specific person as a corpo-
rate auditor to a general meeting of shargholders.

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must have
a compensation committee with
responsibilities described under
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual. The compensation
committee must be composed entirely
of independent directors.

Under the Company Law, the maximum amounts of remunerations, including equity compensation
such as stock options, bonuses, and other financial benefits given in consideration of performance
of duties (the “remunerations, etc.”) of directors and corporate auditors of Japanese joint stock cor-
porations, except for a “joint stock corporation with specified committees,” must be approved at a
general meeting of sharehalders. Matsushita must alsc obtain the approval at a general meeting of
shareholders to change such maximum amounts. Therefore, the remunerations, etc. of the directors
and corporate auditors are subject to the approval of shareholders.

The maximum total amounts of remunerations for Directors and Corporate Auditors of
Matsushita is therefore determined by a resolution at a general meeting of shareholders, and thus
remunerations of the Directors and Corporate Auditors of Matsushita are under the oversight of
shareholders. The remuneration amount for each Director is determined by Matsushita’s
Representative Directors who are delegated to make such determination by the Board of Directors,
and the amount of remuneration for each Corporate Auditor is determined upon discussions
amongst the Corporate Auditors. The total amounts of bonuses of the Directors and Corporate
Auditors are approved at a general meeting of shareholders.” Retirement allowances must also be
approved at a general meeting of shareholders when given 1o retiring Directors and/or Corporate
Auditors of Matsushita within a specified range according to Matsushita’s prescribed standard.”

From the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, the amounts of the remunerations and bonuses of
Directors reflect each individual’s performance based on CCM (Capital Cost Management) and cash
flows, within the range of the approved total referred to above. This new remuneration system is
intended to promote continuous growth and enhance profitability on a long-term basis for the
Matsushita group as a whole, while ultimately increasing shareholder value.

1 Under provisions of the former Commercial Code, approval at a general meeting of shareholders was obtained for a proposal relating to the
appropriation of profit.

"2 At the general meeting of shareholders held on June 28, 2008, the retirement allowance system for Directors and Corporate Auditors was
abolished by a resolution thereof,

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must gen-
erally obtain shareholder approval
with respect to any equity compensa-
tion plan.

Pursuant to the Company Law, if a Japanese joint stock corporation, such as Matsushita, desires
to adopt an equity compensation plan under which stock acquisition rights are granted on special-
ly favorable conditions (except where such rights are granted to all shareholders on a pro rata
basis), such plan must be approved by a “special resolution” of a general meeting of shareholders
that satisfies the prescribed quorum. (In the case of Matsushita, such quorum is one-third of the
total number of voting rights and the approval of at least two-thirds of the voting rights represented
at the meeting is required as provided by Matsushita’s Articles of Incorporation pursuant to the
Company Law.}
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Risk Factors

Primarily because of the business areas and
geographical areas where it operates, and the highly
competitive nature of the industry to which it
belongs, Matsushita is exposed to a variety of risks
and uncertainties in carrying out its businesses,
including, but not limited to, the following:

This section includes forward-looking statements
and future expectation as of March 31, 2006.

Risks Related to Economic Conditions

Weakness in Japanese and global economies may cause
reduced demand for Matsushita’s products

Demand for Matsushita’s products and services may be affected
by general economic trends in the countries or regions in which
Matsushita’s products and services are sold. Economic downturns
and resulting declines in demand in Matsushita’s major markets
worldwide may thus adversely affect the Company’s business
results and financial condition.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect
Matsushita’s financial results

Although Matsushita is taking measures to reduce or hedge
against foreign currency exchange risks, foreign exchange rate
fluctuations may adversely affect its business, operating results
and financial condition, because Matsushita’s international
business transactions and costs and prices of Matsushita’s
products and services in overseas countries are affected by
foreign exchange rate changes. In addition, foreign exchange
rate changes can also affect the yen value of Matsushita’s
investments in overseas assets and liabilities because
Matsushita’s consolidated financial statements are presented in
Japanese yen. Generally, an appreciation of the yen against
other major currencies such as the U.S. dollar and the euro may
adversely affect Matsushita’s operating results. Meanwhile, a
depreciation of the yen against aforementioned major currencies
may have a favorable impact on Matsushita's operating results.

Interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect Matsushita’s
financial results

Matsushita is exposed to interest rate fluctuation risks which,
despite measures taken to hedge such risks, may affect the
Company’s operational costs, interest expense, interest income
and the value of financial assets and liabilities.

Decreases in the value of Japanese stocks may adversely
affect Matsushita’s financial results

Matsushita holds mostly Japanese stocks as part of its investment
securities. Over the past several years, the value of most of these
stocks has dropped substantially due to the stagnant Japanese
economy, resulting in losses in valuation declines of investment
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securities. Such decreases in the value of stocks may continue,
causing further adverse effects to Matsushita’s financial resutts.
The decrease in the value of Japanese siocks may also reduce
stockholders’ equity on the balance sheet, as unrealized holding
gains (losses) of available-for-sale securities are included as part of
accumulated other comprehensive incorne (loss).

Risks Related to Matsushita’s Business

Matsushita is subject to intense competition in areas in
which it operates, and this may adversely affect its ability
to maintain profitability

Matsushita develops, produces and sells a broad range of prod-
ucts and therefore faces many different types of competitors, from
large international companies to relatively small, rapidly growing,
and highly specialized organizations. Matsushita may choose not to
fund or invest in one or more of its businesses to the same degree
as its competiters in those businesses do, or it may not be able to
do so in a timely manner or at all. These competitors may have
greater financial, technological, and marketing resources than
Matsushita in the respective businesses in which they compete.

Rapid declines in product prices may adversely affect
Matsushita’s financial results

Matsushita's business is subject to intense price competition
worldwide, which makes it difficult for the Company to determine
product prices and maintain adequate profits. Such intensified
price competition may adversely affect Matsushita’s profits,
especially in terms of possible decreases in demand. For the
year ending March 31, 2007, Matsushita expects that its product
prices in many business areas will continue declining, as has
been the case in recent years.

Matsushita’s business is, and will continue to be,

subject to risks generally associatecl with international
business operations

One of Matsushita’s business strategies is business expansion in
overseas markets. In many of these markets, Matsushita may face
risks generally associated with international manufacturing and
other business operations, such as political instability, cultural and
religious differences, the spread of infectious diseases and labor
relations, as well as economic uncertainty and foreign currency
exchange risks. Matsushita may also face barriers in commercial
and business custorns in foreign countries, including difficulties in
timely collection of accounts receivable or in building and expand-
ing refationships with customers, subcontractors or parts suppli-
ers. Matsushita may also experience various political, legal or other
restrictions over investment, trade, manufacturing, labor or other
aspects of operations, including restrictions on foreign investment
or the repatriation of profits on invested capital, nationalization of
local industry, changes in export or import restrictions or foreign




exchange controls, and changes in the tax system or rate of taxa-
tion in countries where Matsushita operates businesses. With
respect to products exported overseas, tariffs, other barriers or
shipping costs may make Matsushita's products less competitive
in terms of price. Expanding its overseas business may require
significant investments long before Matsushita realizes returns on
such investments, and increased investments may result in
expenses growing at a faster rate than revenues.

Matsushita may not be able to keep pace with technologi-
cal changes and develop new products and services in a
timely manner to remain competitive

Matsushita may fail to introduce new products and services in
response to technological changes in a timely manner despite its
efforts to develop new products and services continuously. Some
of Matsushita’s core businesses, such as consumer digital elec-
tronics and key components and devices, are concentrated in
industries where technological innovation is the central competitive
factor. Matsushita continuously faces the challenge of developing
and introducing viable and innovative new products. Matsushita
must predict with reasonable accuracy both future demand and
new technologies that will be available to meet such demand. If
Matsushita fails to do so, it will not be able 1o compete in new
markets.

Matsushita may not be able to develop product formats
that can prevail as de facto standards

Matsushita has been forming alliances and partnerships with other
major manufacturers to strengthen technologies and the develop-
ment of product formats, such as next-generation home and mobile
networking products, data storage devices, and software systems.
Despite these efforts, Matsushita’s competitors may succeed in
developing de facto standards for future products before
Matsushita. In such cases, the Company’s competitive position,
operating results and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Matsushita may not be able to successfully recruit

and retain skilled employees, particularly scientific,
technical and management professionals

Matsushita’s future success depends largely on its ability to attract
and retain certain key personnel, including scientific, technical and
management professionals. Matsushita anticipates that it will need
to hire additional skilled personnel in all areas of its business.
Industry demand for such employees, however, exceeds the
number of personnel available, and the competition for attracting
and retaining these employess is intense. Because of this intense
competition for skilled employees, Matsushita may be unable to
retain its existing personnel or attract additional qualified employ-
ees to keep up with future business needs. If this should happen,
Matsushita's future growth, operating results and financial condi-
tion could be adversely affected.

Alliances with, and strategic investments in, third

parties undertaken by Matsushita may not produce

positive results

Matsushita develops its business by forming alliances or joint ven-
tures with, and making strategic investments in, other companies,
including investments in venture companies. Furthermore, the
strategic importance of partnering with third parties is increasing.
In some cases, such partnerships are crucial to Matsushita’s goal
of introducing new products and services, but Matsushita may not
be able to successfully collaborate or achieve expected synergies
with its partners. Matsushita does not, however, control these
partners, who may make decisions regarding their business
undertakings with Matsushita that may be contrary to Matsushita's
interests. In addition, if these partners change their business
strategies, Matsushita may fall to maintain these partnerships.

Matsushita is dependent on the ability of third parties to
deliver parts, components and services in adequate quality
and quantity in a timely manner, and at a reasonable price
Matsushita's manufacturing operations depend on obtaining raw
materials, parts and components, equipment and other supplies
including services from reliable suppliers in adequate quality and
guantity in a timely manner. It may be difficutt for Matsushita to
substitute one supplier for another, increase the number of suppli-
ers or change one component for another in a timely manner or at
all due to the interruption of supply or increased industry demand.
This may adversely affect the Matsushita Group's operations.
Although Matsushita decides purchase prices by contract, the
prices of raw materials including oil, parts and components, may
increase due to changes in supply and demand. Some compo-
nents are only available from a limited number of suppliers, which
also may adversely affect Matsushita’s operations.

Matsushita is exposed to the risk that its customers may
encounter financial difficulties

Many of Matsushita's customers purchase products and services
on payment terms that do not provide for immediate payment. If
customers from whom Matsushita has substantial accounts
receivable encounter financial difficulties and are unable to make
payments on time, Matsushita’s business, operating resuits and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

Risks Related to Matsushita’s Management Plans
Matsushita has implemented its new mid-term management
plan “Leap Ahead 21” (announced on January 9, 2004) for the
three-year term ending March 2007. Matsushita's business vision
focuses on “realizing a ubiquitous networking society” and “con-
tributing to coexistence with the global environment” through
cutting-edge technologies. Based on this visicn, Matsushita aims
to become a company that creates more value for customers.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Led. 2006



Due mainly to the various risk factors described in this section,
Matsushita may not be successful in achieving all the goals set
out in its mid-term business plan. In addition, Matsushita may
not be able to improve efficiency or realize growth through these
measures due to the increased costs arising from unexpected
additional reorganization or restructuring, improper allocation of
operational resources or other unpredictable factors. Also,
Matsushita announced on April 28, 2008, its annual forecast and
major initiatives for the year ehding March 31, 2007. However,
Matsushita may not be successiul in achieving all the targets or
in realizing the expected benefits because of various external and
internal factors.

Risks Related to Legal Restrictions and Litigations
Matsushita may be subject to product liability or warranty
claims that could result in significant direct or indirect costs
The occurrence of defects in Matsushita products could make
Matsushita liable for damages not covered by product and com-
pleted operation liability insurance, whereby the Company could
incur significant expenses. Due to negative publicity concerning
these problems, Matsushita’s reputation, corporate and brand
image, and sales activities may be adversely affected.

Matsushita may fail to protect its proprietary intellectual
properties, or face claims of intellectual property
infringement by a third party, and may lose its intellectual
property rights on key technologies or be liable for
significant damages

Matsushita’s success depends on its ability to obtain intellectual
property rights covering its products and product design. Patents
may not be granted or may not be of sufficient scope or force to
provide Matsushita with adequate protection or commercial
advantage. In addition, effective copyright and trade secret protec-
tions may be unavailable or limited in some countries in which
Matsushita operates. Competitors or other third parties may also
develop technologies that are protected by patents and other
intellectual property rights, which make such technologies unavail-
able or available only on terms unfavorable to Matsushita,
Matsushita obtains licenses for intellectual property rights from
others; however, such licenses may not be available at all or on
acceptable terms only in the future. Litigation may also be neces-
sary to enforce Matsushita’s intellectual property rights or to
defend against intellectual property infringement claims brought
against Matsushita by third parties. In such cases, Matsushita may
incur significant expenses for such lawsuits. Furthermore,
Matsushita may be prohibited from using certain important tech-
nclogies or liable for damages in cases of admitted violations of
intellectual property rights of others.
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Changes in accounting standards and tax systems may
adversely affect Matsushita’s financial results and condition
Introduction of new accounting standards or tax systems, or
changes thereof, which Matsushita cannot predict, may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial results and
operations. In addition, if tax authorities have different opinions
from Matsushita on the Company’s tax declarations, Matsushita
may need to make larger tax payments than estimated.

Payments or compensation related to environmental regula-
tions or issues may adversely affect Matsushita’s business,
operating results and financial condition

Matsushita is subject to envircnmental regulations such as those
relating to air pollution, water pollution, elimination of hazardous
substances, waste management, product recycling, and soil and
groundwater contamination, and may be held responsible for cer-
tain related payments or compensation. Furthermore, if these reg-
ulations become stricter and an additional duty of eliminating the
use of environmentally hazardous materials is imposed, or if the
Company determines that it is necessary and appropriate, from
the viewpoint of corporate social responsibility, to respond to envi-
ronmental issues, the payment of penalties for the violation of
these regulations or voluntary payment of compensation for con-
solation to parties affected by such issues may adversely affect
Matsushita’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Leaks of confidential information may adversely affect
Matsushita’s business

In the normal course of business, Matsushita holds confidential
information mainly about customers regarding credit worthiness
and other information, as well as confidential information about
companies and other third parties. Such information may be
leaked due to an accident or other inevitable cause, and any
material leakage of confidential information may result in significant
expense for related lawsuits and adversely affect Matsushita's
business and image. Moreover, there is a risk that Matsushita’s
trade secrets may be leaked by illegal conduct or by mere negli-
gence of external parties, etc. If such is the case, Matsushita’s
business may be adversely affected.

Governmental laws and regulations may limit Matsushita’s
activities or increase its operating costs

Matsushita is subject to governmental regulations in Japan and
other countries in which it conducts its business, including govern-
mental approvals required for conducting business and invest-
ments, laws and regulations governing the telecommunications
businesses and electric product safety, national security-related
laws and regulations and export/import laws and regulations, as
well as commercial, antitrust, patent, product liability, environ-
mental laws and regulations, consumer protection, financial and
business taxation laws and regulations due to the implementation




of stricter laws and regulations and stricter interpretations.
However, to the extent that Matsushita cannot comply with these
laws and regulations, or if they become stricter and Matsushita
determines that it would not be economical to continue to comply
with them, Matsushita would need to limit its activities in the
affected business areas. In addition, these laws and regulations
could increase Matsushita’'s operating costs.

Risks Related to disasters or unpredictable events
Matsushita’s facilities and information systems could

be damaged as a result of disasters or unpredictable
events, which could have an adverse effect on its
business operations

Matsushita’s headquarters and major facilities including
manufacturing plants, sales offices and research and development
centers are located in Japan. Matsushita also operates
procurement, manufacturing, logistics, sales and research and
development facilities all over the world. If major disasters such as
earthquakes, fires, floods, wars, terrorist attacks, computer
viruses or other events cccur, or Matsushita’s information system
or communications network breaks down or operates improperly,
Matsushita’s facilities may be seriously damaged, or the
Company may have to stop or delay production and shipment.
Matsushita may incur expenses relating to such damages.

Other Risks

External economic conditions may adversely affect
Matsushita’s pension plans

Matsushita has contributory, funded benefit pension plans
covering substantially all employees in Japan who meet eligibility
requirements. A decline in interest rates may cause a decrease

in the discount rate on benefit obligations. A decrease in the value
of stocks may also affect the return on plan assets. As a result,
the unrecognized portion of actuarial loss may increase, leading to
a future recognized actuarial loss on an increase in future net
periodic benefit costs of these pension plans.

Some long-lived assets may not produce adequate returns
Matsushita has many long-lived assets, such as plant, property
and equipment, and goodwill, that generate returns. The
Company periodicaily reviews the recorded value of its long-lived
assets to determine if the future cash flows to be derived from
these properties will be sufficient to recover the remaining
recorded asset values. If these long-lived assets do not generate
sufficient cash flows, impairment losses will have 1o be recognized,
adversely affecting Matsushita’s results of operations and financial
condition.

Realizability of deferred tax assets may increase
Matsushita’s provision for income tax

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets based on the
expected future generation of taxable income, Matsushita consid-
ers whether it is more likely than not that any portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. If Matsushita determines
that temporary differences and loss carryforwards cannot be
realized upon the generation of future taxable income during the
deductible periods due to deteriorating business conditions, valua-
tion allowance against deferred tax assets could be recognized
and Matsushita’s provision for income tax may increase.

Financial results and condition of associated companies
may adversely affect Matsushita’s results of operations

and financial condition

Matsushita holds equities of several associated companies.
Matsushita can exercise influence over operating and financing
policies of these companies. However, Matsushita does not have
the right to make decisions for them since the companies operate
independently. Some companies may record losses. If these asso-
ciated companies do not generate profits, Matsushita’s business
results and financial condition may be adversely affected.

American Depositary Share (ADS) holders have fewer
rights than shareholders and may not be able to enforce
judgments based on U.S. securities laws

The rights of shareholders under Japanese law to take actions,
including exercising their voting rights, receiving dividends and
distributions, bringing derivative actions, examining Matsushita’s
accounting books and records, and exercising appraisal rights are
available only to shareholders of record. Because the depositary,
through its nominee, is the record holder of the shares underlying
the ADSs, only the depositary can exercise those rights in connec-
tion with the deposited shares. The depositary will make efforts

to exercise their voting rights underlying ADSs in accordance with
the instructions of ADS holders and will pay the dividends and
distributions collected from Matsushita. However, ADS holders will
not be able to bring a derivative action, examine Matsushita’s
accounting books and records, or exercise appraisal rights
through the depositary.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Basic CSR Policy

Matsushita's unwavering management philosophy of
contributing to society as a public entity has guided
its business activities since the Company’s founding.
Matsushita considers implementing this management
philosophy to be the core essence of CSR. As a
specific guide to the actual implementation of this
basic principle, the Company meticuiously applies
the Matsushita Group Code of Conduct to all
Directors, Executive Officers and employees of the
Group, both in Japan and overseas. Viewing business
activities from multiple perspectives, including the
economy, environment and scciety, Matsushita
engages in a diverse range of global environment-
and society-oriented initiatives in all its business
fields to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities to all
stakeholders.

Basic Stance on the Environment

Balancing environmental preservation and business activities,
while contributing to the realization of a recycling-criented society
are key facets of Matsushita’s commitmaent to the environment.
Seeking to improve its customers’ quality of life, the Company is
pursuing the creation of new value by working to minimize environ-
mental impact. Matsushita has developed its own Factor X* indica-
tor as a yardstick to assess quantitative progress in these areas,
and is accelerating initiatives to introduce environmentally friendly
products to the market. Matsushita will continue to strengthen
efforts to improve factor evaluations, and work to steadily imple-
ment environmental management systems.

“The formula used to calculate Factor Xis “improvement of quality of life” divided by
“reduction of environmental impact.” Factor X can be improved by maximizing quality of
life, {the numerator becomes greater), or by minimizing environmental impact (the denom-
inator becomes smaller).
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Combined Environmental and Business Initiatives
Matsushita constructed the Eco & UD Model House within
Panasonic Center Tokyo. This life-size model house presents
the Company's commitment to creating “new value for living”
in a concrete, easy to understand form. The Eco & UD House
offers a comfortable and abundant living environment based on
the concepts of Eco (coexistence with the environment) and
Universal Design (user-friendly living environments for a greater
number of people).

In fiscal 2006, Matsushita introduced a “clean factory certifica-
tion system” as a way to recognize “clean factories,” which reduce
overall environmental impact in manufacturing processes. In addition
to raising the visibility of environmental management at all plants,
this will also promote environmental management initiatives rooted
in the countries and local regions where factories are located. The
PDP plant in Amagasaki, Japan is reducing environmental impact
not only through its productivity improvements, but also through a
variety of initiatives such as the photocatalytic coating of exterior
walls and the reuse of rainwater.




Matsushita is an active participant in the Team Minus 6%
national project in Japan aimed at reducing emissions of green-
house gases by 6%, and is working aggressively to help prevent
global warming through energy-saving initiatives at plants and
offices, development of environmentally friendly products and
active introduction of environmentally friendly company vehicles.

Concerning the use of environmentally harmful substances in
products, Matsushita implemented numercus initiatives on a glob-
al scale based on Europe’s RoHS Directives regarding the use of
certain hazardous substances, and was fully compliant with these
standards as of October 2005.
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Corporate Citizenship Activities

As part of its efforts to nurture the creative talents of children,
Matsushita is globally expanding its Kids Witness News educational
program that helps elementary and junicr high school students

create original news programs. (*1)

The Company also collects relief donations from its worldwide
operations in order to provide relief to victims of natural disasters,
such as Hurricane Katrina that struck the southern U.S.A. in August
2005, as well as 1o aid rebuilding efforts in afficted areas. (*2)

The Company provides support to the Okayama Kibikogen
Wheelchair “Fureai” Road Race, in which wheelchair athletes and
runners compete on the same course. (*3)

Matsushita also supports the Children’s Forest Program of the
NGO OQISCA International, which provides children with valuable
opportunities to learn in and about nature. (*4)

With an eye to coexistence with the envircnment, local contri-
bution and urban beautification, Matsushita created “Sakura
Plaza" cherry blossom parks on lands that it owns in Tokyo and
Osaka. ("5)

Report on Kerosene Fan Heater Recall
and Company’s Countermeasures

Emergency initiatives

In 2005, defects in certain kerosene fan heaters, which were man-
ufactured by Matsushita between 1985 and 19392, resulted in hos-
pitalization, and in some cases death, due to exposure to carbon
monoxide exhaust. To prevent a recurrence, in November 2005,
the Company established a special committee led by President
Nakamura to implement recall efforts, product inspections and
repairs of affected models of kerosene fan heaters. Using various
media, Matsushita notified customers of the risks involved in the
use of these products, while sending out employees (approximately
200,000 in total) to distribute leaflets directly to users, and visit
suppliers of kerosene.

Future measures to prevent a recurrence

Matsushita has made all-out efforts to locate defective kerosene
fan heaters through the cooperation of various parties, and will
continue efforts to identify the purchasers and users of all remain-
ing defective heaters. At the same time, to prevent a recurrence,
the Company is carrying out a wide range of initiatives.

On May 1, 2008, Matsushita reorganized the aforementioned
special committee into a permanent organization, the Corporate
FF Customer Support & Management Division, under which
Matsushita will continue recalt efforts through various public
awareness campaigns. Furthermore, the Company will thoroughly
review product safety in design and manufacturing processes.
Specffically, Matsushita will undertake studies of material deterio-
ration caused by long-term use, togsther with the development of
technologies to prevent risks caused by complex factors involved
in the extended use of certain products. Furthermore, the
Company will establish a new risk management system to enable
prompt action in an emergency, in compliance with its primary
principle, the customer comes first. The Company will also rein-
force safety education programs for the presidents of all Group
companies, the directors of all divisions and the managers respon-
sible for specific operations (such as design, manufacturing, and
quality control).

Matsushita thanks all of its stakeholders for their continued
support, and will continue to make untiring efforts to fulfill the
Company’s duties in terms of corporate social responsibility.

For more information about CSR
activities, please refer to The
Panasonic Report for
Sustainability 2006.

The Panasonic Report
for Sustanability 2006

For a copy of the report, please direct your
request to:
https.//sec.panasonic.net/report/rgform.html

For more information about environmental
activities, please visit the following Web site:
http://panasonic.net/eco/
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Directors, Corporate Auditors and Executive Officers (4s of june 28, 2006)

Executive Officers

Directors
Chairman of the Board Vice Chairman of the Board President
T
Py S
Kunio Nakamura Masayuki Matsushita Fumio Ohtsubo

Executive Vice Presidents

Representative in Tokyo, President of
Panasonic Automative Systems Company,
In charge of tndustrial Marketing and Sales,
Panasonic System Solutions Company,
Corporate eNet Business Division and
Corporate Construction Business Promotion
Division

In charge of Technology and
Semiconductor Company

In charge of Finance
and Accounting

. .; /
-
Susumu Koike

Takami Sano Tetsuya Kawakami

Senior Managing Directors
President of Panasonic AVC
Networks Company

In charge of Corporate Marketing Division for Panasonic Brand, Corporate Marketing Division
for National Brand Home Appfiances, Carporate Marketing Division for National Brand
Weliness Products, Corporate Sales Strategy Division for National/Panasonic Retailers,
Commodity Sales / Electrical Supplies Sales / Project Sales and Building Prodiucts Sales,
Advertising, Panasonic Center, Logistics, Corporate CS Division and Design, Chairman of

l \t Corporate Brand Committee and Showroom Strategic Committes

Shunzo Ushimaru

Toshihiro Sakamoto

Managing Directors

In charge of Corporate Planning In charge of Personne! and In charge of Home

General Affairs ( . Appliances Business,
- “ President of Matsushita
Lol nd ” >
-~ ey Home Appliances Company,
> - in charge of Lighting
- Company and Healthcare

‘ <‘ Business Company

Juniji Esal'(a

Takahiro Mori

Directors

Py

lkuo Uno Yoshifumi Nishikawa Hidetsugu Otsuru Mikio Ito Ikusaburo Kashima
Chairman, Nippon Life Insurance Presigent, CEO of Japan Post in charge of Faciity Management,  Director of Corporate Legal Affairs  Deputy Chief of Qverseas
Corporation Quality Administration, Corporae Division, in charge of Corporate Operations

Company

FF Customer Support & Risk Management, Corporate
Management Division and Information Security and Business
Environmental Affairs Ethics

Honorary Chairman of the Board and Executive Advisor

Masaharu Matsushita

Corporate Auditors
Senior Corporate Auditors

£

Corporate Auditors

T L '

azhh _ih

Kazumi Kawaguchi  Yukio Furuta Yasuo Yoshino lkuo Hata Hiroyuki Takahashi
Chairman, Sumitomo Life Aftorney at Law, Ch-gbashi
Insurance Company LPC & Partners
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Senior Managing Executive Officer

Koshi Kitadai
President of Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Lid.

Managing Executive Officers
Yoshiaki Kushiki

President of Panasonic Mobile Communications Co., Ltd.

Yasuo Katsura
Diractor of Tokyo Branch

Tameshige Hirata
President of Metsushita Ecology Systems Co., LIG.

Toru Ishida
President of Matsushita Battery industrial Co., Lid,

Katsutoshi Kanzaki
President of Panasonic Factory Solutions Co., Lid., in charge of
Matsushita Welding Systems Co., Ltd.

Executive Officers

Yoshitaka Hayashi

Director of Corporate Management Division for China and Northeast
Asja, Chairman of Panasonic Corporation of China

Fujio Nakajima

Senior Vice President of Panasonic AVC Networks Company,
Director of Technology Planning & Development Center

Tomiyasu Chiba

President of Parasonic Shikoku Electranics Ce., Ltd.

Nobutane Yamamoto

In charge of Corporate Procurement
Kazuyoshi Fujiyoshi

President of Panasonic Communications Co., Lid.
Tomio Kawabe

Director of Corporate Management Division for Asia and Qceania,
President of Panasonic Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
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Five-Year Summary
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars,
Millions of yen, except per share
except per share information information
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2006

For the year
INet 5ales cooveeiieiiieiiiiiiee e ¥8,894,329 ¥8,713,636 ¥7,479,744 ¥7,401,714 ¥7,073,837 $76,019,906
Operating profit (10ss) ......cocevvrrerenen. 414,273 308,494 195,492 126,571  (198,998) 3,540,795
Income (loss) before income taxes...... 371,312 246,913 170,822 68,916 (537,779) 3,173,607
Net income (10SS) .ooovvrrrrvieircerenrnennnns 154,410 58,481 42,145 (19,453) (427,779) 1,319,744
Capital investment® .......c..cooeveevnreenee, ¥ 345,819 ¥ 374,253 ¥ 271,291 ¥ 251,470 ¥ 320,145 § 2,955,718
Depreciation®........cccoocevivciniinnicnan, 275,213 287,400 253,762 283,434 341,549 2,352,248
R&D expenditures .........ccccccvvennnn 564,781 615,524 579,230 551,019 566,567 4,827,188
At year-end
Long-term debt ..o ¥ 264,070 ¥ 477,143 ¥ 460,639 ¥ 588,202 ¥ 708,173 § 2,257,009
Total aSSets ...ovvveenieniiiiee e 7,964,640 8,056,881 7,438,012 7,834,693 7,768,457 68,073,846
Stockholders” equity .....cccoovcvvenrnnne 3,787,621 3,544,252 3,451,576 3,178,400 3,247860 32,372,829
Number of shares issued

at year-end (thousands) .....c.ccccoverenn 2,453,053 2,453,053 2,453,053 2,447,923 2,138,515 2,453,053
Stockholders.....c.cooeviviniiices 252,239 275,413 282,190 275,266 211,796 252,239
Employees:

DOomestiC...cceeeiiieriiiieiiee e 144,871 150,642 119,528 121,451 126,378 144,871

OVEISERS vvvrrvereesveeereereeereesseereoe 189,531 184,110 170,965 166,873 164,854 189,531

Total..oeiiie 334,402 334,752 290,493 288,324 291,232 334,402
Per share data (Yen)
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic..ooco ¥ 6948 ¥ 2549 ¥ 1815 ¥ (8.70) ¥ (206.09) $ 0.59

Diluted ....cooovviiiiiiiiiiiie e 69.48 25.49 18.00 (8.70) (206.09) 0.59
Cash dividends per share .................... 17.50 15.25 12.50 10.00 12.50 0.15
Stockholders’ equity per share............ ¥1,714.22 ¥1569.39 ¥1488.77 ¥1,347.17 ¥1,558.68 $14.65
Ratios (%)
Operating profit (loss)/sales................ 4.7% 3.5% 2.6% 1.7% (2.8)% 4.7%
Income (loss) before

income taxes/sales ........ccoovieiiiniennn 4.2 2.8 2.3 0.9 (7.6) 4.2
Net income (loss)/sales ......c...ccerenrene. 1.7 0.7 0.6 (0.3) (6.0) 1.7
Stockholders’ equity/total assets ......... 47.6 44.0 46.4 40.6 41.8 47.6

Notes: 1. See Note 1 (n) to the consolidated financial statements in respect to the calculation of net income (loss) per share amounts.
In computing cash dividends per share, the number of shares at the end of the applicable period has been used.

2. Cash dividends per share reflect those paid during each fiscal year.

3. U.S. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥117=U.S.$1, the approximate rate on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on

March 31, 2006.

4. In order to be consistent with financial reporting practices generally accepted in Japan, operating profit {loss) is presented as net sales less cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative expenses. Under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, certain additional charges (such as
impairment losses and restructuring charges) are included as part of operating profit (oss) in the consolidated statemens of income. See the
consolidated statements of income on pages 51 and 54, and Notes 8, 9 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

* Excluding intangibles
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Financial Review

Consolidated Sales and Earnings Results

Sales

Matsushita’s consolidated net sales for fiscal 2006, ended
March 31, 2006, increased 2% to ¥3,894.3 billion
($76,020 million), from ¥8,713.6 billion in the previous
fiscal year. The global economy in this fiscal year was
favorable overall, with strong growth in the United
States and China, as well as a moderate economic
recovery in Japan. The electronics industry as a whole
continued steady growth, with strong demand for IT-
related products and rapid market expansion in flat-
panel TVs, in addition to an upturn in the components
and devices industry. However, a severe business envi-
ronment continued due mainly to rising raw materials
costs and price declines, mainly in digital audiovisual
(AV) products, caused by ever-intensified global
competition.

Under these circumstances, Matsushita viewed fiscal
2006, the second year of the mid-term management
plan Leap Ahead 21, ending March 31, 2007, as a cru-
cial year in establishing growth at each business domain
company. To achieve the goals of this management
plan, the Company implemented growth strategies and
strengthened management structures, achieving a cer-
tain degree of success. Matsushita aggressively launched
and promoted a new series of V-products to capture top
shares in high-volume markets and make a significant
contribution to overall business results. Sales of these
products increased not only in plasma TVs, digital cam-
eras and other cutting-edge digital AV equipment, but

Net Sales
Billions of yen

10,000

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Domestic Sales
B Overseas Sales

also in home appliances, led by revolutionary refrigera-
tors that feature top-unit compressors to increase inter-
nal capacity, tilted-drum washing machines with
efficient heat-pump dryers and air conditioners with
automatic filter cleaning and dust removal functions.
The Company also continued its focus on simultaneous
global product introductions in digital AV and other
product categories to continually expand priority busi-
nesses. A good example of success through this strategy
is the plasma TV business. Matsushita has raised its mar-
ket shares in Japan, the United States and Europe
through the simultaneous introduction of plasma TVs
in these regions. To further establish the Company’s
position as the industry leader, Matsushita announced
the world’s largest full high-definition plasma display. At
103 inches, this product demonstrates Matsushita’s
unparalleled technologies in the plasma TV field.
Meanwhile, through collaboration with Matsushita
Electric Works, Ltd. (MEW), Matsushita launched Col-
laboration V-products such as bathroom systems, mod-
ular kitchen systems and air purifiers, while utilizing
MEW marketing channels to increase sales of air condi-
tioners.

As a result of these initiatives, sales gains, particularly
for V-products, were recorded in digital products,
Home Appliances, MEW and PanaHome and Other.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administra-
tive Expenses

In fiscal 2006, cost of sales amounted to ¥6,155.3 bil-
lion (852,609 million), remaining mostly unchanged
from the previous year as a result of the cost reduction
efforts, despite an increase in net sales. Selling, general
and administrative expenses were up 4% to ¥2,324.7
billion ($19,870 million) compared to the previous year.

Operating Profit*

Consolidated operating profit for this fiscal year
increased 34%, to ¥414.3 billion ($3,541 mullion), com-
pared with ¥308.5 billion in the previous year. Negative
factors such as increased raw materials costs and intensi-
fied global price competition were more than offset by
sales gains, comprehensive cost reduction efforts and
other positive factors.
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Operating Profit (Loss)*
Billions of yen
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* In order to be consistent with financial reporting practices generally
accepted in Japan, operating profit (loss) is presented as net sales
less cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.
Under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, certain addi-
tional charges (such as impairment losses and restructuring charges)
are included as part of operating profit (loss) in the consolidated
statements of income. See the consolidated statements of income on
pages 51 and 54, and Notes 8, 9 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Income (deductions)

In fiscal 2006, interest income increased 45% to ¥28.2
billion ($241 million), and dividends received increased
22% to ¥6.6 billion ($56 million). In addition, in the
previous year a gain from the transfer of the substitu-
tional portion of Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance to
the Japanese Government was recorded, which resulted
in a decreased gain of ¥31.5 billion. Meanwhile, other
income increased 78% to ¥147.4 billion ($1,260 mil-
lion) due mainly to the increase in gross realized gains
related to the sale of certain securities.

Interest expense decreased 5% to ¥21.7 billion ($185
million), owing primarily to a reduction in short-term
and long-term borrowings. Restructuring charges also
decreased by more than half of last year’s result to ¥45.0
billion ($419 million). The Company incurred ¥24.9
billion ($213 million) as expenses associated with a
recall of certain kerosene fan heaters as well as¥35.3
billion ($302 million) as a write-down of investment
securities and ¥66.4 billion ($567 million) as impair-
ment losses on long-lived assets.

Income before Income Taxes
As a result of the above-mentioned factors, including
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increased operating profit, income before income taxes
for fiscal 2006 increased 50% to ¥371.3 billion ($3,174
million), compared with 3¥246.9 billion in fiscal 2005, .
while the ratio to net sales increased 1.4% to 4.2%,
compared with 2.8% in the previous year.

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes for fiscal 2006 amounted to
¥167.1 billion ($1,428 million), compared with*¥153.3
billion in the previous year. The effective tax rate to
income before income taxes declined to 45.0%, from
62.1% a year ago. This is due mainly to tax effects
attributable to investments in subsidiaries, despite an
increase of valuation allowance to income tax expenses
in certain subsidiaries.

Minority Interests

Minority interests (losses) amounted to ¥1.0 billion ($8
million)} for fiscal 2006, compared with minority inter-
ests (earnings) of ¥27.7 billion in fiscal 2005, due
mainly to losses incurred at certain subsidiaries.

Equity in Losses of Associated Companies

In fiscal 2006, equity in losses of associated companies
increased to ¥50.8 billion ($434 million), from the pre-
vious year’s ¥7.4 billion, due mainly to the adverse
effects of equity in losses of CRT T'V-related associated

companies.

Net Income

As a result of all the factors stated in the preceding para-
graphs, the Company recorded a net income of ¥154.4
billion ($1,320 million) for fiscal 2006, an increase of
164% from ¥58.5 billion in the previous year. Net
income per common share for the fiscal year was
¥69.48 ($0.59), versus a net income per common share
of ¥25.49 a year ago.

R&D Expenditures
R&D expenditures for fiscal 2006 decreased 8% to
¥564.8 billion ($4,827 million), representing 6.3% of
Matsushita’s consolidated net sales, as compared with
¥615.5 billion in fiscal 2005.

In fiscal 2006, Matsushita execured a number of ini-
tiatives to accelerate R&D, aimed at the realization of a



ubiquitous networking society and coexistence with the
global environment. Specifically, the Company pro-
moted key development projects, concentrated technol-
ogy resources and reinforced intellectual properties
strategies.

The key development projects during the fiscal year
were: (1) development of the world’s largest full HD
PDP using ultra-large panel formation technology.
Boasting more than 2 million pixels (1,920 x 1,080),
the panel achieves consistent and uniform discharge;

(2) development of a new Integrated Platform for
home AV applications. This platform allows viewers of
digital HD broadcasts to simultanecusly watch two
channels and also record programs in standard definition
formats; (3) development of a mobile phone that allows
users to view approximately three hours of “One Seg-
ment” terrestrial digital TV broadcasts, using power-
saving technology; (4) development of a system LSI for
high-speed home power line communication applica-
tions. This component allows existing home power

R&D Expenditures

Billions of yen

600
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lines to be used for the simultaneous transmission of
HD video, IP telephony and data transmission as a
home network; and (5) development of a tilted-drum
washer/dryer that uses no heater or water during the
dry cycle. This washer/dryer, the world’s first to incor-
porate heat-pump technology, completes a cycle of
washing and drying using roughly half the power, water
and time required for conventional models.

Additionally, Matsushita took a number of steps to
boost the efficiency of R&D activities from the per-
spective of overall optimization. Specifically, the Com-
pany reinforced technology management by aligning
company-wide technology strategies and creating a
shared roadmap, while other initiatives included a
development platform to enable the sharing, accumula-
tion and reuse of technologies and innovations in future
R&D processes.

Results of Operations by Business Segment

The Company’s business segments are classified into six
segments: AVC Networks, Home Appliances, Compo-
nents and Devices, MEW and PanaHome, JVC and
Other. Results of sales and profits by business segment
for fiscal 2006, as compared with the previous fiscal
year, were as follows:

AVC Networks sales increased 3% to ¥3,986.1 bil-
lion ($34,069 million), compared with ¥3,858.8 billion
in the same period of the previous year. Within this
segment, sales of video and audio equipment increased,
due mainly to strong sales of digital AV products, such
as plasma TVs and digital cameras. Sales of information
and communications equipment also increased, mainly
as a result of sales gains in PCs and automotive elec-

Earnings
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2006

Operating profit ({oss)*........ccccvvcerniniennn. ¥414,273 ¥308,494 ¥195492 ¥126,571 ¥(198,998) $3,540,795
Income (loss) before income taxes .......... 371,312 246,913 170,822 68,916 (5637,779) 3,173,607
Net income (1088) ..vvoiiviveiiiinieiiiieeiciinean, 154,410 58,481 42,145 (19,453)  (427,779) 1,319,744
R&D expenditures .......ccoovveveivininieeinnne 564,781 615,524 579,230 551,019 566,567 4,827,188

* In order to be consistent with financial reporting practices generally accepted in Japan, operating profit (loss) is presented as net sales less cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative expenses. Under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, certain additional charges (such as
impairment losses and restructuring charges) are included as part of operating profit (loss) in the consolidated statements of income. See the con-
solidated statements of income on pages 51 and 54, and Notes 8, 9 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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tronics equipment, which were more than sufficient to
offset decreased sales in mobile phones.

With respect to this segment, profit improved 50%
from ¥127.4 billion in fiscal 2005, to ¥190.9 billion
($1,631 million) for fiscal 2006, which is equivalent to
4.8% against sales. This increase was attributable mainly
to expanded sales in digital products and cost rational-
ization.

Sales of Home Appliances increased 1% to ¥1,241.2
billion ($10,609 million), compared with ¥1,229.8
billion in the previous year. Within Home Appliances,
sales gains were recorded in air conditioners and
microwave ovens, which were sufficient to offset
decreased sales in vacuum cleaners and other household
equipment.

Profit in this segment rose 3% from *¥74.8 billion in fis-
cal 2005, to ¥77.1 billion ($659 million) for fiscal 2006, or
6.2% of sales. This increase was due mainly to the success-
ful introducton of new high-value-added products, com-
bined with the effects of various rationalization activities.

information by Business Segment

Sales of Components and Devices decreased 7% to
¥1,368.3 billion ($11,695 million), from the previous
year’s ¥1,469.0 billion. Sluggish sales in semiconductors
for the fiscal year, despite increased sales in electronic
components and devices, led to overall lower sales.

With respect to this segment, profit increased 40%
from ¥57.8 billion in fiscal 2005, o ¥81.1 billion ($693
million) for fiscal 2006, owing largely to cost rational-
ization effects, which were sufficient to offset the nega-
tive effects of decreased sales. Profit against sales for this
segment was 5.9% for fiscal 2006.

Sales of MEW and PanaHome increased 4% to
¥1,747.2 billion ($14,933 million), compared with
¥1,686.3 billion a year ago. Sales at MEW and its sub-
sidiaries were mostly unchanged from the previous year,
with favorable sales in electrical construction materials
and automation controls. At PanaHome Corporation,
sales gains were recorded in detached housing, con-
tributing to increased sales overall.

With respect to this segment, profit increased 9% to

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2006
Sales:
AVC Networks...........cc, ¥ 3,986,088 ¥ 3,858,781 ¥ 3,840,268 ¥3,668,195 ¥3,508,624 §$ 34,069,128
Home Appliances........cccceenien. 1,241,202 1,229,768 1,223,190 1,197,481 1,170,785 10,608,564
Components and Devices.......... 1,368,258 1,469,007 1,659,672 1,709,732 1,534,728 11,694,513
MEW and PanaHome. ............... 1,747,207 1,686,257 — — — 14,933,393
JVC 703,116 730,209 818,999 851,509 834,819 6,009,538
Other..ooccooviviiiiiie, 1,315,292 1,027,123 948,728 819,055 725,357 11,241,812
Eliminations ..................cccvvinn. (1,466,834) (1,287,509) (1,011,113) (844,258) (700,476) (12,537,042)
Consolidation total ................ ¥ 8,894,329 ¥ 8,713,636 ¥ 7,479,744 *¥7,401,714 *¥7,073,837 $ 76,019,906
Segment profit:
AVC Networks.........ococeevnnnnnn. ¥ 190,885 ¥ 127,366 ¥ 129,102 ¥ 82,828 ¥ (35,626) $§ 1,631,496
Home Appliances.........c.ccccene. 77,135 74,794 52,759 45,240 32,611 659,274
Components and Devices .......... 81,111 57,761 50,099 31,213 (95,714) 693,256
MEW and PanaHome ............... 72,694 66,761 — — — 621,316
JVC (5,782) 9,887 24,675 21,863 (12,345) (49,419)
Other .. 62,225 38,352 14,701 13,042 (32,388) 531,838
Corporate and eliminations........ (63,995) (66,427) (75,844) 67,615) (55,536) (546,966)

Total segment profit (loss) ....... ¥ 414,273 ¥ 308,494 ¥ 195492 ¥ 126,571 ¥ (198,998) § 3,540,795

Notes: 1. MEW, PanaHome and their respective subsidiaries became consolidated subsidiaries of the Company on April 1, 2004. Accordingly, a
new business segment, “MEW and PanaHome,” has been added from fiscal 2005.
2. Under the collaboration with MEW, the Company reorganized business and sales channels in such areas as electrical construction mate-
rials, building equipment and home appliances. Accordingly, fiscal 2005 business segment information for “Home Appliances” and
“MEW and PanaHome” has been reclassified to conform with fiscal 2006 for information by business segment.
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¥72.7 billion ($621 million), which is equal to 4.2% of
sales, from ¥66.8 billion in the previous vear, as a result
of an increase in sales and cost rationalization efforts.

Sales of JVC were ¥703.1 billion ($6,010 million),
down 4% from ¥730.2 billion in the previous year.
Despite favorable sales in software and media, sales
downturns in AV equipment and devices led to overall
decreased sales compared with a year ago.

With respect to this segment, profit decreased from a
gain of ¥.9 billion in fiscal 2005, to a loss of ¥5.8 bil-
lion ($49 million) for fiscal 2006, due mainly to delayed
launches of digital AV products and price declines in
digital products.

Sales in the Other segment amounted to ¥1,315.3
billion ($11,242 mullion), a sharp increase of 28% from
the previous year, due mainly to favorable sales in fac-
tory automation (FA) equipment.

With respect to this segment, profit jumped 62%
from ¥38.4 billion for fiscal 2005, 4.7% against sales, to
¥62.2 billion ($532 million) in fiscal 2006, owing pri-
marily to sales increases as well as the effects of varipus
rationalization efforts.

Sales by Region

Sales in Japan increased 1% to ¥4,611.4 billion (39,414
million), from ¥4,580.5 billion in fiscal 2005, due
mainly to increased sales of digital AV products, such as
plasma TVs and digital cameras, automotive electronics
equipment and air-conditioners.

Sales by Region

Overseas sales were up by 4%, to ¥4,282.9 billion
($36,606 million), from ¥4,133.1 billion in the previous
fiscal year.

By region, sales in the Americas increased 8% to
¥1,387.4 billion ($11,858 million), from ¥1,283.0 bil-
lion. Sales of plasma TVs, PCs and video broadcasting
systems showed significant year-on-year growth, result-
ing in sales gains in AVC Networks, and an overall
increase in sales for this region.

Sales in Europe decreased 1% to *¥1,113.6 billion
(89,518 million), from the previous year’s ¥1,122.5 bil-
lion. Despite increased sales of plasma T'Vs, digital cam-
eras and DVD recorders, sales declines were recorded in
audio equipment, mobile phones and facsimiles in AVC
Networks, as well as air-conditioners in Home Appli-
ances, resulting in an overall decrease in sales for this
region.

In the Asia and Others region, sales increased 3% to
¥1,781.9 billion ($15,230 million). In Asia (excluding
China}, strong sales were recorded in plasma TVs, digi-
tal cameras and optical disc drives for PCs in AVC Net-
works, as well as air-conditioners, lighting equipment
and general electronic components, sufficient to offset
decreased sales in semiconductors and other products,
resulting in overall sales gains. Meanwhile, in China,
sales gains were recorded for plasma TVs and digital
cameras, sufficient to offset weak sales for optical disc
drives for PCs, air-conditioners and other products,
resulting in overall increased sales.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2006

Domestic sales .oovvverviiiriieeeiiiiieeeeeeia. 34,611,440 ¥4,580,555 ¥3,477,492 ¥3,453,836 ¥3,313,912 $39,414,017
Overseas sales:

North and South America ...oo......... 1,387,424 1,282,956 1,326,940 1,420,802 1,495,258 11,858,325

Europe ..oocoveciiiiiineee 1,113,556 1,122,493 1,080,143 999,637 839,248 9,517,573

Asia and Others .....vveveeiiiiiiineiiinnn. 1,781,909 1,727,632 1,595,169 1,527,439 1,425,419 15,229,991

Total oo 4,282,889 4,133,081 4,002,252 3,947,878 3,759,925 36,605,889

Total oo ¥8,894,329 ¥8 713,636 ¥7,479,744 ¥7,401,714 ¥7,073,837 $76,019,906
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Financial Position and Liquidity

Total Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
The Company’s consolidated total assets as of March
31, 2006 decreased ¥92.3 billion to ¥7,964.6 billion
($68,074 million), as compared to ¥8,056.9 billion at
the end of the last fiscal year.

The Company’s consolidated total liabilities as of
March 31, 2006 also decreased ¥341.3 billion to
¥3,675.4 billion ($31,414 million), attributable to a
decrease in retirement and severance benefits as well as
repayments of borrowings and bonds in certain
subsidiaries.

Minority interests increased ¥5.7 billion to ¥501.6
billion ($4,287 million).

Stockholders’ equity increased ¥243.3 billion to
¥3,787.6 billion ($32,373 million), from the previous
year’s ¥3,544.3 billion. Although stockholders” equity
decreased by ¥87.0 billion due to the repurchase of the
Company’s own shares as part of Matsushita’s strategy to
enhance shareholder value, total stockholders’ equity
increased due mainly to an increase of ¥114.8 billion in
retained earnings and a decrease of ¥212.3 billion in
accumulated other comprehensive loss, which reflects
improved cumulative translation adjustments, unrealized
holding gains of available-for-sale securities and mini-
mum pension liability adjustments, as mentioned above.

Total Assets and Stockholders’ Equity

Bilfions of yen
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Ml Total Assets [ Stockholders’ Equity
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Profit Distribution

During fiscal 2006, the Company distributed an
interim (semiannual) cash dividend of ¥10 per com-
mon share. As for the year-end dividend for fiscal 2006,
the Company decided, with shareholders’ approval, to
distribute ¥10 per common share. Accordingly, total
dividends for fiscal 2006, including the interim divi-
dend, were ¥20 per common share.

Capital Investment and Depreciation**
Capital investment (excluding intangibles) during fiscal
2006 totaled ¥345.8 billion ($2,956 million), down 8%
from the previous fiscal year’s total of ¥374.3 billion.
The Company implemented capital investment primar-
ily to increase production capacity in strategic busi-
nesses that are expected to drive future growth, such as
semiconductors and digital AV equipment, particularly
plasma TVs, while at the same time curbing capital
investment in a number of business areas, in line with
increasing management emphasis on capital efficiency:.
Depreciation (excluding intangibles) during the fis-
cal year amounted to ¥275.2 billion ($2,352 million),
compared with ¥287.4 billion in the previous fiscal
year, as a result of the above-mentioned decrease in
overall capital investment.

Capital Investment and Depreciation
Billions of yen

450

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

B Capital Investment (] Depreciation



Financial Position and Liquidity

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2006
Total assets (at year-end).......c.ccoovvenne ¥7,964,640 ¥8,056,881 ¥7,438,012 ¥7,834,693 ¥7,768,457 $68,073,846
Stockholders’ equity (at year-end) ....... 3,787,621 3,544,252 3,451,576 3,178,400 3,247,860 32,372,829
Capital investment* **:
Purchases of property, plant and
equipment shown as capital
expenditures in the consolidated
statements of cash flows ................. 356,751 352,203 275,544 246,603 342,107 3,049,154
Effect of timing difference between
acquisition dates and payment dates .. (10,932) 22,050 (4,253) 4,867 (21,962) (93,436)
345,819 374,253 271,291 251,470 320,145 2,955,718
Depreciation®.......ccocoovieeiiieniceniennenn 275,213 287,400 253,762 283,434 341,549 2,352,248

* Excluding intangibles
** Reconciliation of Non U.S. GAAP capital investment figures

The Company defines capital investment as purchases of property, plant and equipment on an accrual basis which reflects the effects of tim-
ing differences between acquisition dates and payment dates. The Company has included the information concerning capital investment
because its management uses this indicator to manage its capital expenditures and it believes that such indicator is useful to investors to pre-
sent accrual basis capital investments in addition to the cash basis information in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

The above table shows a reconciliation of capital investment to purchases of property, plant and equlpment shown as capital expenditures

in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2006
amounted to ¥575.4 billion ($4,918 million), compared
with ¥464.6 billion in the previous fiscal year. This
increase, despite an increase in trade receivables, was
attributable mainly to the improvement in net income
and an increase in trade payables.

Net cash provided by investing activities amounted
to ¥407.1 billion ($3,479 million), compared with net
cash used in investing activities of ¥178.3 billion in fis-
cal 2005, due mainly to proceeds from sale of the
majority shares of Matsushita Leasing & Credit Co.,
Ltd. as well as dividend and loan collections from this

Reference: Consolidated Statements of Income

company, in addition to the sale of Universal Studios
Holding 1 Corp. shares.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥524.6 bil-
lion ($4,483 million), compared with ¥405.6 billion
in fiscal 2005. This was mainly attributable to a
decrease in proceeds from long-term debt and an
increase in repayments of long-term debt.

All these activities, compounded by the effect of
exchange rate fluctuations, resulted in a net increase of
¥497.6 billion ($4,253 mullion} in cash and cash equiv-
alents during fiscal 2006. Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of fiscal 2006 totaled ¥1,667.4 billion ($14,251
million), compared with ¥1,169.8 billion a year ago.

For reconciliation of operating profit to income before income taxes, see the following financial information, which has been derived from the

consolidated statements of operations for fiscal 2003 and 2002.

(For the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, see the consolidated statements of income on page 54.)

Revenues, costs and expenses:

INEE SAlES oottt e

Costof sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses
TNEErest INCOMIE .ot ittt eee e
Dividends received

Other INCOME ..ot
Interest eXpense .......cooeiiiiiiiiiiiii e

Other deductions......c..coocvvcvivcnacn.
Income (loss) before income taxes

Millions of yen

2003 2002
............................................................ ¥7,401,714  ¥7,073,837
(5,323,605) (5,312,039)
............................................. (1,951,538) (1,960,796)
22,267 34,361
4,506 8,219
............................................................ 64,677 54,146
............................................................ (32,805) (45,088)
(116,300) (390,419)
¥ 68,016 ¥ (537,779)
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
March 31, 2006 and 2005

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) ..o
Time deposits (INote 10).....ccccoieriiiiiiiniiiici e,
Short-term investments (Notes 6 and 19).........ccooeeviiiniinnn
Trade receivables (Notes 5, 7 and 17):
INOTES 1ottt oottt e e et
ACCOUNLES ©evitiieieiiiii e e ettt st e et e e e e e nneneea e
Allowance for doubtful receivables ...........ccccvvieiinineinnee.
Net trade receivables .....coccooiiioiiiiiiiiin e
Inventories (INOE 4) .oooeiiiiiriiieeiiiiieirie e
Other current assets (Notes 8, 12 and 19) ......oooviiiiiniininenn.
Total CUITENE ASSELS .iviuviriiireeiitiiiieeeee et e e erree e e e
Noncurrent receivables (INOte 7) ..o
Investments and advances (Notes 5, 6 and 19) ...,

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 7, 8 and 10):

Buitldings ......ooviiiiieii
Machinery and equipment............cccceeiiiiiniiiiiiiiec e
CONSLIUCHION 111 PIOZTESS +eeevvrreeeiiiieeeaiinreenieirreaiireesnieeesnianeeens

Less accumulated depreciation ..........cccceevieeieiienenniicenneene.

Net property, plant and equipment ............coceovvniiiennnn

Other assets:
Goodwill (Notes 3 and 9) ....ccoeeniiiiiii
Intangible assets (Notes 3 and 9) ...coooovviiiiiiiiniiiii e,
Other assets (Notes 11 and 12)...ccciiveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccie e

Total Other ASSELS ...eee et

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Thousands of

U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 2)

2006 2005 2006
¥1,667,396 ¥1,169,756 $14,251,248
11,001 144,781 94,026
56,753 11,978 485,068
66,707 107,317 570,145
1,117,508 1,188,257 9,551,351
(37,400)  (43,836) (319,658)
1,146,815 1,251,738 9,801,838
915,262 893,425 7,822,752
609,326 558,854 5,207,914
4,406,553 4,030,532 37,662,846
— 246,201 —
1,100,035 1,146,505 9,402,009
374,989 393,635 3,205,034
1,667,764 1,665,243 14,254,393
3,142,607 3,087,155 26,859,889
71,037 84,139 607,154
5,256,397 5,230,172 44,926,470
3,624,058 3,572,092 30,974,855
1,632,339 1,658,080 13,951,615
413,137 461,912 3,531,086
104,158 101,585 890,239
308,418 412,066 2,636,051
825,713 975,563 7,057,376
¥7,964,640 ¥8,056,881 $68,073,846




Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 2)
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 2006 2005 2006
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings, including current portion of
long-term debt (Notes 7, 10 and 19) ......cooviiviiiiiiiiiiicce ¥ 339,845 ¥ 385,474 $ 2,904,658
Trade payables (Note 5):
INOLES vttt ettt et et e 66,316 37,099 566,803
ACCOUNES ©ovvviviiiiiieitieeetee e ettt e e e e eeeee e ee e 914,963 828,920 7,820,197
Total trade payables ........ooovcciiiiiiiiiir e 981,279 866,019 8,387,000
Accrued income taxes (INote 12)........cccoiiirieeiiiiiiiiiene e 51,128 47,916 436,991
Accrued payroll ... 142,594 145,871 1,218,752
Other accrued expenses (INote 20) .....cveveiiiiiiinninieeniineeeeie 842,467 789,999 7,200,573
Deposits and advances from custOmers........coovceeeerrvreerroevreenans 90,600 92,089 774,359
Employees’ deposits ......oooevuiiiiiiiiieiiiiee e 14,065 118,441 120,214
Other current liabilities (Notes 12 and 19) .....cceeviiiiiiiiiinnins 423,090 383,082 3,616,154
Total current Habilities ........ocoiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiee e, 2,885,068 2,828,891 24,658,701
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt (Notes 7, 10 and 19) ......ccoeeienicinnciiencnn, 264,070 477,143 2,257,009
Retirement and severance benefits (Note 11) .......c.oooevieiienne 414,266 597,163 3,540,735
Other liabilities (INOte 12) .. coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 112,024 113,491 957,470
Total noncurrent liabilities .........ooviioviiiiiii e, 790,360 1,187,797 6,755,214
MiINority INterests ........ccooovvviiii e 501,591 495,941 4,287,102
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock (Note 13):
Authorized—4,950,000,000 shares
Issued—2,453,053,497 shares
(2,453,053,497 shares in 2005)........coveiiiiiieeiiiiiiiiiieee e 258,740 258,740 2,211,453
Capital surplus (INote 13)..ceeiiiiiiiiieiicciiieccerr e 1,234,289 1,230,701 10,549,479
Legal reserve (INote 13) .ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiie e 87,526 87,838 748,085
Retained earnings (Note 13) oo, 2,575,890 2,461,071 22,016,154
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
(Notes 6, 11, 14 and 18):
Cumulative translation adjustments .........cccccoeeeenicioiieenncans (162,331)  (245,642) (1,387.,444)
Unrealized holding gains
of available-for-sale SECULIHES cuuu'vvvieeiiiee e 145,306 72,608 1,241,932
Unrealized gains of derivative Instruments.............c.cccecvennee. 1,326 6,403 11,333
Minimum pension liability adjustments ........coooecociiiirnnnne. (10,420) (71,746) (89,060)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ....... (26,119) (238,377) (223,239)
Treasury stock, at cost (Note 13):
243,521,506 shares (194,695,787 shares in 2005).................. (342,705)  (255,721) (2,929,103)
Total stockholders’ equity .....uvvviiiiiiieiii e 3,787,621 3,544,252 32,372,829

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 20)

¥7,964,640 ¥8,056,881 $68,073,846
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Lid. and Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 2)
2006 2005 2004 2006

Revenues, costs and expenses:

Net sales (INOLe 5).uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e ¥ 8,894,329 ¥8,713,636 ¥7,479,744 $ 76,019,906

Cost of sales (Notes 5 and 17).....cccocveiiiiiviiiinnins (6,155,297) (6,176,046) (5,313,065) (52,609,376)

Selling, general and administrative expenses

(INOLE 17) ittt (2,324,759) (2,229,096) (1,971,187) (19,869,735)

INterest INCOMIE. . ooei it e 28,216 19,490 19,564 241,162

Dividends received ....oooooiiiiiiiii e, 6,567 5,383 5,475 56,128

Gain from the transfer of the substitutional portion

of Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance (Note 11)... — 31,509 72,228 —_

Other income (Notes 6, 7, 17 and 18) ................... 147,399 82,819 59,544 1,259,821
TNLETESt EXPENSE 1uvenrieerieniiaiiieitieieeeeie e (21,686) (22,827) (27,744) (185,350)

Goodwill impairment (Note 9)........cc.oooeenininnn. (50,050) (3,559) — (427,778)

Other deductions (Notes 5, 6, 8,9, 16, 17 and 18).... (153,407) (174,396) (153,737) (1,311,171)

Income before INCOME tAXES ..oovvvvineireeieeieeeeaen. 371,312 246,913 170,822 3,173,607
Provision for income taxes (Note 12):

CULTENE ittt ee e 96,341 96,529 77,375 823,427

Deferred ..ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiie 70,748 56,805 21,160 604,684

167,089 153,334 93,535 1,428,111

Income before minority interests and equity

in losses of associated companies.............ccccveeee.. 204,223 93,579 72,287 1,745,496
Minority interests...............ccooeeeeiiiiiiin e (987) 27,719 19,618 (8,436)
Equity in losses of associated companies (Note 5) ....... (50,800) (7,379) (10,524) (434,188)

NELINCOMIE .ot ¥ 154,410 ¥ 58,481 ¥ 42,145 § 1,319,744
U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 2)
Net income per share of common stock
(Note 15):
BasiC.oooooi ¥ 69.48 ¥ 2549 ¥ 18.15 § 0.59
Diluted ..o 69.48 25.49 18.00 0.59

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of

U.S. dollars
) Millions of yen (Note 2)
2006 2005 2004 2006

Common stock (Notes 13 and 17):

Balance at beginning of year.........c.cooccoiiiiiniiiiiii e ¥ 258,740 ¥ 258,740 ¥ 258,738 $ 2,211,453

Issuance of common stock for conversion of bonds .............. — — 2 —

Balance at end of year ........ococooviiieii ¥ 258,740 ¥ 258,740 ¥ 258,740 $ 2,211,453
Capital surplus (Notes 13 and 17):

Balance at beginning of year.......c.occoovriniiiniiiriiinicenieniieens ¥1,230,701 ¥1,230,476 ¥1,219,686 $10,518,812

Issuance of common stock for conversion of bonds .............. — — 2 —

Treasury stock provided for conversion of bonds................. — — 4,209 —

Stock issued under exchange offering ........cocoovviviniiincnnn, — — 6,579 —

Transfer from legal reserve and retained earnings

due to merger of a subsidiary ..o 798 — — 6,821
Sale of treasury stock ..o 62 225 — 330
Increase in capital surplus and transfer to minority interests
arising on conversion of bonds by a subsidiary .................... 2,728 — — 23,316

Balance at end of year ... ¥1,234,286 ¥1,230,701 ¥1,230,476 $10,549,479
Legal reserve (Note 13):

Balance at beginning of year ... ¥ 87,838 ¥ 83,175 ¥ 80,700 $ 750,752

Transfer from retained €arnings .......c.cccovveevirivieriicneeninenins 438 4,663 2,475 3,744

Transfer to capital surplus due to merger of a subsidiary ........ (750) — — (6,411)

Balance at end of year ......coooiviii ¥ 87,526 ¥ 87,838 ¥ 83,175 $ 748,085
Retained earnings (Note 13):

Balance at beginning of year........ccococcoiiiiiiiiiiii ¥2.461,071 ¥2,442504 ¥2,432,052 $21,034,795

INEE ACOTTIE ottt e ettt e et er b enine e 154,410 58,481 42,145 1,319,744

Cash dividends ....cccoveeeiiiiiiii e (39,105) (35,251) (29,218) (334,231)

Transfer to legal reServe.....ccoviviiiiiniiiee e (438) (4,663) (2,475) (3,744)

Transfer to capital surplus due to merger of a subsidiary........ (48) — — (410)

Balance at end of year «.....coooviiiiiiii ¥2,575,890 ¥2,461,071 2,442,504 $22,016,154
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss)

(Note 14):

Balance at beginning of year........occooiiviiininicin ¥ (238,377) ¥ (399,502) ¥ (705,642) $(2,037,410)

Other comprehensive income, net of taX....ccoooeevviieineiennennn. 212,258 161,125 306,140 1,814,171

Balance at end of year ......ocociiiiiii ¥ (26,119) ¥ (238,377) ¥ (399,502) $ (223,239)

Treasury stock (Note 13):

Balance at beginning of year ... ¥ (255,721) ¥ (163,817) ¥ (107,134)  $(2,185,650)
Treasury stock acquired due to acquisition of additional

shares of newly consolidated subsidiaries (Note 3)............... — (124) — —
Repurchase of common stock ..o (87,150) (92,879) (69,394) (744,872)
Sale of treasury Stock .oouvuiiiiiiiiii e 166 1,099 — 1,419
Conversion of bonds .........oooooiiiiiviiiei e — — 12,711 —
Balance at end of year ..o ¥ (342,705) ¥ (255,721) ¥ (163,817) $(2,929,103)

Disclosure of comprehensive income {loss) (Note 14):

INEE IIICOITIC 1. eve vttt eaiie e et e e et e e e e eeaeneas ¥ 154,410 ¥ 58,481 ¥ 42,145 $ 1,319,744
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Translation adjustments ............c.ooooioniniiiiciiceen, 83,311 36,645 (121,163) 712,060
Unrealized holding gains (losses) of
available-for-sale securities .................oooiiiiii e 72,698 (15,496) 106,186 621,350
Unrealized gains (losses) of derivative instruments ............ (5,077) (273) 7,766 (43,393)
Minimum pension liability adjustments ............ccccoeieran 61,326 140,249 313,351 524,154
Total comprehensive INCOME.....c.c.viciiriiiniiriiicie e ¥ 366,668 ¥ 219,606 ¥ 348,285 $ 3,133,915

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Cash flows from operating activities (Note 17):

INEE INCOIMIE .o,

Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .........c...occceeeeerenne.
Net gain on sale of INVEStMENts .......c...vceeeeieannnn,
Provision for doubtful receivables............o..conin
Deferred INCOME LaXES.uuumruiireireii e eeeeeiee e eeaereaeee e e

Write-down of investment securities

(INOtes 5and 6) ...ccoceviieiiiiiieiie it
Impairment loss on long-lived assets (Notes 8 and 9)
MINOTITY INTETESES ...ooriiiiiiiriiis ettt
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables.............................
(Increase) decrease In INVENEOTIES........oeeerriiunienenne.
(Increase) decrease in Other CUITENT aSSELS ...ccoovuerericrrnrarons
Increase (decrease) in trade payables ..o,
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes..........

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

and other current Habilities........coooovveveiiiiiiiil

Increase (decrease) in retirement

and severance benefits ......ocoeoiviiiiiiiiieriniiinnl,

Increase (decrease) in deposits and advances

fTOML CUSLOTIIETS «.vvveeie e

Net cash provided by operating activities.............

Cash flows from investing activities (Note 17):
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments

Purchase of short-term investments ...............c.c.o.....

Proceeds from disposition of investments

and adVances ....cooii i
Increase in investments and advances.............c.........
Capital expenditures..........cccooveoroiiionniniiirnc o,

Proceeds from disposals of property,

plant and eqUIPMENt.......coviiiiriiiiin e
(Increase) decrease in finance receivables..................
(Increase) decrease in time deposits.............c.cocvne.

Inflows due to acquisition of additional shares of

newly consolidated subsidiaries, net of cash paid....

Proceeds from sale of shares of subsidiaries

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities (Note 17):
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings

Increase (decrease) in employees’ deposits ...............
Proceeds from long-term debt ...
Repayments of long-term debt ...,
Dividends paid ......ooooiiriiiiiinii
Dividends paid to minority interests.............c...c.cc....
Repurchase of common stock (Note 13) ........c........
Sale of treasury stock (Note 13) ....occovviiiniienianene
Other ..o

Net cash used in financing activities .....................

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents ........................co v,

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ........

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..............

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 2)
2006 2005 2004 2006
154,410 ¥ 58,481 ¥ 42145 $ 1,319,744
309,399 325,465 278,177 2,644,436
(47,449) (31,399) (11,327) (405,547)
8,409 4,963 3,154 71,872
70,748 56,805 21,160 604,684
35,292 16,186 52,492 301,641
66,378 33,078 11,666 567,333
(987) 27,719 19,618 (8,436)
(31,042) 61,207 35,248 (265,316)
36,498 84,405 (37,016) 311,948
(57,990) 14,649 13,450 (495,641)
112,340 (74,276) 87,226 960,171
3.872 (3,422) 12,254 33,094
37,108 (10,736) 10,782 317,162
(73,180) (99,499) (67,332) (625,470)
(13,304) (13,873) (15,906) (113,710)
(35,084) 14,809 17,435 (299,863)
575,418 464 562 473,226 4,918,102
41,867 6,117 — 357,837
(54,967) (9,001) (702) (469,803)
849.409 101,374 68,468 7,259,906
(385,865)  (133,636)  (207,869)  (3,297,992)
(356,751)  (352,203)  (275.544)  (3,049,154)
168,631 78,131 113,008 1,441,291
_ 26,823 30,697 —
141,289 27,748 202,808 1,207,598
—_ 82,208 —_— _
63,083 — — 539,171
(59,605) (5,857) (16,311) (509,444)
407,091 (178,296) (85,445) 3,479,410
15,037 (8,009) (39,577) 128,521
(104,835)  (125,261) 119 (896,025)
30,653 119,422 108,026 261,991
(328,243)  (251.554)  (228,039) (2,805,495)
(39,105) (35.251) (29.218) (334,231)
(16,281) (14,765) (4.675) (139,154)
(87,150) (92.879) (69,394) (744.872)
228 1,324 — 1,949
5,128 1,395 5,963 43,829
(524,568)  (405,578)  (256,795)  (4,483,487)
39,699 14,054 (23,442) 339,308
497,640 (105,258) 107,544 4,253,333
1,169,756 1,275,014 1,167,470 9,997,915
¥1,667,396 ¥1,169,756 ¥1,275,014 $14,251,248




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Description of Business

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. (hereinafter, the
“Company,” including consolidated subsidiaries, unless
the context otherwise requires) is one of the world’s
leading producers of electronic and electric products.
The Company currently offers a comprehensive range
of products, systems and components for consumer,
business and industrial use based on sophisticated elec-
tronics and precision technology, expanding to building
materials and equipment, and housing business.

Most of the Company’s products are marketed under
“Panasonic” and several other trade names, including
“National,” “Technics,” “Quasar,” “Victor,” “JVC”
and “PanaHome.”

Sales in fiscal 2006 were categorized as follows: AVC
Networks—41%, Home Appliances—13%, Compo-
nents and Devices—12%, MEW and PanaHome*—18%,
JVC—8%, and Other—8%. A sales breakdown in
fiscal 2006 by geographical market was as follows:
Japan—52%, North and South America—16%,
Europe—12%, and Asia and Others—20%.

The Company is not dependent on a single supplier,
and has no significant difficulty in obtaining raw mate-
rials from suppliers.

* MEW stands for Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. and PanaHome
stands for PanaHome Corporation.

{(b) Basis of Presentation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries maintain

their books of account in conformity with financial

accounting standards of Japan, and its foreign

subsidiaries in conformity with those of the countries

of their domicile.

The consolidated financial statements presented
herein have been prepared in a manner and reflect
adjustments which are necessary to conform with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

{c) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its majority-owned,
controlled subsidiaries. The Company also consolidates
entities in which controlling interest exists through
variable interests in accordance with Financial Account-
ing Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46
(revised December 2003), “Consclidation of Variable
Interest Entities” (FIN 46R)).

The Company changed the presentation of “deposits
and advances from customers” from net cash used in
financing activities to net cash provided by operating
activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows
for the year ended March 31, 2006. In addition, the
Company revised the corresponding prior year presen-

tation. The revision decreased net cash provided by
operating activities and increased net cash used in
financing activities by ¥13,873 million and ¥15,906
million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. These changes were not material to the
consolidated statements of cash flows for these years.

(d) Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue principally through
the sale of consumer and industrial products, equipment,
and supplies. The Company recognizes revenue when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery
has occurred, and title and risk of loss have been trans-
ferred to the customer or services have been rendered,
the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility
is reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of products is generally recog-
nized when the products are received by customers.
Revenue from sales of certain products with customer
acceptance provisions related to their functionality
is recognized when the product is received by the
customer and the specific criteria of the product func-
tionality are successfully tested and demonstrated.

The Company enters into arrangements with multi-
ple elements, which may include any combination
of products, equipment, installment and maintenance.
The Company allocates revenue to each element based
on its relative fair value if such element meets the crite-
ria for treatment as a separate unit of accounting as
prescribed in the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
Issue 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables” (EITF 00-21). EITF 00-21 was effective
for revenue arrangements entered into after June 30,
2003. EITF 00-21 did not have a material effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s policy is to accept product returns
only in the case that the products are defective. The
Company issues contractual product warranties under
which it guarantees the performance of products deliv-
ered and services rendered for a certain period of time.
A liability for the estimated product warranty related
cost is established at the time revenue is recognized, and
is included in “Other accrued expenses.” Estimates for
accrued warranty cost are primarily based on historical
experience and current information on repair cost.

Historically, the Company has made certain
allowances related to sales to its consumer business dis-
tributors. Such allowances are generally provided to
compensate the distributors for a decline in the prod-
uct’s value, and are classified as a reduction of revenue
on the consolidated statements of income. Estimated
price adjustments are accrued when the related sales are
recognized. The estimate is made based primarily on
the historical experience or specific arrangements made
with the distributors.
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The Company also occasionally offers incentive pro-
grams to its distributors in the form of rebates. These
rebates are accrued at the later of the date at which the
related revenue is recognized or the date at which the
incentive is offered, and are recorded as reductions of
sales in accordance with EITF 01-09, “Accounting for
Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products).”

(e) Leases (See Note 7)

Prior to April 1, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company
leased machinery and equipment to third parties. Leases
of such assets were principally accounted for as direct
financing Jeases and included in “Trade receivables—
Accounts” and “Noncurrent receivables” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

On April 1, 2005, the Company sold the majority
shares of this subsidiary to a third party, and began to
account for its remaining investment using the equity
method.

{f) Inventories (See Note 4}

Finished goods and work in process are stated at the
lower of cost (average) or market. Raw materials are
stated at cost, principally on a first-in, first-out basis,
not in excess of current replacement cost.

(g) Foreign Currency Translation (See Note 14)

Foreign currency financial statements are translated in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 52, “Foreign Currency Transla-
tion,” under which all assets and liabilities are translated
into yen at year-end rates and income and expense
accounts are translated at weighted-~average rates.
Adjustments resulting from the translation of financial
statements are reflected under the caption, “Accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss),” a separate compo-
nent of stockholders’ equity.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Deprecia-

tion is computed primarily using the declining balance

method based on the following estimated useful lives:
Buildings ..o 5 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment............... 2 to 10 years

(i) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (See Note 9)
Goodwill represents the excess of costs over the fair
value of net assets of businesses acquired. The Com-
pany adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142,
*Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Goodwill and
intangible assets acquired in a purchase business com-
bination and determined to have an indefinite useful
life are not amortized, and are instead tested for
impairment at least annually based on assessment of
current estimated fair value of the intangible asset.
SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with
estimable useful lives be amortized over their respective
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estimated useful lives to their estimriated residual values,
and reviewed for impairment based on an assessment of
the undiscounted cash flows expected by the asset. An
impairment charge is recognized for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset.

(j} Investments and Advances (See Notes 5, 6 and 14)
Investments and advances primarily consist of invest-
ments in and advances to associated companies, cost
method investments, available-for-sale securities, and
long-term deposits. Cost method investments and
long-term deposits are recorded at historical cost.

The equity method is used to account for invest-
ments in associated companies in which the Company
exerts significant influence, generally having a 20% to
50% ownership interest, and corporate joint ventures,
The Company also uses the equity method for some
subsidiaries if the minority shareholders have substan-
tive participating rights. Under the equity method of
accounting, investments are stated at their underlying
net equity value after elimination of intercompany
profits. The cost method is used when the Company
does not have significant influence.

The excess of cost of the stock of the associated com-
panies over the Company’s share of their net assets at the
acquisition date, included in the equity investment bal-
ance, is recognized as equity method goodwill. Such
equity method goodwill is not being amortized and is
instead tested for impairment as part of the equity
method investment.

The Company accounts for debt and equity securi-
ties in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.”

SEAS No. 115 requires that certain investments in
debt and equity securities be classified as held-to-maturity,
trading, or available-for-sale securities. The Company
classifies its existing marketable equity securities other
than investments in associated companies and all debt
securities as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securi-
ties are carried at fair value with unrealized holding
gains or losses included as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable
taxes.

Realized gains and losses are determined on the
average cost method and reflected in earnings.

On a continuous basis, but no less frequently than
at the end of each semi-annual period, the Company
evaluates the carrying amount of each of the investments
in associated companies, cost method investments and
available-for-sale securities for possible other-than-
temporary impairment. Factors considered in assessing
whether an indication of other-than-temporary impair-
ment exists include the period of time the fair value has
been below the carrying amount or cost basis of invest-
ment, financial condition and prospects of each
investee, and other relevant factors.




Investments in associated companies, cost method
investments and available-for-sale securities are reduced
to fair value by a charge to earnings when impairment
is considered to be other than temporary. Impairment is
measured based on the amount by which the carrying
amount or cost basis of the investment exceeds its fair
value. Fair value is determined based on quoted market
prices, discounted cash flows or other valuation tech-
niques as appropriate.

{k) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

An allowance for doubtful trade receivables and
advances is provided at an amount calculated based on
historical experience, while specific allowances for
doubtful receivables are provided for the estimated
amounts considered to be uncollectible after reviewing

individual collectibility.

(I} Income Taxes {See Note 12)

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and lia-
bility method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

{m) Advertising (See Note 17)
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

(n) Net Income per Share (See Notes 13 and 15)

The Company accounts for net income per share in
accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.”
This Statement establishes standards for computing net
income per share and requires dual presentation of basic
and diluted net income per share on the face of the
statements of income for all entities with complex capi-
tal structures.

Under SFAS No. 128, basic net income per share is
computed based on the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during each period, and
diluted net income per share assumes the dilution that
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted into com-
mon stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock.

(o) Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include all highly liquid debt instru-
ments purchased with a maturity of three months or less.

{p) Derivative Financial Instruments (See Notes 14, 18

and 19)
Derivative financial instruments utilized by the Com-
pany are comprised principally of foreign exchange
contracts, interest rate swaps, Cross currency swaps and
commodity futures used to hedge currency risk, interest
rate risk and commodity price risk.

The Company accounts for derivative instruments
in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended. The Company recognizes derivatives in the
consolidated balance sheets at their fair value in “Other
current assets,” “Other assets,” “Other current liabili-
ties” or “Other liabilities.” On the date the derivative
contract is entered into, the Company designates the
derivative as either a hedge of the fair value of a recog-
nized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm
commitment (“fair-value” hedge), a hedge of a fore-
casted transaction or of the variability of cash flows
to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or
liability (“cash-flow” hedge), or a foreign-currency fair-
value or cash-flow hedge (“foreign-currency” hedge).
The Company formally documents all relationships
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk-management objective and strategy for under-
taking various hedge transactions. The Company also
formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on
an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly
effective and that is designated and qualifies as a fair-value
hedge, along with the loss or gain on the hedged asset or
liability or unrecognized firm commitment of the
hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk, are
recorded in earnings. Changes in the fair value of a
derivative that is highly effective and that is designated
and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are recorded in other
comprehensive income (loss), until earnings are affected
by the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged
item. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
highly effective as hedges and that are designated and
qualify as foreign-currency hedges are recorded in
either earnings or other comprehensive income (loss),
depending on whether the hedge transaction is a fair-
value hedge or a cash-flow hedge. The ineffective
portion of the change in fair value of a derivative
instrument that qualifies as either a fair-value hedge
or a cash-flow hedge is reported in earnings.

{g) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (See Note 8)

The Company accounts for impairment or disposition
of long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” In accordance with SFAS No. 144,
long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment,
and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are
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reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.
If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized
for the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

(r) Restructuring Charges (See Note 16)

The Company accounts for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities in accordance with SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.”” Pursuant to SFAS No. 146, liabilities for
restructuring costs are recognized when the liability is
incurred, which may be subsequent to the date when
the Company has committed to a restructuring plan.

(s) Stock-Based Compensation {(See Note 13)

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compen-
sation,” and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of SFAS No. 123, established accounting
and disclosure requirements using a fair-value-based
method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation plans.

As permitted by existing accounting standards, the
Company has elected to continue to apply the intrin-
sic-based-method of accounting prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and relat-
ed interpretations to account for its stock option plans
described in Note 13, and has adopted only the disclo-
sure requirements of SFAS No. 123, as amended.

As the option price at the date of grant exceeded the
fair market value of common stock, no compensation’
costs have been recognized in connection with the plans.

If the accounting provision of SFAS No. 123, as
amended, had been adopted, the impact on the Com-
pany’s net income for the three years ended March 31,
2006 would not be material.

(t) Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of
estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples. Actual resules could differ from those estimates.

{u) New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS No. 123
(revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS No.
123R), which addresses accounting for transactions in
which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for
goods or services, with a primary focus on transactions
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in which an entity obtains employee services in share-
based payment transactions. SFAS No. 123R 15 a
revision to SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB Opinion
No. 25 and its related implementation guidance. SFAS
No. 123R will require measurement of the cost of
employee services received in exchange for stock com-
pensation based on the grant-date fair value of the
employee stock options. Incremental compensation
costs arising from subsequent modifications of awards
after the grant date must be recognized. SFAS No. 123R
will be effective for the Company as of April 1, 2006.
The application of SFAS No. 123R is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS No. 151,
“Inventory Costs,” which clarifies the accounting for
abnormal amounts of its idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). Under
SFAS No. 151, such items will be recognized as
current-period charges. In addition, SFAS No. 151
requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to
the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity
of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 will be
effective for the Company for inventory costs incurred
on or after April 1, 2006. The application of SFAS
No. 151 is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS No. 153,
“Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets,” which eliminates
an exception in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting
for Nonmonetary Transactions,” for nonmonetary
exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it
with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary
assets that do not have commercial substance. SFAS
No. 153 will be effective for the Company for non-
monetary asset exchanges occurring on or after April 1,
2006. The application of SFAS No. 153 is not expected
to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In September 2005, EITF issued EITF 04-13,
“Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory with
the Same Counterparty,” which provides guidance as to
when purchases and sales of inventory with the same
counterparty should be accounted for as a single
exchange transaction. EITF 04-13 also provides guid-
ance as to when a nonmonetary exchange of inventory
should be accounted for at fair value. EITF 04-13 will
be applied to new arrangements entered into, and mod-
ifications or renewals of existing arrangements
occurring after April 1, 2006. The application of EITF
04-13 is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

{v) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior
years’ consolidated financial statements and notes there-
to to conform with the presentation used for the year
ended March 31, 2006.




2. Basis of Translating Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are expressed in
yen. However, solely for the convenience of the reader,
the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2006 have been translated into
United States dollars at the rate of ¥117=U.S.$1, the

approximate exchange rate on the Tokyo Foreign
Exchange Market on March 31, 2006. This translation
should not be construed as a representation that all the
amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. Acquisition

On April 1, 2004, the Company acquired 19.2% of
the issued common shares of Matsushita Electric Works,
Lid. (MEW) through a tender offer to obtain its con-
trolling interest. Until then, the Company had a 31.8%
equity ownership.

This acquisition also resulted in another acquisition
of a controlling interest of PanaHome Corporation
(PanaHome) because both the Company and MEW
had 27% equity ownerships, respectively.

The results of operations of MEW and PanaHome
are included in the consolidated financial statements
since that date. MEW 1s a manufacturer of household
electric equipment, building products and related
materials based in Osaka, Japan. As a result of the
acquisition, the Company is expected to provide a
comprehensive range of home electric and household
equipment and systems in Japan. It also expects to
reduce costs through economies of scale and sharing of
research and development resources and marketing
channels. The aggregate purchase cost of additional
MEW shares was ¥147,187 million and was paid in

Cash and cash equivalents..................coo
Other CULTENE 3SSELS....oerrirruieriireeererreeennneen
Property, plant and equipment.........cccccooeneeens
GoodWill ...
Intangible assets .....oocvirviiiiiiiiii e
In-process research and development...............
Other assets....ovveviiiiviirieri e

Total assets acquired ........oocooviiiiii

Current habilities ........oooooiiiii
Noncurrent liabilities ..........cooiiiiiiin

Total liabilities assumed ........ccocooiininn
MINOrity INLETESIS.....covriieeiiineeceiiiiieee e
Net assets acquired ......ccoovvvviiiciiiiniiiien.

cash. The carrying value of the Company’s common
shares of MEW immediately before the acquisition was
¥200,174 million. The carrying value of the Compa-
ny’s existing common shares of PanaHome at April 1,
2004 was ¥22,861 million.

The purchase price of additional MEW shares has
been allocated based upon the estimated fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase
price over fair value of net identifiable assets was
allocated to goodwill. The Company’s new basis of
investments in MEW and PanaHome upon the acquisi-
tion of additional shares of MEW was ¥343 844
million, which consisted of the purchase price
of acquired shares and the carrying value of the existing
shares, net of deferred tax liabilities of ¥26,378 million
on the outside basis of existing shares that had been
accounted for using the equity method. Such new basis
of investments in MEW and PanaHome was allocated
as follows:

Millions of yen

.................................................................... ¥ 226,911

431,633
440,584
41,523

311
220,631
1,387,126
335,899
419,803
755,702
287,580

.................................................................... ¥ 343,844
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In-process research and development represents the
estimated value of in-process research and development
projects that had not yet reached technical feasibility. The
related technology had no alternative use and required
substantial additional development by the Company.
In-process research and development was charged to
operations during the year ended March 31, 2005 and
included in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of income.

Of the ¥25,533 million of acquired intangible assets,
¥20,005 million was assigned to assets subject to amor-
tization, which have a weighted-average useful life of
approximately seven years and include technologies of
¥9,592 million with a 10-year weighted-average useful
life, and software of ¥8,892 million with a 5-year
weighted-average useful life.

The total amount of goodwill is included in “MEW
and PanaHome” segment, and is not deductible for tax
purposes.

The unaudited pro forma information shows the
results of the Company’s consolidated income for the
year ended March 31, 2004 as though MEW and
PanaHome had been consolidated at the beginning
of fiscal 2004. The unaudited pro forma results include
the unaudited historical operating results of MEW and
PanaHome for the year ended March 31, 2004.

The unaudited pro forma data is not necessarily
indicative of the Company’s results of income that
would actually have been reported if the transaction in
fact had occurred on April 1, 2003, and is not neces-
sarily representative of the Company’s consolidated
results of income for any future period.

Unaudited
Millions of yen

2004

¥8,771,836
49,129

2004

¥21.16
20.94

4. Inventories

Inventories at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:

Finished goods.......c.occo v,
WOrk in process .o.o.oevveveiiireireiiie e
Raw materials......ooovviiiiiii e
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
...................... ¥534,766 ¥491,381 54,570,650
...................... 126,152 139,745 1,078,222
...................... 254,344 262,299 2,173,880
¥915,262 ¥893,425 $7,822,752




5. Investments in and Advances to, and Transactions with Associated Companies

Certain financial information in respect of associated
companies in aggregate at March 31, 2006 and 2005
and for the three vears ended March 31, 2006 is
shown below. The most significant of these associated
companies are Toshiba Matsushita Display Technology
Co., Ltd. (TMD) and Sumishin Matsushita Financial
Services Co., Ltd. (SMFC). At March 31, 2006, the
Company has a 40% equity ownership in TMD and a
34% equity ownership in SMFC.

The Company formerly accounted for the invest-
ment in Matsushita Toshiba Picture Display Co., Ltd.
(MTPD) and its subsidiaries under the equity method,
and began to consolidate MTPD on March 1, 2006 in
accordance with FIN 46R, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities,” as a result of certain restructuring
activities of MTPD. At March 31, 2006, the Company
has a 64.5% equity ownership in MTPD, which is
engaged in manufacturing and distributing cathode ray

CUTTENL ASSEES iivtiniiiniririe e eeeeire e anens
Other aSSELS covvvniiiiii i

Current liabilities
Other liabilities

Net assets

Company’s equity in net assets..........cceeevvveennse

Investments in and advances to associated companies

Nt SaleS ..o
Gross Profit ...ovoeoviiiiiiiiniiiii
N LSS ettt

tubes. The impact of consolidating MTPD is not
material to the Company’s consolidated financial state-
ments. Financial information associated with MTPD
through February 28, 2006 is included in the aggregate
information below, however, financial information as
of and for the one month ended March 31, 2006 is not
included.

As described in Note 3, MEW, PanaHome and their
respective subsidiaries, which were formerly accounted
for under the equity method, became consolidated
subsidiaries of the Company on April 1, 2004.
Accordingly, financial information associated with
MEW, PanaHome and their respective subsidiaries in
fiscal 2006 and 2005 is not included below.

Financial information associated with SMFC for fis-
cal 2005 and 2004 is not included below, as it was a
subsidiary through fiscal 2005.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
................... ¥ 842,766 ¥417,848 $ 7,203,128
................... 578,082 383,739 4,940,872
1,420,848 801,587 12,144,000
................... 633,909 423,858 5,418,026
................... 397,313 97,800 3,395,837
................... ¥ 389,626 ¥279,929 $ 3,330,137
................... ¥ 153,590 ¥118,489 $ 1,312,735
........... 133,608 166,955 1,141,949
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
¥1,227,057 ¥1,187,975 ¥2,552,682 $10,487,667
195,141 176,765 577,451 1,667,872
(70,381)  (11,178) (6,598) (601,547)
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Trade receivables and payables include the following balances with associated companies at March 31, 2006 and
2005:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Due from oo ¥22,101 ¥17,612 $188,897
DUE L0 it 76,485 30,121 653,718

Purchases and sales include the following transactions with associated companies for the three years ended March
31, 2006:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Purchases from ... ¥261,458 260,745 ¥366,943 $2,234,684
SalES TO. . coivrieiiriee et 204,740 192,489 179,270 1,749,915

Dividends received from associated companies for the three years ended March 31, 2006 are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Dividends received ...ooooooooieniii e ¥1,496 ¥1,480 ¥5,525 $12,786
Retained earnings include undistributed earnings of  million ($262,231 thousand), ¥2,833 million and
associated companies in the amount of ¥28,299 mil- ¥50,793 million, respectively, for other-than-tempo-
lion ($241,872 thousand) and ¥11,974 million, as of rary impairment of investments and advances in
March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. associated companies. The write-down is included
During the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and in other deductions in the consolidated statements of

2004, the Company incurred a write-down of ¥30,681 income.

Investments in associated companies include equity securities which have quoted market values at March 31,

2006 and 2005 compared with related carrying amounts as follows: Thossands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
CarTYING AMOUNE. ittt ettt ¥3,054 ¥3,168 $26,103
Market VAIUE ....oooviiiiiiiiceee e 5,088 4,133 43,487
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6. Investments in Securities

The Company classifies its existing marketable equity
securities other than investments in associated compa-
nies and all debt securities as available-for-sale.

The cost, fair value, gross unrealized holding gains,

and gross unrealized holding losses of available-for-sale
securities included in short-term investments and
investments and advances at March 31, 2006 and 2005
are as follows:

2006
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Gross Gross Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized unrealized unrealized
Fair holding holding Fair holding holding
Cost value gains losses Cost value gains losses
Current:
Japanese and foreign
government bonds .... ¥ 30,028 ¥ 30,012 ¥ 3 ¥ 198 256,650 8 256,513 § 26 $§ 163
Convertible and
straight bonds........... 1,500 1,500 — — 12,820 12,820 — _
Other debt securities ... 25,241 25,241 —_— —_ 215,735 215,735 — —
¥ 56,769 ¥ 56,753 ¥ 3 ¥ 19§ 485,205 $ 485,068 $ 26 $ 163
Noncurrent:
Equity securities.......... ¥230,400 ¥527,705 ¥297,371 ¥ 66 $1,969,231 $4,510,299 $2,541,632 $§ 564
Japanese and foreign
government bonds ... 90,214 89,678 — 536 771,060 766,479 — 4,581
Convertible and
straight bonds............. 32,866 32,702 13 177 280,906 279,504 111 1,513
Other debt securities... 18,580 18,654 104 30 158,803 159,436 889 256
¥372,060 *¥668,739 ¥297,488 *¥809 $3,180,000 $5,715,718 $2,542,632 $6,914

2005

Millions of yen

Gross

Gross

unrealized unrealized
Fair holding holding
Cost value gains losses
Current:
Japanese and foreign
government bonds .... ¥ 3B ¥ 3B ¥ — ¥ —
Convertible and
straight bonds............ 5,000 5,000 — —
Other debt securities ... 6,943 6,943 — —
¥ 11978 ¥ 11,978 ¥ — ¥ —
Noncurrent:
Equity securities........... ¥228202 ¥392,903 ¥164,826 ¥125
Japanese and foreign
government bonds .... 40,200 40,233 33 —
Convertible and
straight bonds............ 31,644 31,871 230 3
Other debt securities ... 18,258 18,282 101 77
¥318,304 ¥483,289 ¥165,190 ¥205
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Maturities of investments in available-for-sale securities at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Fair Fair Fair
Cost value Cost value Cost value
Due within one year.......... ¥ 56,769 ¥ 56,753 ¥ 11,978 ¥ 11,978 $ 485,205 $ 485,068
Due after one year
through five years............ 137,184 136,681 79,841 80,008 1,172,513 1,168,214
Due after five years
through ten vears............. 4,476 4,353 10,261 10,378 38,256 37,205
Equity securities............... 230,400 527,705 228,202 392,903 1,969,231 4,510,299
¥428,829 ¥725,492 ¥330,282 ¥495,267 $3,665,205 $6,200,786

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities for ~ sold in computing gross realized gains and losses is
the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were determined by the average cost method.

¥135,907 million ($1,161,598 thousand), ¥74,719 mil-
lion and ¥40,611 million, respectively. The gross

During the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, the Company incurred a write-down of ¥458

realized gains for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 million ($3,914 thousand), ¥2,661 million and ¥1,699

and 2004 were ¥63,757 million ($544,932 thousand),

million, respectively, for other-than-temporary impair-

¥31,655 million and ¥12,391 million, respectively. The ment of available-for-sale securities, mainly reflecting
gross realized losses on sale of available-for-sale securi- the aggravated market condition of certain industries in
ties for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004  Japan. The write-down is included in other deductions

were ¥199 million ($1,701 thousand), ¥256 million
and ¥1,064 million, respectively. The cost of securities

in the consolidated statements of income.

Gross unrealized holding losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated
by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss

position, at March 31, 2006 and 2005, are as follows:

2006
Millions of yen
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
Equity securities ................... ¥ 1,474 ¥ 66 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 1,474 ¥ 66
Japanese and foreign
government bonds.............. 114,558 555 — — 114,558 555
Convertible and
straight bonds ... 30,623 177 — —_ 30,623 177
Other debt securities ............ 1,822 30 — — 1,822 30
¥148,477 ¥ 828 ¥ — ¥ —  ¥148,477 ¥ 828
2005
Millions of yen
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
Equity securities ................... ¥ 5,828 ¥ 125 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 5828 ¥ 125
Convertible and
straight bonds..............ccc.... 1,497 3 — — 1,497 3
Other debt securities ............ 1,423 77 — — 1,423 77
¥ 8,748 ¥ 205 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ §748 ¥ 205
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2006

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Less than 12 months

12 months or more Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
Equity securities................ $ 12,598 § 564 $ — $§ — $ 12,598 §$ 564
Japanese and foreign
government bonds .......... 979,128 4,744 — —_ 979,128 4,744
Convertible and
straight bonds ................. 261,735 1,513 _— —_ 261,735 1,513
Other debt securities.......... 15,573 256 —_ — 15,573 256
$1,269,034  $7,077 $ — $ —  $1,269,034 $7,077

The gross unrealized loss position has been continuing for a relatively short period of time. Based on this and other
relevant factors, management has determined that these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily
impaired. The Company has not held unrealized losses for twelve months or more at March 31, 2006 or 2005.

The aggregate cost of the Company’s cost method
investments totaled ¥35,211 million ($300,949 thou-
sand) and ¥189,740 million at March 31, 2006 and
2005. The Company recognized the gross realized
losses of ¥31,264 million ($267,214 thousand) associ-
ated with the sale of a certain investment for the year
ended March 31, 2006. For investments with an aggre-
gate cost of ¥32,621 million ($278,812 thousand) and

¥34,245 million at March 31, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively, the Company estimated that the fair value
exceeded the cost of investments (that is, the invest-
ments were not impaired). For the years ended March
31, 2006 and 2005, the remaining investments were
considered other-than-temporarily impaired, resulting
in a write~-down of ¥4,153 million ($35,496 thou-
sand) and ¥10,692 million, respectively.

7. Leases

The Company has capital and operating leases for cer-
tain machinery and equipment with SMFC and other
third parties. At March 31, 2006 and 2005, the gross
book value of machinery and equipment under capital
leases was ¥168,374 million ($1,439,094 thousand) and
¥47,765 million, and the related accumulated deprecia-
tion recorded was *¥101,025 million ($863,462
thousand) and ¥27,052 million, respectively.

During the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, the Company sold and leased back certain
machinery and equipment for ¥115,326 muillion
($985,692 thousand), ¥49,574 million and ¥44,636
million, respectively. The base lease term is 2 to 5

years. The resulting leases are being accounted for as
operating leases. The resulting gains of these transac-
tions, included in other income in the consolidated
statements of income, were not significant. The Com-
pany has options to purchase the leased assets, or to
terminate the leases and guarantee a specified value of
the leased assets thereof, subject to certain conditions,
during or at the end of the lease term.

Rental expenses for operating leases, including the
above-mentioned sale-leaseback transactions were
¥41,302 million ($353,009 thousand), ¥34,800 mil-
lion and ¥29,049 million for the years ended March
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable capital leases and operating leases at March 31, 2006
are as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U S. dollars
Capital Operating Capital Operating

Year ending March 31 leases leases leases leases
2007 o ¥29,857 ¥ 44,938 $255,188 § 384,085
2008 e 20,406 52,853 174,410 451,735
2009 o e 12,201 27,861 104,282 238,128
2000 o e 6,178 21,268 52,803 181,778
2011 (e 2,913 29,379 24,898 251,103
Thereafter. ..ot 1,923 2,618 16,436 22,376
Total minimum lease payments........cccccovniiiieiiiiinn. 73,478 *¥178,917 628,017 $1,529,205
Less amount representing Interest ..........ccveevveeeenninnenns 2,847 B 24,333
Present value of net minimum lease payments ............ 70,631 603,684
Less CUrtent POTHION ...ocuuvieriereoriiiteenieceeea e 28,596 244,410
Long-term capital lease obligations............cccceeeiennennn ¥42,035 $359,274

Prior to April 1, 2005, a subsidiary of the Company leased machinery and equipment. Leases of such assets are
principally accounted for as direct financing leases. On April 1, 2005, the Company sold the majority shares of
this subsidiary to a third party, and began to account for its remaining investment using the equity method. Invest-
ments in non-cancelable financing leases at March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005

Total minimum lease payments to be received.........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e ¥332,292
Less amounts representing estimated eXECULOTY COSL ..uvviriiriiieriuieiniiantee et eenacenie e enees 13,840
Less UNEArNed ICOIMIE ..oviiii ettt 15,677

302,775
Less allowance for doubtfil 1€CeIVables.....oooovivri i e 5,946
Net investment in financing Leases.........ocovviii ittt ettt 296,829
LSS CUTTENE POTTIOI. 1.ttt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e s e eeee e 105,817
Long-term investment in financing leases................ooiiiiiiiiiiniiii e ¥191,012
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8. Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews the recorded value
of its long-lived assets to determine if the future cash
flows to be derived from these assets will be sufficient
to recover the remaining recorded asset values. As
discussed in Note 1 (q), the Company accounts for
impairment of long-lived assets in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Impairment losses are included in other
deductions in the consolidated statements of income,
and are not charged to segment profit.

The Company recognized impairment losses in the
aggregate of ¥16,230 million ($138,718 thousand)
of property, plant and equipment during fiscal 2006.

The Company decided to sell certain land and build-
ings, and classified those land and buildings as assets
held for sale. These assets are included in other current
assets in the consolidated balance sheet and the Compa-
ny recognized an impairment loss. The fair value of the
land and buildings was determined by using a purchase
price offered by a third party.

The Company also recorded impairment losses relat-
ed to write-down of land and buildings used in
connection with the manufacture of certain informa-
tion and communications equipment at a domestic
subsidiary. As a result of plans to carry out selection and
concentration of businesses, the Company estimated
the carrying amounts would not be recovered by the
future cash flows. The fair value of land was determined
by specific appraisal. The fair value of buildings was
determined based on the discounted estimated future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the build-
ings and their eventual disposition.

Impairment losses of ¥4,260 million ($36,410 thou-
sand), ¥2,771 million {$23,684 thousand), ¥2,488
million ($21,265 thousand), ¥2,754 million ($23,538
thousand) and ¥3,957 million ($33,821 thousand) were
related to “AVC Networks,” “Components and
Devices,” “MEW and PanaHome,” “Other” and the
remaining segments, respectively.

The Company recognized impairment losses in the
aggregate of ¥28,265 million of property, plant and
equipment during fiscal 2005.

Due to severe competition primarily in the domestic
audio and visual industry, the Company was in the
process of realigning various branches of a certain

R

domestic sales subsidiary. Consequently the Company
decided to sell the land and buildings of the subsidiary
near the end of fiscal 2005, and classified those land and
buildings as assets held for sale, which were included in
other current assets in the consolidated balance sheet.
As a result, the Company recognized an impairment
loss. The fair value of the land and buildings was deter-
mined by using a purchase price offered by a third party.

The Company also recorded an impairment loss
related to write-down of land and buildings used in
connection with the manufacture of certain informa-
tion and communications equipment at a domestic
subsidiary. As a result of plans to reduce production of
these products, the Company estimated the carrying
amounts would not be recovered by the future cash
flows. The fair value of land was determined by specific
appraisal. The fair value of buildings was determined
based on the discounted estimated future cash flows
expected to result from the use of cthe buildings and
their eventual disposition.

Impairment losses of ¥13,393 million, ¥8,555 mil-
lion and ¥6,317 million were related to “AVC
Networks,” “Home Appliances” and the remaining
segments, respectively.

The Company recognized impairment losses of
¥10,623 million of property, plant and equipment
during fiscal 2004.

One of the impairment losses is related to write-
down of certain land and buildings at a domestic sales
subsidiary to the fair value. Those assets were unused
and the Company estimated the carrying amounts
would not be recovered by the future cash flows. The
remaining impairment loss is mainly related to write-
down of machinery and equipment used in connection
with the manufacture of certain electric components at
a foreign subsidiary. As the prices of these products sig-
nificantly decreased due to highly competitive market,
the Company projected that the future business of those
products would result in operating losses. The fair value
was determined by estimating the market value.

Impairment losses of ¥2,530 million, ¥2,663 mil-
lion, ¥4,099 million and ¥1,331 million were related to
“AVC Networks,” “Home Appliances,” “Components
and Devices” and the remaining segments, respectively.
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment for the years ended March 31, 2006 and
2005 are as follows:

Millions of yen
AVC Home Components MEW and

Networks Appliances and Devices PanaHome Jvc Other Total

Balance at March 31, 2004............ ¥ 312,000 ¥ 21,790 ¥ 70,531 ¥  — ¥2943 ¥ 11,643 ¥ 418,907
Goodwill acquired during the year.. 25 698 376 43,113 254 2,098 46,564
Goodwill impaired during the year.. - — — — —  (3,559) (3,559)
Balance at March 31, 2005............ 312,025 22,488 70,907 43,113 3,197 10,182 461,912
Goodwill acquired during the year.. —_ 47 216 402 — 714 1,379
Goodwill written off related to

disposals during the vear............... (104) — — — — — (104)
Goodwill impaired during the year.. ¢50,050) — —_ —_— — — (50,050)
Balance at March 31, 2006............ ¥ 261,871 ¥22,535 ¥71,123 ¥ 43,515 ¥ 3,197 ¥ 10,896 ¥ 413,137

Thousands of U.S. dollars
AVC Home Components MEW and ‘
Networks Appliances and Devices PanaHome JvC Other Total

Balance at March 31, 2005............ $2,666,881 $192,205 $606,043 $368,487 $27,325 $§ 87,026 $3,947,967
Goodwill acquired during the year.. — 402 1,846 3,436 —_ 6,102 11,786
Goodwill written off related to

disposals during the year............... (889) — —_ — — — (889)
Goodwill impaired during the year..  (427,778) — —_ —_ — —  (427,778)
Balance at March 31, 2006............ $2,238,214 $192,607 $607,889 $371,923 $27,325 $ 93,128 $3,531,086

The Company recognized an impairment loss of a cable-broadcasting subsidiary. As the growth rate
¥50,050 million ($427,778 thousand) during fiscal 2006  of the cable-broadcasting business was lower than the
related to goodwill of a mobile communication sub- Company’s expectation, the carrying amount of the
sidiary. This impairment is due to a decrease in the cable-broadcasting unit was greater than the fair value
estimated fair value of the reporting unit caused by of the reporting unit.
decreased profit expectation and the closure of certain The fair value was determined by using the estimat-
businesses in Europe and Asia. ed present fair value of future cash flows or quoted
The Company recognized an impairment loss of market prices.

¥3,559 million during fiscal 2005 related to goodwill of

Acquired intangible assets, excluding goodwill, at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Gross carrying  Accumulated Gross carrying Accumulated Average Gross carrying Accumulated
amount amortization amount amortization amortization petiod arnount amortization
Amortizing intangible assets:
Patents..........c.coininnin. ¥ 39,245 ¥ 30,620 ¥ 39,183 ¥ 27901 8years $§ 335,427 § 261,709
Software.......cccocoviniennnnn. 187,336 117,821 162,794 97,035  4vyears 1,601,162 1,007,017
Other ...oooovviiiiii, 37,516 12,806 34,220 11,839 18 years 320,650 109,453
¥264,097 ¥161,247 ¥ 236,197 ¥ 136,775 $2,257,239 $1,378,179
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006

Non-amortizing intangible assets.........cccviveriirieiiiiiie e ¥1,308 ¥2,163 $11,179
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Aggregate amortization expense for amortizing intangible assets for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 was ¥33,918 million ($289,897 thousand), ¥37,569 million and ¥23,789 million, respectively. Estimated
amortization expense for the next five years is as follows: '

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 M __U,_S.dLllars_
200 e et ¥27,084 $231,487
2008 ettt ettt et e et e e e e e e e e e e e et ettt bbb 18,961 162,060
2009 < e 11,564 98,838
200 e ettt eees 5,537 47,325
2L S O PO OO PRSP O T PP PRPU PPN 3,626 30,991

The Company recorded an impairment loss of ¥349 million of amortizing intangible assets in fiscal 2005. The
Company estimated the carrying amount would not be recovered by the future cash flows, due to severe competi-
tion in the domestic market. The Company also recognized an impairment loss of ¥98 million ($837 thousand),
¥905 million and ¥1,043 million of non-amortizing intangible assets, in connection with the decline of their mar-
ket value during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The impairment loss is included in other deductions in
the consolidated statements of income.

10. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

Long-term debt at March 31, 2006 and 2005 is set forth below:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Convertible bonds issued by subsidiaries, due 2005,

INEETESt (55901 5% it ¥ — ¥ 86,411 $ —
Straight bonds, due 2007, interest 0.87% ..........coovciiiniiiiiiini 100,014 100,084 854,820
Straight bonds, due 2011, interest 1.64% .....o.ocooiieeiiiiiiiiiiniiiin, 100,000 100,000 854,701
Straight bonds issued by subsidiaries, due 2005~2013,

interest 0.6%—2.15% ..o 80,000 116,583 683,761
Unsecured yen loans from banks and insurance companies,

due 2005-2013, effective interest 0.4% in 2006 and

0.5% 10 2005 it 84,983 306,146 726,350
Secured yen loans mainly from Development Bank of Japan

by subsidiaries, due 20062016, effective interest 0.24% .................... 3,495 — 29,872
Capital lease ODHGAIONS. ... .ocuveiiieiiieie e 70,631 23,683 603,684

439,123 732,907 3,753,188
Less CUIrent POItION .....iivivieeiiiiiicen ittt 175,053 255,764 1,496,179

¥264,070 ¥477,143 $2,257,009

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2006 are as follows:
Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2007 e e ¥175,053 $1,496,179
2008 et et 47,749 408,111
2009 .. e 83,404 712,855
2000 s 7,003 59,855
200 e 3,286 28,085
As is customary in Japan, short-term and long-term  bank, and that the bank shall have the right, as the

bank loans are made under general agreements which obligations become due, or in the event of their default,

provide that security and guarantees for future and pre-  to offset cash deposits against such obligations due to

sent indebtedness will be given upon request of the the bank.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006 ‘ 71

R




Each of the loan agreements grants the lender the
right to request additional security or mortgages on
property, plant and equipment. At March 31, 2006,
property, plant and equipment with a book value of
¥6,645 million ($56,795 thousand) was pledged as
collateral by subsidiaries for secured yen loans mainly
from Development Bank of Japan. At March 31, 2006
and 2003, short-term loans subject to such general

agreements amounted to ¥33,951 mullion ($290,179
thousand) and ¥29,687 million, respectively. The bal-
ance of short-term loans also includes borrowings
under acceptances and short-tern loans of foreign
subsidiaries. The weighted-average interest rate on
short-term borrowings outstanding at March 31, 2006
and 2005 was 4.4% and 4.0%, respectively.

11. Retirement and Severance Benefits

The Company and certain subsidiaries have contributo-
ry, funded benefit pension plans covering substantially
all employees who meet eligibility requirements. Bene-
fits under the plans are primarily based on the
combination of years of service and compensation.

Effective April 1, 2002, the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries amended their benefit pension plans by
introducing a “point-based benefits system,” under
which benefits are calculated based on accumulated
points allocated to employees each year according to
their job classification and years of service.

The contributory, funded benefit pension plans
included those under Employees Pension Funds (EPF)
as 1s stipulated by the Welfare Pension Insurance Law
(the “Law”). The pension plans under the EPF are
composed of the substitutional portion of Japanese
Welfare Pension Insurance that the Company and cer-
tain of its subsidiaries operate on behalf of the Japanese
Government, and the corporate portion which is the
contributory defined benefit pension plan covering
substantially all of their employees and provides bene-
fits in addition to the substitutional portion.

In addition to the plans described above, upon retire-
ment or termination of employment for reasons other
than dismissal, employees are entitled to Jump-sum pay-
ments based on the current rate of pay and length of
service. If the termination is involuntary or caused by
death, the severance payment 1s greater than in the case
of voluntary termination. The lump-sum payment
plans are not funded.

Effective April 1, 2002, the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries amended their lump-sum payment plans
to cash balance pension plans. Under the cash balance
pension plans, each participant has an account which
is credited yearly based on the current rate of pay and
market-related interest rate.
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Following the enactment of changes to the Law,
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries obtained
Government’s approval for exemption from the benefit
obligation related to future employee services under
the substitutional portion in fiscal 2003. After obtaining
the approval, some of these companies obtained another
approval for separation of the remaining benefit obliga-
tion of substitutional portion which is related to past
employee services and returned the remaining benefit
obligation along with the plan assets calculated pursuant
to the Government formula by March 31, 2004. In ac-
cordance with EITF 03-2, “Accounting for the Transfer
to the Japanese Government of the Substitutional
Portion of Employee Pension Fund Liabilities,” the
Company recognized a gain of ¥72,228 million under
the caption of “Gain from the transfer of the sub-
stitutional portion of Japanese Welfare Pension
Insurance” for the year ended March 31, 2004. This
consists of ¥287,145 million of a subsidy from the
Government calculated as the difference between
accumulated benefit obligation setded and the amount
transferred to the Government, ¥69,756 million of
derecognition of previously accrued salary progression
and ¥284,673 million of recognition of related unrec-
ognized actuarial loss, at the time when the past benefit
obligation was transferred.

In fiscal 2005, certain other subsidiary of the Com-
pany transferred the substitutional portion of Japanese
Welfare Pension Insurance to the Government. The
Company recognized a gain of ¥31,509 million in
accordance with EITF 03-2. This consists of ¥165,266
million of a subsidy from the Government, ¥22,660
million of derecognition of previously accrued salary
progression and ¥156,417 million of recognition of
related unrecognized actuarial loss.

The Company uses a December 31 measurement
date for the majority of its benefit plans.




Net periodic benefit cost for the contributory, funded benefit pension plans, the unfunded lump-sum payment
plans, and the cash balance pension plans of the Company for the three years ended March 31, 2006 consisted of the

tollowing components:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Service cost—benefits earned during the year... ¥ 63,787 ¥ 71,081 ¥ 69,614 $ 545,188
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation.... 51,131 54,417 73,665 437,017
Expected return on plan assets ...............e..... (37,088) (35,101) (35,741) (316,992)
Amortization of prior service benefit .......... (26,376) (23,533) (9,879) (225,436)
Recognized actuarial 1oss ..o, 43,145 48,641 63,746 368,761
Net periodic benefit cost .......occeevvivrinrnnnn. ¥ 94,599 ¥115,505 ¥161,405 $ 808,538

Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligations of the contributory, funded benefit
pension plans, the unfunded lump-sum payment plans, and the cash balance pension plans, and the fair value of
the plan assets at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year ....................... ¥1,885,228 ¥1,900,657 $16,113,060
SEIVICE COSE ittt 63,787 71,081 545,188
THEEIESt COSE wniianiittine ittt 51,131 54,417 437,017
Prior service benefit ......ooooooviiiiiiiiiiii (5,850) (97,360) (50,000)
Actuarial (gain) 1o8S.....coomiiiiiiiiiiiii e 38,388 (12,070) 328,102
Benefits paid.......ccoocoiiiiiiiiiii (93,642) (86,803) (800,359)
Transfer of the substitutional portion .......c.cccoeeevnnennes — (415,930) —
Acquisition of MEW and PanaHome (Note 3) ............ — 470,676 —
Sale of majority shares of Matsushita Leasing & Credit
Cou, Ltd. oo (12,867) — (109,974)
Foreign currency exchange impact.........cccceeeeviiernennn. 3,898 560 33,316
Benefit obligations at end of year ........cccooeernnniicinen. 1,930,073 1,885,228 16,496,350
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year................. 1,294,306 1,072,621 11,062,444
Actual return on plan assets........cccoviiiiiiii 242,056 74,873 2,068,855
Employer contributions .........ccococvvrvveriricieciiiecicin. 159,885 165,018 1,366,538
Benefits paid.......ooooiiiiiiiii (79,374) (67,089) (678,410)
Transfer of the substitutional portion .......c.ccccooveeeenne — (228,004) -
Acquisition of MEW and PanaHome (Note 3) ............ — 276,566 —
Sale of majority shares of Matsushita Leasing & Credit
Cou, LEd. o (6,772) — (57,880)
Foreign currency exchange impact.............coovciiinnnne 2,309 321 19,735
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ..........ccccooernnn. 1,612,410 1,294,306 13,781,282
Funded status ......c...ooiiieeiiiiic e (317,663) (590,922) (2,715,068)
Unrecognized prior service benefit...........coovviiiinnn. (317,103) (338,948) (2,710,282)
Unrecognized actuarial 10ss ......cccooooiiiiiicniinnine 285,548 491,691 2,440,581
Net amount recognized..........ccccceeiviienniiiiciiiiiiiiiineen ¥ (349,218) ¥ (438,179) $(2,984,769)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
consist of:
Retirement and severance benefits ...........occcvvveveeennnnn. ¥ (414,266) ¥ (597,163)  $(3,540,735)
OTher ASSEES uuieiiiii e ee e e e e e e e ee e 49,103 22,462 419,684
Accumulated other comprehensive income, gross of tax.. 15,945 136,522 136,282
Net amount recognized........ovvviieeerieeiiiiiiiiniiiiiiieerieee ¥ (349,218) ¥ (438,179)  $(2,984,769)
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The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans was ¥1,905,395 million ($16,285,427 thousand) and
¥1,837,817 million at March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

DAISCOUNt Tate cooviiniieee e
Rate of compensation increase .........ccoce.e.

2006 2005
.............................. 2.7% 2.7%
.............................. 1.6% 1.8%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost for the three years ended March 31, 2006 are as

follows:

Discount rate .......coooeiiiiiii
Expected return on plan assets.............ccee
Rate of compensation increase...........c.........

The expected return on plan assets 1s determined
based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum
of the returns on individual asset categories, consider-
ing long-term historical returns, asset allocation, and
future estimates of long-term investment returns.

During the years ended March 31, 2005, the

2006 2005 2004
.............................. 2.7% 2.7% 2.7%
.............................. 3.0% 3.0% 2.7%
.............................. 1.8% 1.8% 2.0%

balance of “retirement and severance benefits”
decreased, mainly as a result of the derecognition of an
additional minimum pension liability, due to the trans-
fer of the substitutional portion of Japanese Welfare
Pension Insurance and a plan amendment of the
Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries.

The weighted-average asset allocation of the Company’s pension plans at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as

follows:

Asset category:

Equity securities ...........coooviiiiiiiiin,
Debt seCUTIties .. .ocovvevriiirieeniieee e
Life insurance company general accounts .....

Other oo

Each plan of the Company has a different invest-
ment policy, which is designed to ensure sufficient
plan assets are available to provide future payments of
pension benefits to the eligible plan participants and
is individually monitored for compliance and appro-
priateness on an on-going basis. Considering the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, each
plan of the Company establishes a “basic” portfolio
comprised of the optimal combination of equity
securities and debt securities. Plan assets are invested
in individual equity and debt securities using the
guidelines of the “basic” portfolio in order to generate
a total return that will satisfy the expected return on
a mid-term to long-term basis. The Company evalu-
ates the difference between expected return and
actual return of invested plan assets on an annual basis
to determine if such differences necessitate a revision in
the formulation of the “basic” portfolio. The Company
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2006 2005
.............................. 47% 44%
.............................. 37 37
.............................. 9 9
.............................. 7 10
.............................. 100% 100%

revises the “basic” portfolio when and to the extent
considered necessary to achieve the expected long-
term rate of return on plan assets.

The Company expects to contribute ¥154,613
million ($1,321,479 thousand) to its defined benefit
plans in the year ending March 31, 2007.

The benefits expected to be paid from the defined
pension plans in each fiscal year 20072011 are
¥63,218 million ($540,325 thousand), ¥68,871 million
($588,641 thousand), ¥74,967 million ($640,744
thousand), ¥81,034 million ($692,598 thousand), and
¥87,334 million ($746,444 thousand), respectively.
The aggregate benefits expected tc be paid in the
five years from fiscal 2012-2016 ar= ¥469,423 nullion
($4,012,162 thousand). The expected benefits are
based on the same assumptions used to measure the
Company’s benefit obligation at December 31 and
include estimated future employee service.




12. Income Taxes

Income before income taxes and income taxes for the three years ended March 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2006

Income before income taxes.........cooeeueunn....

Income taxes:

CULTENt. e
Deferred ..o

Total INCOME tAXES wvvveeenireeirreeceeeeeaan,

For the year ended March 31, 2005

Income before income taxes........ccoooeeuue...

Income taxes:

CUrTent. oo,

Deferred .o,

Total INCOME LAXES w.vveeenereeeiie i

For the year ended March 31, 2004

Income before income taxes........oocccvvveenenin.

Income taxes:

CULTENL. e
Deferred ..o

Total INcome taxes ......oocovveeeiiieieiiiiaias

For the year ended March 31, 2006

Income before income taxes........cc.ccceunnen..

Income taxes:

CULTENt. ..t
Deferred ...oooooiiviiiioeiee e

Total INCOME taxes ..oovvvneeiiiiiiieieeeiii

Millions of yen
Domestic Foreign Total
...................... ¥ 292,083 ¥ 79,229 ¥ 371,312
...................... 63,966 32,375 96,341
...................... 66,377 4,371 70,748
...................... ¥ 130,343 ¥ 36,746 ¥ 167,089
...................... ¥ 140,464 ¥ 106,449 ¥ 246,913
...................... 63,710 32,819 96,529
...................... 64,229 (7,424) 56,805
...................... ¥ 127,939 ¥ 25,395 ¥ 153,334
...................... ¥ 40,353 ¥ 130,469 ¥ 170,822
...................... 43,723 33,652 77,375
...................... 25,702 (4,542) 21,160
...................... ¥ 69,425 ¥ 29,110 ¥ 98,535
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Domestic Foreign Total
...................... $2,496,436 $ 677,171 $3,173,607
...................... 546,718 276,709 823,427
...................... 567,325 37,359 604,684
...................... $1,114,043 $ 314,068  $1,428,111
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For the year ended March 31, 2004, domestic which, in aggregate, resulted in a combined statutory

income taxes—deferred include the impact of ¥8,614 tax rate in Japan of approximately 40.5% for the years
million, actributable to adjustments of net deferred tax ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. The Company and
assets to reflect the reduction in the statutory income its subsidiaries in Japan were subject to a National tax
tax rate due to revisions to local enterprise income tax of 30%, an Inhabitant tax of approximately 20.5%, and
law on introduction of a new pro forma standard taxa- a deductible Enterprise tax of approximately 9.9%,
tion system. which, in aggregate, resulted in a combined statutory
The Company and its subsidiaries in Japan are tax rate in Japan of approximately 41.9% for the year
subject to a National tax of 30%, an Inhabitant tax of ended March 31, 2004.
approximately 20.5%, and a deductible Enterprise tax The effective tax rates for the years differ from the
of approximately 7.4% varying by local jurisdiction, combined statutory tax rates for the following reasons:
2006 2003 2004
Combined StatutOrY tAX FAE ..oovveioreieriiiaiirireeeiieeceenne e eee e sneeaneneesnree i 40.5% 40.5% 41.9%
Tax credit related to research eXpenses ...........ccccovvviiiriiiiiiiiiiieecenniecee (1.5) (2.4) (1.3)
Lower tax rates of overseas sUbSIAIaries .....o.veeivivreeiiiie i e (3.7) (5.9y (10.6)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ...........oococoiviiiiiniiiiiii 3.6 2.8 3.0
Change in valuation allowance allocated to income tax expenses............. 15.7 25.7 14.8
Adjustments of deferred tax assets and Habilities for enacted
changes in tax 1aws and rates ....ococoiiiiiiiiiii e -— — 5.0
Tax effects attributable to investments in subsidiaries .........ccccccvvvveiiiiiiiiiinnn. (12.0) 4.4 23
OHRET oo 2.4 (3.0 2.6
EffECUVE TAX TALE 1..veiiviiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e e 45.0% 62.1% 57.7%

The significant components of deferred income tax expenses for the three years ended March 31, 2006 are

as follows:

Millions of yen

2006 2005 2004

Deferred tax expense (exclusive of

the effects of other components

listed below).....c.cooiiiriiiieiiiciiin ¥ 89,824 ¥78,649 ¥20,376
Adjustment to deferred tax assets

and liabilities for enacted changes

in tax laws and regulations.............c..coeeee. — — 8,614
Benefits of net operating loss

carryforwards .......ccooeiiiii (19,076) (21,844) {(7,830)

¥ 70,748 ¥56,805 ¥21,160
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2006

$767,726

(163,042)
$604,684




The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are presented below:

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory valuation ..........ccccooeceiirvinnnneeeenns

Thousands of

Expenses accrued for financial statement purposes

but not currently included in taxable income
Property, plant and equipment .....................
Retirement and severance benefits ...............
Tax loss carryforwards .......ocoveevrceicininennnnn.

Other

Total gross deferred tax assets .........ccccoeeene.
Less valuation allowance.......cccccoovveineneeennn.

Net deferred tax assets ..ooocovviveeviinnecinnnennn.

Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gains of

available-for-sale securities .........cccceevvvennnn..

Other

Total gross deferred tax liabilities ................

Net deferred tax assets .....oooovvvveeveeviiinnennnnn.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets,
management considers whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred rax assets
will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which those tem-~
porary differences and loss carryforwards become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled rever-
sal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income
over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it is more likely than
not that the Company will realize the benefits of these
deductible differences and loss carryforwards, net of the

Other current assets........o.ooovvvveirrieereieerennneinnns
OtNEr aSSELS .ooiivviiiiiireeeeee e ieeee e e eeeeeree e
Other current liabilities ...l
Other Labilities.......cocovvvvveriir e

Net deferred £tax assets .....ooooovveveiieneieineeeinnnn.

The Company has not recognized a deferred tax
liability for the undistributed earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries and foreign corporate joint ventures of
¥758,446 million (6,482,444 thousand) as of March
31, 2006, because the Company currently does not
expect those unremitted earnings to reverse and

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
................. ¥ 76,463 ¥ 73414 $ 653,530
.............. 294,984 230,640 2,521,231
................. 179,114 181,826 1,530,889
................. 151,742 224,564 1,296,940
................. 242,180 211,996 2,069,914
................. 185,551 166,247 1,585,906
................. 1,130,034 1,088,687 9,658,410
................. 464,100 311,153 3,966,666
................. 665,934 777,534 5,691,744
................. (124,751) (65,744)  (1,066,248)
................. (34,111) (34,827) (291,547)
................. (158,862)  (100,571)  (1,357,795)
................ ¥ 507,072 ¥ 676,963 $ 4,333,949

existing valuation allowances at March 31, 2006.

The net change in total valuation allowance for the
years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was an
increase of ¥152,947 million ($1,307,239 thousand),
¥65,127 million and ¥4,817 million, respectively.

At March 31, 2006, the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries had, for income tax purposes, net operating
loss carryforwards of approximately ¥647,816 million
($5,536,889 thousand), of which ¥428,709 million
($3,664,179 thousand) expire from fiscal 2009 through
2013 and the substantial majority of the remaining
balance expire thereafter or do not expire.

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31,
2006 and 2005 are reflected in the accompanying con-
solidated balance sheets under the following captions:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
.................... ¥320,914 ¥343,038 $2,742,855
.................... 201,429 344,648 1,721,615
.................... (1,306) (1,340) (11,162)
.................... (13,965) (9,383) (119,359)
.................... ¥507,072 ¥676,963 $4,333,949

become taxable to the Company in the foreseeable
future. A deferred tax liability will be recognized when
the Company no longer plans to permanently reinvest
undistributed earnings. Calculation of related unrecog-
nized deferred tax liability is not practicable.
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13. Stockholders” Equity

In accordance with the former Japanese Commercial
Code, at least 50% of the amount of converted debt must
be credited to the common stock account. The certain
sections of the former Japanese Commercial Code were
revised by the Japanese Corporation Law effective May
1, 2006. The Company issued 2,468 shares in connec-
tion with the conversion of bonds for the year ended
March 31, 2004.

The Company sold 119,422 shares and 888,683 shares
of its treasury stock for the years ended March 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The difference between sales
price and book value was charged to capital surplus in
the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company also provided 10,444,421 shares of
its treasury stock in connection with the conversion of
bonds for the year ended March 31, 2004. The differ-
ence of carrying values of the bonds converted and
treasury stocks provided was charged to capital surplus
in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company may repurchase its common stock
from the market pursuant to the former Japanese Com-
mercial Code. For the years ended March 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively, 48,945,141, 60,363,663
and 56,483,929 shares were repurchased for the aggre-
gate cost of approximately ¥87,150 million (§744,872
thousand), ¥92,879 million and ¥69,394 million,
respectively, primarily with the intention to hold as
treasury stock to improve capital efficiency.

For the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company
recognized 574,922 shares of its common stock held
by a newly consolidated subsidiary as treasury stock.

The former Japanese Commercial Code provides that
an amount equal to at least 10% of appropriations paid

Balance at March 31, 2003.....cccooooeviviiiininnl,
Forfeited.....coooooiiiiiiiei e

Balance at March 31, 2004 ......ccccccoeevinnii
Forfeited.........oovvmiiiiec
Balance at March 31, 2005.....cocceiiiiieeeeiieeennn.

EXCrcised covvmnieeee e
Forfeited . ..coooiiiiiiiiiiie e

Balance at March 31, 2006,
weighted-average remaining life—1.16 years

in cash be appropriated as a legal reserve until the
aggregated amount of capital surplus and legal reserve
equals 25% of stated capital. The capital surplus and
legal reserve, up to 25% of stated capital, are not avail-
able for dividends but may be used to reduce a deficit
or may be transferred to stated capital. The capital sur-
plus and legal reserve, exceeding 25% of stated capital,
are available for distribution upon approval of the share-
holders’ meeting.

Cash dividends and transfers to the legal reserve
charged to retained earnings during the three years
ended March 31, 2006 represent dividends paid out
during the periods and related appropriation to the
legal reserve. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements do not include any provision for the year-
end dividend of ¥10.00 ($0.09) per share, totaling
approximately ¥22,095 million ($188,846 thousand),
planned to be proposed in June 2006 in respect of
the year ended March 31, 2006 or for the related
appropriation.

In accordance with the former Japanese Commercial
Code, there are certain restrictions on payment of
dividends in connection with the treasury stock repur-
chased. As a result of restrictions on the treasury stock
repurchased, retained earnings of ¥343,598 million
($2,936,735 thousand) at March 31, 2006 were restricted
as to the payment of cash dividencs.

The Company’s directors and certain senior execu-
tives were granted options to purchase the Company’s
common stock. All stock options become fully exercis-
able two years from the date of grant and have a four-
year term. Information with respect to stock options
is as follows:

Weighted-average
exercise price

Number of

shares Yen U.S. dollars
................................... 471,000 ¥ 2,265
................................... (57,000 2,574
................................... 414,000 2,223
................................... (95,000) 2,285
................................... 319,000 2,204 $18.84
................................... (54,000) 2,001 17.10
................................... (97,000) 2,186 18.68
................................... 168,000 ¥2,280 $19.49

Treasury stock reserved for options at March 31, 2006 and 2005 was 86,000 shares and 203,000 shares,

respectively.
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14. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the three years ended March 31, 2006 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Pre-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount EXpense amount
For the year ended March 31, 2006
Translation adjustments:
Translation adjustments arising during the period..........o.cccooiieneil ¥ 134,943 ¥ — ¥ 134,943
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income..... (51,632) —_ (51,632)
Net translation adjustiments ........cccoveiviiiiieiiiiierin e 83,311 — 83,311
Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period................ 188,915 (78,609) 110,306
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income..... (63,100) 25,492 (37,608)
Net unrealized gains (1OSSES) ...ovvoueuviiiiiiieiiiiie it 125,815 (53,117) 72,698
Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period................ (25,581) 10,412 (15,169)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income..... 16,961 (6,869) 10,092
Net unrealized gains (LOSSES) ...oooouuviiiiiiiiriiiie e (8,620) 3,543 (5,077)
Minimum pension liability adjustments ..........ccoeviveeiieiiiincee s 101,805 (40,479) 61,326
Other comprehensive income (108S).......ccuuviiiirmmniiiiieiiiniiiiiee s ¥ 302,311 ¥ (90,053) ¥ 212,258
For the year ended March 31, 2005
Translation adjustments:
Translation adjustments arising during the period............coceei ¥ 35,172 ¥ — ¥ 35,172
Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income..... 1,473 — 1,473
Net translation adjustiments .......o..iveeverrern i eiviee e 36,645 — 36,645
Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period................ 8,768 (7,669) 1,099
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income..... (27,611) 11,016 (16,595)
Net unrealized gains (10SSES) ...eoeouvvviierriieiiiiiiiiiee e (18,843) 3,347 (15,496)
Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period................ (8,156) 3,409 (4,747)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income.... 7,520 (3,046) 4,474
Net unrealized gains (I08S€s) .......oovcveiiiiiiniiiiiiccr e (636) 363 (273)
Minimum pension liability adjustiments .........ccccovveviiireieciiieeeiiee 189,519 {49,270) 140,249
Other comprehensive income (1088).......cociviiiiniiiiiiiiciie e, ¥ 206,685 ¥ (45,560) ¥ 161,125
For the year ended March 31, 2004
Translation adjustments:
Translation adjustments arising during the period..........ccocoeviiiiene, ¥(135,367) ¥ — ¥(135,367)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income..... 14,204 — 14,204
Net translation adjustiMents .......o.ovvvvieriaririiieece e (121,163) — (121,163)
Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period................ 179,822 (67,626) 112,196
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income..... (9,628) 3,618 (6,010)
Net unrealized gains (LOSSES) .....ouvvvvericiiiiiie e 170,194 (64,008) 106,186
Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period............... 13,410 (5,462) 7,948
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income..... (314) 132 (182)
Net unrealized gains (JOSSES) ....ccoeiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiee e 13,096 (5,330) 7,766
Minimum pension liability adjustments ..........ccovvveerieenieeeiine e, 502,543  (189,192) 313,351
Other comprehensive income {(108s)......coovveiiiiiiinniiiiniiiicenieenn. ¥ 564,670 ¥(258,530) ¥ 306,140
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

Pre-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount
For the year ended March 31, 2006
Translation adjustments:
Translation adjustments arising during the period.......ccccocninne. $1,153,359 § — $1,153,359
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income....  {441,299) —_ (441,299)
Net translation adjustments .......ccccoeiriieniiiiiiniie e 712,060 _ 712,060
Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arlsmg during the perlod ............... 1,614,658 (671,872) 942,786
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income....  (539,316) 217,880 (321,436)
Net unrealized gains (IOSSEs) ......cvvvviriiiiiiiiiiiiie e 1,075,342 (453,992) 621,350
Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period ............... (218,641) 88,992 (129,649)
Less: Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income ... 144,966 (58,710) 86,256
Net unrealized gains (10SSES) ....oveovviriiiiiieinie e (73,675) 50,282 (43,393)
Minimum pension liability adjustments ...........ccocceeiviniinnieninnces 870,128 (345,974) 524,154
Other comprehensive income (1088)....cccvvivvvriiiiiiii $2,583,855 $(769,684) $1,814,171

15. Net Income per Share

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted net income per share computation

for the three years ended March 31, 2006 is as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Net income available to
common stockholders ... ¥154,410 ¥ 58,481 ¥42,145 $1,319,744
Effect of assumed conversions:
Convertible bonds, due 2004, interest 1.4% ...... — — 727 —
Diluted net InCome .....ccoooeeiiviiiiiiieieee e, ¥154,410 ¥58,481 ¥42,872 $1,319,744
Number of shares
Average common shares outstanding .................... 2,222,376,333 2,294,607,915 2,321,835,314
Dilutive effect: :
Convertible bonds, due 2004, interest 1.4% ...... —_ — 59,460,443
Stock OPLIONS...ceiviiiiiiiiee e 11,909 — —
Diluted common shares outstanding .................... 2,222,388,242 2,294,607,915 2,381,295,757
Yen U.S. dollars
Net income per share:
Basic oo ¥69.48 ¥25.49 ¥18.15 $0.59
Diluted...ccooooini 69.48 25.49 18.00 0.59

Stock options were outstanding for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, but were not included in the
calculation of diluted net income per share because the stock options’ effect would be antidilutive (see Note 13).
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16. Restructuring Charges

In connection with the reorganization of the Company’s operations, the Company has incurred certain restructur-
ing charges. Components and related amounts of the restructuring charges, before the related tax effects, for the

years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Expenses associated with the implementation
of early retirement programs:
DOMIESEIC .o vi ettt ¥ 31,446 ¥ 93,170 ¥45,056 $ 268,769
OVEISEAS vveeiieei e 5,573 7,966 875 47,633
Total. oo 37,019 101,136 45,931 316,402
Expenses associated with the closure and
integration of locations .........c.ccovvevciiiicnninnns 11,956 9,432 8,216 102,188
Total restructuring charges............ccoeeeeneen. ¥ 48,975 ¥110,568 ¥54,147 $ 418,590

These restructuring charges are included in other deductions in the consolidated statements of income.

The Company has provided early retirement programs to those employees voluntarily leaving the Company.
The accrued early retirement programs are recognized when the employees accept the offer and the amount can
be reasonably estimated. An analysis of the accrued early retirement programs for the years ended March 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004 1s as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2003 2004 2006
Balance at beginning of the year ... ¥ 3,407 ¥ — ¥ — $ 29,120
New charges......oocooiiiiiiici e 37,019 101,136 45,931 316,402
Cash payments......occcveviierce e (39,091) (97,729) {45,931) (334,112)
Balance at end of the year...........ccoooivi ¥ 1,335 ¥ 3,407 ¥ — $ 11,410

Expenses associated with the closure and integration of locations include amounts such as moving expense of
facilities and costs to terminate leasing contracts incurred at domestic and overseas manufacturing plants and sales
offices. All the payments for expenses associated with closure and integration of locations were completed by the

end of each fiscal year.
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The following represent significant restructuring activities for the year ended March 31, 2006 by business segment:

AV C Networks

AVC Networks segment restructured mainly to address
price declines in digital AV products. The restructuring
activities mainly consisted of the implementation of
early retirement programs.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥3,447 mil-
lion ($29,462 thousand).

Home Appliances
Home Appliances segment restructured its operations.
The restructuring activities mainly consisted of closure
and integration of locations in Japan.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥2,655 mil-
lion ($22,692 thousand).

Components and Devices

Components and Devices segment restructured mainly
to enhance cost competitiveness as well as to address
sharp price declines. The restructuring activities mainly
consisted of the implementation of early retirement
programs in Japan for semiconductor business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥21,510
million ($183,846 thousand}, including expenses associ-
ated with the implementation of early retirement
programs of ¥20,183 million ($172,504 thousand).

MEW and PanaHome

MEW and PanaHome segment restructured to
strengthen its management structures by realigning its
organization. The restructuring activities mainly con-
sisted of the implementation of early retirement
programs and closure and integration of manufacturing
plants and sales offices.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥9,385 mil-
lion ($80,214 thousand), including expenses associated
with the implementation of early retirement programs
of ¥4,832 million ($41,299 thousand).

Jvc
JVC segment restructured to strengthen its company-
wide organizational and employment structure. The
restructuring activities mainly consisted of the imple-
mentation of early retirement programs.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥8,891 mil-
lion ($75,991 thousand).

Other

Other segment incurred restructuring charges in the
amount of ¥3,087 mullion ($26,385 thousand) mainly
in overseas sales companies.

The following represent significant restructuring activities for the year ended March 31, 200% by business segment:

AVC Networks

AVC Networks segment restructured mainly to cope
with sharp price declines in digital products. The
restructuring activities mainly consisted of the imple-
mentation of early retirement programs covering both
video and audio equipment business and information
and communications equipment business in Japan and
Europe, shutting down of the manufacturing plant in
Europe for video and audio equipment business and
closure and integration of manufacturing plants and
sales offices in Japan for information and communica-
tions equipment business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥57,742
million, including expenses associated with the imple-
mentation of early retirement programs of ¥52,666
million.

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 2006

Home Appliances

Home Appliances segment restructured mainly to
address rising raw material costs as well as to enhance
cost competitiveness. The restructuring activities main-
ly consisted of the implementation of early retirement ,
programs and closure and integration of locations in
Japan, and shutting down of the manufacturing plant
in Europe for home appliances business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥8,288
million, including expenses associated with the imple-
mentation of early retirement programs of ¥6,970
million.




Components and Devices

Components and Devices segment restructured to
address the downturn in components and devices indus~
tries, caused in part by price declines. The restructuring
activities mainly consisted of the implementation of
early retirement programs in electronic components
business and batteries business and closure and integra-
tion of manufacturing locations in Japan for electronic
components business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥22,986
million, including expenses associated with the imple-
mentation of early retirement programs of ¥21,979
million.

MEW and PanaHome

MEW and PanaHome segment incurred restructuring
charges in the amount of ¥1,783 million, mainly relat-
ed to a reorganization conducted to eliminate
duplication of product lines and corporate functions
with other Matsushita companies.

Jvc
JVC segment restructured to enhance competitiveness
in global markets. The restructuring activities mainly
consisted of closure and integration of locations in elec-
tronic components business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥9,208 mil-
lion, mainly representing expenses associated with the
implementation of eatly retirement programs.

Other

Other segment restructured to strengthen competitive-

ness of sales companies. The restructuring activities

mainly consisted of the implementation of early retire-

ment programs in domestic and overseas sales companies.
Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥10,561

million, including expenses associated with the imple-

mentation of early retirement programs of ¥10,370
million.

The following represent significant restructuring activities for the year ended March 31, 2004 by business segment:

AV C Networks
AVC Networks segment restructured mainly to address
price declines in digital products. The restructuring
activities mainly consisted of the implementation of
early retirement programs mainly in Japan for both
video and audio equipment business and information
and communications equipment business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥4,187
million, representing expenses associated with the
implementation of early retirement programs.

Home Appliances
Home Appliances segment restructured to enhance
cost competitiveness. The restructuring activities
consisted of the implementation of early retirement
programs in Japan for refrigerator and air conditioner
business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to *¥31,286
million, representing expenses associated with the
implementation of early retirement programs.

Components and Devices
Components and Devices segment restructured to
enhance cost competitiveness through selecting and
concentrating on key business areas. The restructuring
activities mainly consisted of the implementation of
early retirement programs and closure and integration
of business locations in Japan and shutting down of
the manufacturing plant in Asia for motor business.
Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥14,700
million, including expenses associated with the closure
and integration of locations of ¥8,305 million.

VC
{VC segment restructured to enhance cost
competitiveness.
Total restructuring charges amounted to ¥2,408 mil-
lion, mainly representing expenses associated with the
implementation of early retirement programs.

Other

Other segment incurred restructuring charges in the
amount of ¥1,566 million for domestic sales companies.
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17. Supplementary Information to the Statements of Income and Cash Flows

Research and development costs, advertising costs, shipping and handling costs and depreciation charged to
income for the three years ended March 31, 2006 are as follows:

Research and development costs ...
AdVertiSINg COSLS ...oouviiieiiiiiiiiiie e
Shipping and handling costs ...
Depreciation ...

Foreign exchange gains and losses included in other
deductions for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 is a loss of ¥13,475 million ($115,171 thou-
sand), ¥7,542 million and ¥13,588 million, respectively.

Shipping and handling costs are included in selling,
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of income.

Included in other deductions for the year ended
March 31, 2006 are claim expenses of *¥34,340 million
($293,504 thousand).

In fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company sold,
without recourse, trade accounts receivable of
¥193,974 million (81,657,897 thousand), 3¥48,578 mil-
lion and ¥4,661 million to independent third parties for
proceeds of ¥193,415 million ($1,653,119 thousand),
¥48,469 million and ¥4,657 million, and recorded
losses on the sale of trade accounts receivable of ¥559
million ($4,778 thousand), ¥109 million and ¥4 mil-

Cash paid:

Interest
IICOME tAXES o v

Noncash investing and financing activities:

Conversion of bonds ...

Stock provided under exchange

offering........coccoiiiiiii

Contribution of assets and liabilities to

associated COMPANIS . ..eriirireiiiiiiiinniinnnnienn
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
¥564,781  ¥615,524  ¥579,230  $4,827,188
181,235 174,604 146,046 1,549,017
170,469 166,404 141,570 1,457,000
275,213 287,400 253,762 2,352,248

lion, respectively, which is included in selling, general
and administrative expenses. The Company is responsi-
ble for servicing the receivables. Included in trade
accounts receivable at March 31, 2006 is amount of
¥19,495 million ($166,624 thousand) scheduled to be
sold without recourse to independent third parties.

In fiscal 2005, the Company sold, without recourse,
loans receivable of ¥96,339 million to independent
third parties for proceeds of ¥106,779 million, and
recorded gains on the sale of loans receivable of
¥10,440 mullion, which is included in other income.

The sale of the receivables was accounted for under
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfer and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”

Interest expenses and income taxes paid, and non-
cash investing and financing activities for the three
years ended March 31, 2006 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
¥21,853 ¥25,513 ¥30,505 $186,778
92,469 99,951 65,121 790,333
20,330 — 16,924 173,761
— — 6,579 —_
— 4,302 3,278 —




18. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company operates internationally, giving rise to
significant exposure to market risks arising from
changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
commodity prices. The Company assesses these risks by
continually monitoring changes in these exposures and
by evaluating hedging opportunities. Derivative finan-
cial instruments utilized by the Company to hedge
these risks are comprised principally of foreign
exchange contracts, interest rate swaps, Cross CUrrency
swaps and commeodity derivatives. The Company does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
any purposes other than hedging.

Gains and losses related to derivative instruments are
classified in other income (deductions) in the consoli-
dated statements of income. The amount of the
hedging ineffectiveness and net gain or loss excluded

Forward:

To sell foreign CUrrencies ........cccovveerrvrrneennn.
To buy foreign currencies .........ccccoevvernnerennnn.
Options purchased to sell foreign currencies ....
Variable-paying interest rate swaps ..........c........
CrOSS CUITENCY SWAPS 1.vveeeriererieeeieeenieeereeeeieens

Commodity futures:

To sell commodity......cccooviiiniinininiiciinnenn,
To buy commodity........oocviiiiiiiiiinniieee

from the assessment of hedge effectiveness is not mater-
ial for the three years ended March 31, 2006. Amounts
included in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) at March 31, 2006 are expected to be recognized
in earnings principally over the next twelve months.
The maximum term over which the Company is hedg-
ing exposures to the variability of cash flows for foreign
currency exchange risk is approximately five months.

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event
of non-performance by counterparties to the derivative
contracts, but such risk is considered mitigated by the
high credit rating of the counterparties.

The contract amounts of foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and commodity
futures at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
................... ¥404,383 ¥317,506 $3,456,265
................... 258,335 200,705 2,207,991
................... 25,885 29,981 221,239
................... 15,000 15,000 128,205
................... 4,130 16,879 35,299
................... 36,007 31,978 307,752
................... 93,061 75,824 795,393

19. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instru-
ments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents, Time deposits, Tiade receivables,

Short-term borrowings, Trade payables and Accrued expenses
The carrying amount approximates fair value because
of the short maturity of these instruments.

Short-term investments
The fair value of short-term investments is estimated
based on quoted market prices.

Noncutrent receivables
The carrying amount which is generally stated at the
net realizable value approximates fair value.

Investments and advances

The fair value of investments and advances is estimated
based on quoted market prices or the present value of
future cash flows using appropriate current discount
rates.

Long-term debt

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on
quoted market prices or the present value of future cash
flows using appropriate current discount rates.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments, all of
which are used for hedging purposes, are estimated by
obtaining quotes from brokers.
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The estimated fair values of financial instruments, all of which are held or issued for purposes other than trading,
at March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value amount value
Non-derivatives:
Assets:
Short-term investments ......... ¥ 56,753 ¥ 56,753 ¥ 11,978 ¥ 11,978 § 485,068 § 485,068
Investments and
advances.........cocoeeviieeeeeeeiennn, 946,153 948,665 945,759 943,981 8,086,778 8,108,248
Liabilities:
Long-term debt, including
CULTENE POLTION .ovveereieeineesne (439,123) (437,547) (732,907) (742,737) (3,753,188) (3,739,718)
Derivatives:
Other current assets:
Forward:
To sell foreign currencies.... 121 121 — — 1,034 1,034
To buy foreign currencies... 2,522 2,522 1,643 1,643 21,556 21,556
Options purchased to sell
foreign currencies................. 132 132 61 61 1,128 1,128
Variable-paying interest rate
SWAPS ..o 14 14 84 84 120 120
Cross currency swaps............. — — 123 123 — —
Commodity futures to
buy commodity.........coue..... 43,674 43,674 12,554 12,554 373,282 373,282
Other current liabilities:
Forward to sell foreign
CULTENCIES wovvieerraeeiiiiiiins — — (3,122) (3,122) —_ —_
Cross Currency swaps............. (35) (35) — — (299) (299)
Commodity futures to
sell commodity........oceene. (7,401) (7.401) (2,832) (2,832) (63,256) (63,256)
Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information
about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgements and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could signifi-
cantly affect the estimates.
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20. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Company provides guarantees to third parties on
bank loans provided to its employees, associated compa~
nies and customers. The guarantees for the employees
are principally made for their housing loans. The guar-
antees for associated companies and customers are made
to enhance their credit. For each guarantee provided,
the Company is required to perform under the guaran-
tee if the guaranteed party defaults on a payment. At
March 31, 2006, the maximum amount of undiscount-
ed payments the Company would have to make in the
event of default is¥17,444 million ($149,094 thou-
sand). The carrying amount of the liabilities recognized
for the Company’s obligations as a guarantor under
those guarantees at March 31, 2006 and 2005 was
insignificant.

As discussed in Note 7, in connection with the sale
and lease back of certain machinery and equipment, the

Balance at beginning of year.........................
Increase due to acquisition (Note 3) ................

Liabilities accrued for warranties issued

during the period.......c.cccoviviiiiiiiiiiii,
Warranty claims paid during the period...........

Company guarantees a specific value of the leased
assets. For each guarantee provided, the Company is
required to perform under the guarantee if certain con-
ditions are met during or at the end of the lease term.
At March 31, 2006, the maximum amount of undis-
counted payments the Company would have to make
in the event that these conditions are met is ¥40,152
million ($343,179 thousand). The carrying amount of
the liabilities recognized for the Company’s obligations
as guarantors under those guarantees at March 31, 2006
and 2005 was insignificant.

The Company issues contractual product warranties
under which it generally guarantees the performance of
products delivered and services rendered for a certain
period or term. The change in accrued warranty
costs for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 are
summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Changes in liabilities for pre-existing warranties during

the period, including expirations...................
Balance at end of year...........cooeeciiiiiiininnnne

At March 31, 2006, commitments outstanding for
the purchase of property, plant and equipment approx-
imated ¥50,160 million ($428,718 thousand).
Contingent liabilities at March 31, 2006 for discount-
ed export bills of exchange amounted to *¥535 million
($4,573 thousand).

Liabilities for environmental remediation costs are
recorded when it is probable that obligations have
been incurred and the amounts can be reasonably esti-
mated. In January 2003, the Company announced that
disposed electric equipment that contained polychlo-
rinated biphenyls (“PCB equipment”) might be buried
in the ground of its four manufacturing facilities and
one former manufacturing facility. The applicable
laws require that PCB equipment be appropriately

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
..................... ¥ 35,216 ¥ 30,720 $ 300,991
..................... —_ 2,482 —
..................... 50,206 51,471 429,112
..................... (44,199) (44,200) (377,769)
..................... (3,787) (5,248) (32,368)
..................... ¥ 37,436 ¥ 35,216 $ 319,966

maintained and disposed of by July 2016. The Com-
pany has accrued estimated total cost of ¥12,953
million ($110,709 thousand) for necessary actions such
as investigating whether the PCB equipment is buried
at the facilities, including excavations, maintaining
and disposing the PCB equipment that is already
discovered, and soil remediation, since it represents
management’s best estimate or minimum of the cost,
but the payments are not considered to be fixed and
reliably determinable.

There are a number of legal actions against the
Company and certain subsidiaries, Management is
of the opinion that damages, if any, resulting from
these actions will not have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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21. Segment Information

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,”
the segments reported below are the components of the
Company for which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operat-
ing decision maker of the Company in deciding how
to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
Business segments correspond to categories of activi-
ty classified primarily by markets, products and brand
names. “AVC Networks” includes video and audio
equipment, and information and communications
equipment. “Home Appliances” includes household
equipment. “Components and Devices” includes elec-
tronic components, semiconductors, electric motors
and batteries. “MEW and PanaHome” includes electri-
cal supplies, electric products, building materials and
equipment, and housing business. “JVC” includes
products marketed under the brand name of JVC or
Victor. *Other” includes electronic-parts-mounting

By Business Segment:

machines, industrial robots and industrial equipment.

As discussed in Note 3, MEW, PanaHome and their
respective subsidiaries became consolidated subsidiaries
of the Company on April 1, 2004. Accordingly, a new
segment, “MEW and PanaHome,” has been added to
the Company’s business segment classifications from
fiscal 2005.

As a result of the business reorganization between
“Home Appliances” and “MEW and PanaHome” on
April 1, 2005, a domestic subsidiary, formerly included
in “Home Appliances,” has been transferred to “MEW
and PanaHome.” Accordingly, the information associat-
ed with the subsidiary is now recorded within “MEW
and PanaHome,” and information by segment for the
year ended March 31, 2005 has been reclassified to
conform with the presentation for the year ended
March 31, 2006.

Information by segment for the three years ended
March 31, 2006 is shown in the tables below:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U 8. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Sales:
AVC Networks:
CUSLOIMETS..oevvivieeiiiiiieee e, ¥ 3,894,274 ¥ 3,745,339 ¥ 3,771,516 $ 33,284,393
Intersegment ........ccocvvvvveciiviniennneneeenn. 91,814 113,442 68,752 784,735
Total oo, 3,986,088 3,858,781 3,840,268 34,069,128
Home Appliances:
CUSEOITIEIS .oceevvie e, 1,069,282 1,102,795 1,174,138 9,139,162
[ntersegment........oocoeinviniienec e 171,920 126,973 49,052 1,469,402
Total oo 1,241,202 1,229,768 1,223,190 10,608,564
Components and Devices:
CUSTOMIETS uvuieiiiiiiee e 954,011 1,006,893 1,073,108 8,153,940
Intersegment .........occcceeerenrnineeennnnne. 414,247 462,114 586,564 3,540,573
Total oo, 1,368,258 1,469,007 1,659,672 11,694,513
MEW and PanaHome:
CUSLOIMIETS ..evvvee e, 1,695,949 1,628,372 — 14,495,291
Intersegment ..........cccceevviicieiiinnnn. 51,258 57,885 -— 438,102
Total oo 1,747,207 1,686,257 -—_ 14,933,393
JvGC:
CUSLOMIETS ..eeevevviieiiee e e 697,150 721,391 802,650 5,958,547
TNEersegment ......ooovvvueieeeiievviiiceeeenns 5,966 8,818 16,349 50,991
Total oo 703,116 730,209 818,999 6,009,538
Other:
CUSLOMIETS ....oevivviviviiieesiee e eeerieees 583,663 508,846 658,332 4,988,573
Intersegment . .....ccoovveeevnececeeineeenne. 731,629 518,277 290,396 6,253,239
Total oo 1,315,292 1,027,123 948,728 11,241,812
Eliminations.........ooccccviieiiiiiieneennn, (1,466,834) (1,287,509) (1,011,113) (12,537,042)
Consolidated total ..o, ¥ 8,894,329 ¥ 8,713,636 ¥ 7,479,744 $ 76,019,906
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Segment profit:
AVC Networks ......vveeiiiviiiiiiiiannnecen,
Home Appliances........cccocveviiiniinnninnn,
Components and Devices.......occooeeeernnnn
MEW and PanaHome.................ccooeeenn

INterest- INCOIME ..ovvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Dividends received ...cooiiiiiviiiiieeeiiieeii,
Gain from the transfer

of the substitutional portion of Japanese

Welfare Pension Insurance..............coooooe.
Other iINCOME ..
Interest eXpense..........ooccvevrimeiiivnivninnnnerene.
Goodwill impairment........c...ooeeeervinerenne
Other deductions .....o.oeeiiiieiiiiiiiiiiieees

Consolidated income before
TNCOITIE LAXES tvuinirierinenenineeeenenreneininennn

[dentifiable assets:

AVC Networks ....cccccevmminiin
Home Appliances......ccooccovviieniiiiniiniiens
Components and Devices............ccccoveeenne
MEW and PanaHome..........ccoooenniie

Depreciation (including intangibles

other than goodwill):

AVC Networks ..o
Home Appliances.......coccovvrrniiiiiiiininnnn.
Components and Devices...........cccooveenne,
MEW and PanaHome..........ccccoeeeinn.

Capital investment (including intangibles
other than goodwill):

AVC Networks ...ccoovvevniiiiiciicii
Home Appliances.....c.cocceveiniiinciiiies
Components and Devices................c........
MEW and PanaHome..........cccooeeeiiienn.

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2004 2006
¥ 190,885 ¥ 127,366 ¥ 129,102  $ 1,631,496
77,135 74,794 52,759 659,274
81,111 57,761 50,099 693,256
72,694 66,761 — 621,316
(5,782) 9,887 24,675 (49,419)
62,225 38,352 14,701 531,838
(63,995) (66,427) (75,844) (546,966)
¥ 414,273 ¥ 308,494 ¥ 1905492  $ 3,540,795
28,216 19,490 19,564 241,162
6,567 5,383 5,475 56,128
— 31,509 72,228 —
147,399 82,819 59,544 1,259,821
(21,686) (22,827) (27,744) (185,350)
(50,050) (3,559) — (427,778)
(153,407)  (174,396)  (153,737)  (1,311,171)
¥ 371,312 ¥ 246913 ¥ 170,822  § 3,173,607
¥2,276,573 ¥2,205,663 ¥2,090,130  $19,457,889
637,935 618,156 701,143 5,452,436
966,684 930,315 1,157,984 8,262,256
1,371,405 1,384,695 — 11,721,410
438,456 483,867 503,943 3,747,487
503,798 883,706 754,117 4,305,966
1,769,789 1,550,479 2,230,695 15,126,402
¥7,964,640 ¥8,056,881 ¥7,438,012  $68,073,846
¥ 76,136 ¥ 88550 ¥ 85085 $ 650,735
29,633 31,785 31,674 253,273
88,717 96,659 103,898 758,265
46,575 50,582 — 398,077
17,759 15,985 16,339 151,786
38,253 30,329 28,954 326,949
12,058 11,079 11,601 103,060
¥ 309,131 ¥ 324969 ¥ 277,551  § 2,642,145
¥ 126,815 ¥ 103,340 ¥ 80,543  §$ 1,083,889
44,869 36,041 26,268 383,496
124,219 126,826 142,540 1,061,701
44,849 32,989 — 383,325
16,994 23,045 17,735 145,248
12,092 74,570 28,298 103,350
16,688 14,286 21,376 142,632
¥ 386,526 ¥ 411,097 ¥ 316,760  $ 3,303,641
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Corporate expenses include certain corporate R&D
expenditures and general corporate expenses.

Corporate assets consist of cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, marketable securities in short-term

By Geographical Area:

investments, investments and advances and other assets
related to unallocated expenses.
Intangibles mainly represent patents and software.

Sales attributed to countries based upon the customer’s location and property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Sales:
Japan oo ¥4,611,440 ¥4,580,555 ¥3,477,492 $39,414,017
North and South America ..................... 1,387,424 1,282,956 1,326,940 11,858,325
EULOPE oot 1,113,556 1,122,493 1,080,143 9,517,573
Asiaand Others .......cooovvvviiviio 1,781,909 1,727,632 1,595,169 15,229,991
Consolidated total .......ccooveeiiivenniiinnnn. ¥8,894,329 ¥8,713,636 ¥7,479,744 $76,019,906
United States of America included in
North and South America ................. ¥1,206,357 ¥1,127,412 ¥1,184,446 $10,310,744
Property, plant and equipment:
Japan oo ¥1,201,266 ¥1,272,839 ¥ 889,108 $10,267,231
North and South America ...........oecocn. 58,003 59,230 56,846 495,752
Burope ..o 66,084 64,883 48,643 564,820
Asia and Others ........ooooviiiiinii 306,986 261,128 214,905 2,623,812
Consolidated total ......cccooeoveviiiiiiinniiin, ¥1,632,339 ¥1,658,080 ¥1,209,502 $13,951,615
United States of America included in
North and South America .................. ¥ 48,923 ¥ 51,732 ¥ 50,225 $ 418,145

There are no individually material countries of which
sales and property, plant and equipment should be sepa-
rately disclosed in North and South America, Europe
and Asia and Others, except for the United States of
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America. Transfers between business segments or geo-
graphic segments are made at arms-length prices. There
are no sales to a single external major customer for the

three years ended March 31, 2006.



The following information shows sales, geographical
profit and identifiable assets which are attributed to
geographic areas based on the country location of the
Company or its subsidiaries for the three years ended

ments under SFAS No. 131, the Company discloses this
information as supplemental information 1n light of the
disclosure requirements of the Japanese Securities and
Exchange Law, which a Japanese public company is

March 31, 2006. In addition to the disclosure require-  subject to:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Sales:
Japan:
CUSEOTIIETS ..o eeeeeeeee e, ¥ 4,945,802 ¥ 5,033,645 ¥3,989,576 $ 42,271,812
Intersegment .....c..cocevvveeceeeninnnieneeen. 1,944,537 1,586,407 1,521,459 16,619,974
Total ..o 6,890,339 6,620,052 5,511,035 58,891,786
North and South America:
CUSEOIMIBTS e e 1,340,352 1,248,012 1,271,914 11,456,000
Intersegment ........coccovviiiiianninenennen, 26,185 23,605 25,269 223,803
Total cooveeeeeeee e 1,366,537 1,271,617 1,297,183 11,679,803
Europe:
CUSEOIMIETS ..o, 1,067,306 1,046,159 1,014,687 9,122,273
Intersegment ...........ccccvviinnnninnennnnnn. 20,361 26,405 12,648 174,026
Total e, 1,087,667 1,072,564 1,027,335 9,296,299
Asia and Others:
CUSEOIMIETS e e 1,540,869 1,385,820 1,203,567 13,169,821
Intersegment ........cocceveviiiieniinnerennnen. 1,175,492 1,059,178 972,843 10,046,940
Total oo 2,716,361 2,444,998 2,176,410 23,216,761
Eliminations........cccoveeeeeeeiieeiiiiniiiiennnn, (3,166,575) (2,695,595) (2,532,219) (27,064,743)

¥ 8,894,329 ¥ 8,713,636 ¥ 7,479,744

$ 76,019,906

Geographical profit:
Japan i ¥ 374,129 ¥ 262,063 ¥ 131,796 $ 3,197,684
North and South America.................... 16,773 20,834 23,258 143,359
Burope ..o 4,511 7,393 16,325 38,556
Asia and Others......cccooeevvveeiiiiiiiiiiiiennn, 81,337 75,324 89,706 695,188
Corporate and eliminations .................. (62,477) (57,120) (65,593) (533,992)
Consolidated total ...........ccoooeerniil, ¥ 414,273 ¥ 308,494 ¥ 195,492 $ 3,540,795
Identifiable assets:
Japan .o ¥ 4,442,776 ¥ 5,055,700 ¥ 3,887,504 $ 37,972,444
North and South America.................... 443,432 402,155 411,615 3,790,017
Burope ...ocvvvieiiiiiiccii e 412,948 379,571 308,687 3,529,470
Asiaand Others.....c..ooviiiviiieiiniennn. 1,235,438 995,785 858,238 10,559,299
Corporate and eliminations ................. 1,430,046 1,223,670 1,971,968 12,222,616
Consolidated total ....c.oooveieiiinniniiiinn ¥ 7,964,640 ¥ 8,056,881 ¥ 7,438,012 $ 68,073,846
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22. Subsequent Event

On April 28, 2006, the Board of Directors approved
plans to proactively provide returns to shareholders and
continue the policy toward large-scale purchases of the
Company’s shares, with the aim of implementing its
policy of shareholder-oriented management.

Specifically, the Company plans to increase total cash
dividends per share for fiscal 2007, ending March 31,
2007, to ¥30.00 ($0.26), compared with fiscal 2006
cash dividends of 320.00 ($0.17) per share. Regarding
share repurchases, the Company plans to repurchase up
to 50 muillion shares of its own stock for a maximum of
¥100 billion ($855 million).

Under the basic philosophy that shareholders should
make final decisions regarding large-scale purchases of
the Company’s shares, sufficient information should be
provided through the Board of Directors to sharehold-
ers if a large-scale purchase is to be conducted. Under
the above-mentioned basic philosophy, the Board of
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Directors decided to continue its policy toward large-
scale purchasers who intend to acquire 20% or more of
all voting rights of the Company. This policy requires
that (1) a large-scale purchaser provides sufficient infor-
mation to the Board of Directors before a large-scale
purchase 1s to be conducted and (ii) after all required
information is provided, the Board of Directors should
be allowed a sufficient period of time during which it
will assess, examine, negotiate, form an opinion and
seek alternatives. In the event of non-compliance with
such rules by a prospective large-scale purchaser, the
Board of Directors may take countermeasures to pro-
tect the interest of all shareholders.

On April 28, 2006, the Company announced the
details regarding the Enhancement of Shareholder Value
(ESV plan) entitled “Matsushita Announces Continua-
tion of Policy toward Large-scale Purchases of the
Company’s Shares.”




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

e

The Board of Directors
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (expressed in yen) of Matsushita Electric Indus-
trial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2006. These con-
solidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall finan-
cial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31,
2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2006 have been
translated into United States dollars solely for the convenience of the reader. We have audited the translation
and, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements expressed in yen have been translated into United
States dollars on the basis set forth in Note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

KPMG AZSA e Co.

Osaka, Japan
May 10, 2006
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Investor Information
(As of April 1, 2006)

Principal Production
Divisions and Subsidiaries
(As of April 1, 2006)

Corporate Headquarters
Investor Relations Office
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
Investor Relations Office
1006, Oaza Kadoma, Kadoma-shi, Osaka 571-8501, Japan
Phone: +81-6-6908-1121
Web sites:
‘English : http://ir-site.panasonic.com/
Japanese : http://ir-site.panasonic.com/jp/

Principal Production Divisions
Panasonic AVC Networks Company
Panasonic Automotive Systems Company
Panasonic System Solutions Company
Matsushita Home Appliances Company
Healthcare Business Company
Lighting Company
Semiconductor Company

Tokyo Investor Relations Office
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
Tokyo Investor Relations Office
1-2, 1-chome, Shiba-Koen, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8581, Japan
Phone: +81-3-3437-1121

Motor Company

Principal Domestic Subsidiaries
Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd.

Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. U.S. Investor Relations Office

Panasonic Finance (America), Inc.

1 Rockefeller Plaza, Suite 1001,
New York, NY 10020-2002, U.S.A.
Phone: +1-212-698-1365

Panasonic Communications Co., Ltd.
PanaHome Corporation

Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd.
Panasonic Mobile Communications Co., Ltd.

Matsushita Plasma Display Panel Co., Ltd. European Investor Relations Office
Panasonic Finance (Europe) plc
10 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AD, UK.

Phone: +44-20-7562-4400

Panasonic Factory Solutions Co., Ltd.
Matsushita Ecology Systems Co., Ltd.
Matsushita Refrigeration Company ]
Japanese Stock Exchange Listings

Matsushita Battery Industrial Co., Ltd.
asushita Battery fncustnal Lo Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya stock exchanges

Panasonic Shikoku Electronics Co., Ltd. .
Overseas Stock Exchange Listings
New York, Euronext Amsterdam® and Frankfurt* stock exchanges

*Matsushita delisted its shares from the Amsterdam Stock Exchange in June 2006,
and plans to complete delisting procedures for the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in

Principal Qverseas Subsidiaries
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Panasonic Corporation of North America
Panasonic Europe Lid.

Panasonic AVC Networks Czech, s.r.o.
Panasonic Asia Pacific Pre. Lid.

Panasonic AVC Networks Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Panasonic Communications Philippines Corporation
Panasonic Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Panasonic Corporation of China

Panasonic Home Appliances Air-Conditioning
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.

Note: Matsushita’s consolidated financial statements as of March 31,
2006 comprise the accounts of 638 companies throughout the
world,
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August 2006,

Number of Shares Issued (as of March 31, 2006)
2,453,053,497
(Including 243,521,506 shares held by Matsushita)

Number of Shareholders (as of March 31, 2006)
252,239

Transfer Agent for Common Stock
The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
5-33, Kitahama, 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi,
Osaka 540-8639, Japan
Phone: +81-6-6220-2121

Depositary and Transfer Agent

for American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
4 New York Plaza, New York, NY 10004, U.S.A.

Corporate Bonds
0.87% Bonds due March 20, 2007
1.64% Bonds due December 20, 2011
Fiscal Agent:
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
6-5, 4-chome, Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi,
Osaka 541-0041, Japan
Phone: +81-6-6227-2120
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(Millions of yen, except per share information)}
Net SaleS ..o ¥2,102,027 ¥2,216,510 ¥2,296,525 ¥2,098,574 ¥2,048,161 ¥2,211,052 ¥2,398,420 ¥2,236,696
Income before income taxes ............ 80,462 56,811 83,090 26,550 66,194 87,917 126,089 91,112
Net income (10SS) ..o, 32,818 23,361 35,670 (33,268) 33,443 30,964 49,269 40,734
Net income (loss) per share, diluted ... ¥ 1416 ¥ 1010 ¥ 1556 ¥ (1471) ¥ 1487 ¥ 1394 ¥ 2229 ¥ 18.43
Note: Quarterly financial data is unaudired and has not been reviewed wnder Statements on Auditing Standards No. 100 “Interim Financial Information,” by Marsushita's independent registered public accounting firm.
Major Shareholders (4s of March 31, 2006) Breakdown of Issued Shares by
Share ownership Percentage of total Type of Shareholders
Name (in thousands of shares) issued shares (%) (As of March 31, 2006)
MOXIEY & CO. oottt 183,031 7.46
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) ....... 140,727 g‘?;j“ry Stock
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account) .............. 128,742 i 524 | 'd‘ L |
NIippON Life INSUrANGE CO. oo 67,000 oo 273 and Othes ninencal
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation ......................... 65,425 .o 266  19.9% 36.3%
SuUMitomo Life INSUrANCE CO. oo 50,212 o 2.04 Sg“rggraﬁons
State Streat Bank and Trust Co. 505103 ..o, 36,352 .o 1.48 4.6% Overseas
State Strest Bank and Trust Co. ... 35,817 o 1.46 'n;egsg;s
Mitsui Sumitormo Insurance Co., LAG. ..o 35,106 oo 1.43 =
Matsushita Electric Employee Shareholding Asscciation ... 34,617 ..o, 1.41
Notes: 1. Matsushita holds 243,522 thousand shares of its own common stock.
2. Holdings of less than 1,000 shares have been omitred.
Quarterly Common Stock Price Range (Tokyo Stock Exchange)
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